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JACKSON COUNTY 
oregon 

Decemtll3r 18, 2012 

Admiulnstratoll-'S Oftiice 
Danny L. JOlrdan 
COWlly Administrator 

10 S'JUlh Oakdale. R'JOm 214 
Medford. Oregon 97501 
Phon,e: !i41-774-6003 
Fax: 541-774-670~5 
jordandl@jacksoncol.lnly.org 

www.jacksoncounl'y.c:org 

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Commissioners and Citizens of Jackson County: 

State sltatutes and local charter provisions require that Jackson County (the County) prepare a 
comp~ete set of year-end financial statements and have them audited in acc:ordancE~ with generally 
aGceptel~ auditing standards by an independent certified public accounting firm licensed to perform 
municipal audits in Oregon. Pursuant to this requirement, we hereby issue thE~ 2011 .. ·2012 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which is presented in conformance with generally accepted 
accountiing principles in the United States of America (US GAAP). This report incorporates the 
government .. wide financial reporting model, including all effective pronouncements of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. 

R,esponsibility for the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the 
presenta~ion, including all disclosures, rests with Jackson County .. It is believed the data, as presented, 
is accurate in all material aspects and is presented in a manner designed to present faiirly the financial 
position and results of operations of Jackson County as measured by the financial activiity of its vclJious 
funds. )~II disclosures necessary to enable the reader to ~lain the maximum understanding of Jackson 
County's financial affairs have been included. 

To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, manageml3n1t of the County has 
establiished a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protec~: the 
government's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliclble information for the 
presentation of the County's financial statements iin conformity with US GAAP. BecalUse the cost of 
internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County's comprehensive framework of internal 
controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financia~ 
statements will be frele from material misstatement. As management, we assert that. to the best Qf our 
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material aspects. 

Jackson County's finam:ial statements have been audited by Moss-Adams LLP, Certified Public 
Accountants of Medford, Oregon. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable 
assumnc:e that the finanGial statements of the County for the fiscal year ended ~Iune 30, 2012, are free 
of material misstatement:. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basHs, evidence 
supp0l1ing the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles 
used and si£jnificant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement 
pn~senltation. Moss-Adams LLP concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis 
for rendering an unqualified opinion that Jackson County's financial statements are fairly presentE~d in 
conformity with US GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the 
financial section of this report. 

As a recipient of Federal funds, the independent audit of the financial statements was a part of a 
broader, Federally mandated "single audit" designed to meet the speCial needs of Federal grantor 



agencies. The standards governing single audit engagements require the independent auditor to report 
not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government's 
internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls 
and leg:31 requirements involving the administration of Federal awards. These reports are included in 
the bacl< of the County's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

US GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of "Management Discussion & Analysis" (MD&A). 
This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. 
Jackson County's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

Profille of Jackson County 

Jackson County was incorporated January 12, 1852, and is located on the Interstate 5 corridor in 
southwt~st Oregon. The County includes an area of 2,801 square miles and has a population of 
203.45~~ and true cash value of $22.5 billion. Jackson County adopted a Home Rule Charter that was 
approved on January 8, 1979, and has been modified one time since its adoption. The County has 
three full-time Commissioners who are elected to four-year terms. The Board of Commissioners is 
respomlible for, among other things, passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, 
and hiring the County Administrator. The County Administrator is responsible for carrying out policies 
and ordinances of the Board of Commissioners and overseeing the day-to-day operations of the 
government. The County also has a County Counsel, an elected Assessor, Clerk, District Attorney, 
Justi(;e of the Peace, Sheriff, and Surveyor. 

Jacksol1 County provides a full range of services including public safety. health and human services, a 
15 branch library system, park facilities, public works, exposition park, assessment and tax collection 
for all County taxing districts, juvenile services, and urban renewal among others. For reporting 
pUrp()S13S, these responsibilities are categorized within the following general functions: 1) general 
government; 2) elections and records; 3) internal services; 4) community justice and safety; 5) culture 
and rec:reation; 6) health and human services; 7) planning, development, and natural resources; and 8) 
transportation. The Jackson County Urban Renewal Agency, the White City Enhanced law 
Enforcument District, and the White City Lighting District are legally separate taxing entities which 
functioll, in essence, as departments of Jackson County and are, therefore, included in the County's 
financial reports as "blended component units." Additional information on these three entities can be 
found LIndler Note No. I in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for Jackson County's financial planning and control. 
Through a series of Department Directors' meetings, budget targets are developed for all County 
departments. The Departments are then required to develop program needs and submit their budget 
requests to the County Administrator's office for review and analysis. Department budget requests are 
evalua:ied in terms of program goals, anticipated outcomes, and the necessity of these goals toward 
achieving the goals and mission of the County. The County Administrator prepares a balanced budget 
that is presented to the public and a six-member Budget Committee consisting of the three County 
Commissioners and three lay members. Public meetings and deliberations are held prior to the budget 
being recommended to the Board of Commissioners for adoption. The Board may increase the 
recommended budget, prior to adoption, up to 10 percent in any fund without the requirement that the 
bud~let be re-submitted to the Budget Committee. 

Bud~~et-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each fund for which an appropriated 
annual budget has been adopted. For the General Fund, General Road Fund, Health and Human 
Servicl~s Fund and Special Revenue Fund this comparison is presented as part of the basic financial 
statements for the governmental funds. For other funds, this comparison is presented in the fund 
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subsection of this report Additional information on the County's budget prOCE!SS can be found under 
Note No. 111 rn the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Relevant Financial Policies 

The County has adopted a policy to maintain a Rainy Day Fund in anticipation of the loss of Federal 
funding. This Rainy Day Fund had a balance on June 30, 2012, of $19,758,167 which i:s reflected in 
the gemeral government unrestricted net assets~ 

F,acto'rs Afft~cting Fimll1cial Condition 

Over the last several years Jackson County's local economy has diversified to the point that it is no 
longelr as dependent on timber harvest. However, job losses in construction, manufacturing, retail, and 
tourism has caused Jackson County's unemployment rate to remain high at 10.7 percent in June .:2012, 
compared to the State of Oregon's unemployment rate of 8.6 percent. However, it was lower than 
neighboring counties (Josephine, Douglas, and Klamath) who had unemployment rates of 11.7 percent, 
12 percent, and 10.8 percent respectfully. 

The down turn in building activity has had a direct effect on several County departments including the 
AsseSisor's Office and Development Services. Layoffs have taken place in the Assessor's OfficE~ and 
the General Fund continues to subsidize the Development Services Department. The continued 
deCreaSE! in property values is beginning to affect the taxes levied by the County as the Real Market 
Value drops below the Measure 50 Value on more properties. 

ApproximatE!ly 39.5 percent of the County's revenue, excluding capital grants and contributions, comes 
from the State of Ore~~on. Like many other statHs, Ore!Jon is experiencing revenue reductions and 
increelsed service demands. 

In OrHgon, the issue is further exacerbated by the fact that voters approved thret3 property tax n:3form 
measures that reduced local school districts' ability to raise funds for the respective K-'12 programs. 
Most :school funding now comes from the State's general fund. In addition to schools, the general fund 
is also responsible for providing all of Oregon's higher education, prisons, and State-mandated services 
performed by Oregon's 36 counties. 

Nearly all of the County's funding that is provided by the State is the result of requirements that the 
County provide service on behalf of the State. Without sufficient State support, the various counties will 
not be able to detiver services to important areas such as mentally ill persons, those with 
developmental disabilities, and those with alcohol and drug addictions. 

Federal Funding 

Approximately 52 percent of Jackson County is owned by the Federal government. Much of this land 
was tile result of a Federal land grant program for a railroad that was unsuccessful in tlhe 1930's. The 
County took over the property as a foreclosure. The Federal government agreed to manage the land, 
harve::;t its timber, and share the proceeds with the County. Shared revenues from the Federal 
government provided the County's major source of funding for many years. In the early 1980's, the 
timber industry underwent significant and permanent changes. Harvests are no longl3r significant 
enough to fund County services. 
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In response to lost timber revenues, Congress passed Public Law 106-393 (Secure Rural Schools and 
Community Self-Determination Act of 2000). This Act had provided significant funding to the County's 
General Fund. The Act expired in 2006-2007, and has been modified/extended several times in the 
years since. Although this Act is providing funding for schools and local governments across the United 
States, Jackson County has been the second largest beneficiary behind our neighbor to the north, 
Douglas; County. 

Propertv Taxes 

Property tax revenues continue to grow modestly. In Oregon, assessed value on individual properties 
may ~lel1erally increase 3 percent per year up to the level of real market value (sometimes referred to 
as true cash value). In Jackson County, given that the ratio of assessed value to real market value is 
72.96 percent, if there were no increase whatsoever in real market value and no growth, assessed 
values in total could increase 3 percent for nine years until the aggregate real market value (maximum 
assess€:d value in the Oregon tax system) was reached. Oregon's property tax system has limits on 
both lthB assessed value and the levy rates, including formulas for rate compression when a rate 
maximum is reached. Oregon's property tax system is considered to be one of the most complicated in 
the country. 

Plan for the Future 

The Counly has responded to the loss of Federal funds by developing and implementing a strategic 
plan for service reductions and re-organization. Department Directors and the County Administrator 
developed a plan which was presented to the Board of Commissioners and the County's Budget 
Committee. This plan will continue to help guide the Budget Committee as it reviews budget requests 
for thE~ ~~013-2014 budget this Spring. 

In response to the fact that the current Federal funding program was scheduled to expire in 2007, a 
Rainy Day Fund was established within the General Fund to provide up to two years worth of limited 
funding after the expiration of these funds. In addition, service reductions and other strategic initiatives 
were implemented that have allowed the County to operate with a balanced budget. 

The County has begun investing non-operating funds in capital projects. The goal of the courthouse 
remodel is to move those departments with higher foot traffic to the lower floors of the courthouse for 
conve:nience to the citizens; move those departments that work most closely together to the same 
vicinity in the building; consolidate departments into one location where possible; and upgrade systems 
to meet current codes and be more efficient and environmentally friendly. This project is expected to 
be completed in the 2012-2013 fiscal year. The County has also purchased a building near the 
County":> main office buildings with the intent of developing a new health facility. 

Awards, and Acknowledgments 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for 
ExcellencEi in Financial Reporting to Jackson County for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) fol' the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. This was the 29th consecutive year (fiscal years 1983-
2011) that the County has received this prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the 
highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the County must publish an easily readable and 
efficiently ()rganized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, with contents that conform to program 
standards. Such a report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable 
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le!~al requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believj~ that 
oLlr current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's mquirements and we are 
submittin!~ it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

In addition, the County also received the GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its annual 
budget document for the 2011-2012 fiscal year. This was the 28th consecutive year (fiscal years '1984-
2012) that the County's budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories, including as 
a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device. 

We wish to express our appreciation for the efficient and dedicated services of the staff of Finance and 
Internal Audit, without whom this report would not have been possible. Special thanks ,are, extended to 
Debbie ,James, Michelle Wickham, and Susan Hollingsworth of the Finance Departmant and Dlabbie 
Taylor, Tanya Baize and Nicole Rollins of Internal Audit. We express our apprElciation to Moss-Adams 
LLP, Certified Public Accountants. We also wish to compliment the Board of Commissioners and staff 
of the County Administrator's office for their interest and support in planning and conducting the 
financial operations of the County in a responsible and progressive manner. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~~ nA. Bell r--
Finance Director 
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Board of Commissioners 
Jackson County, Oregon 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund, budgetary statements, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Jackson County, Oregon (the "County") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively 
comprise the County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial 
statE!ments are the responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions 
on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable asSUranCE! about whether the financial statements are free of 
mati!riaJ misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial rt~porting as a 
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 

. of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles 
used alnd significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statE'ment presentation .. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position IOf the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
!budgetary statements, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jackson Coun~y, Oregon as of 
June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof 
for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

The financial statement'> include prior year Enterprise Funds partial comparative information. Such 
information does not include all of the information required to constitute a presentation in conformity 
with accounting principl,es generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such 
information should be read in conjunction with the government's financial statemenlts for the year 
ended June 30, 2011, from which such partial information was derived. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 18, 
;W12 on our consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. The· 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control OVE!r financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed iIll accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

13raxiti(:: 
MEMBER ." 

GLOBAL ALLIANGE 0 
INOEPENOI'N" FIRM', 



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discl:tS5 ion and analysis on pages xi through xxiv and the schedule of funding progress on page S2 be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses: to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opini.on or provide any assurance. 

Our atdit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectivelly comprise Jackson County, Oregon's basic financial statements. The supplementary 
information and schedule of expenditures of federal awards required by U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations (Circular A-
133J, cmd schedule of expenditures of passenger facility charges required by the Federal Aviation 
Admimstration, Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The supplementary information and 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and passenger facility charges have been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
record:; used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the supplementary information and schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
and passenger facility charges are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectiveily comprise Jackson County, Oregon's basic financial statements. The introductory section and 
statistical information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the ba:;;ic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the based financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express on opinion or 
provid,~ any assurance on it. 

Eugene, Oregon 
December 18, 2012 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of Jackson County, we offer readers of Jackson County's financial statements this narrative overview and 
analysis of the County's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. We encourage readers to consider the 
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, 
which begins on page i of this report. 

Financial Hi:~hlights 

• Jackson County's assets exceeded its liabilities at the close ofthe fiscal year by $464,560,302 (net assets). This is 
a decrease of $16,392,632 from the prior fiscal year. Net assets of $89,371,566 (unrestricted net assets) may be 
us(;:d to meet the County's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Note that with the government-wide 
finan~ial reporting model, the total net assets figure includes capital assets net of accumulated depreciation. 

• At the close of the current fiscal year, the County's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of 
$109..335,574 a decrease of $15,368,885 or 12.3% from the prior year. Of this amount, $34,231,274 is available 
for spending at the County's discretion (unassigned fund balance). This is a reduction of $1] ,059,553 in the 
unasdgned fund balance from $45,290,827 in the prior year and is largely due to the expenditure of fund balance 
on capital projects in the current fiscal year. 

• At tbe dose of the current fiscal year, unrestricted fund balance (the total of the committed, assigned. and 
unassigned components of fund balance) for the general fund was $47,721,461 or 54.9% of total general fund 
expenditures plus transfers to other funds. The previous year, the unrestricted fund balance for the general fund 
was S68,848,239 or 94.3% of total general fund expenditures plus transfers to other funds. The decrease in this 
percentage is due to the expenditure of fund balance on capital projects in the current fiscal year. 

• Total bonded debt decreased by $3,413,485 during the year. This is attributable to regular payments of debt 
maturing during the year. 

Overview of thc~ Financial Statements 

The discussion and analysis provided here is intended to serve as an introduction to Jackson County's basic financial 
statements. The County's basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial 
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also includes supplementary 
information iltended to furnish additional detail to support the basic financial statements themselves. 

Governmfnt-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide .financial statements are designed to provide readers 
with a broad ,werview of the County's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement o/net assets, presents financial information on all of the County's assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of 
whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County's net assets changed during the most recent 
fiscal year. AU changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will only 
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected property taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported by 
intergovernmental revenues and property taxes (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover 
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental 
activities of the County include: General Government; Elections and Records; Community Justice and Safety; Culture and 
Recreation; Health and Human Services; Planning, Development and Natural Resources; and Transportation. Business­
type activitie;; include the Airport, Exposition Park and Recreation (parks). 
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Management's Dis,cussion and Analysis 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the County itself (known as the primary government), but also 
the legally separate Urban Renewal Agency, White City Enhanced Law Enforcement Distrkt, and White City Lighting 
District. Although legally s~~parate, these entities function for all practical purposes as departments of the County, and 
therefore have been included as an integral part of the primary government. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 1 and 2 of this report. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over res.ources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Jackson County, like other state and local governments, uses 
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. AU of the funds of the 
County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary fund8. 

Govemmentai fimds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions rep0l1ed as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as 
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in 
assessing a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because tl~,e focus of govemm€mtal funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to 
compare the infOimation presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities 
in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the 
govemment's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement .of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The County maintains eleven individual governmental funds; I general fund, 4 special revenue funds, 2 debt service funds 
and 4 capital project funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the 
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the gener2,l fund, the general 
road special revenue fund, the health and human services special revenue fund, and the special revenue fund. These are' 
considered to be major governmental funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single 
aggregatedi presentation. lndividual fund data for each of the nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the fOrm of 
combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

Jackson County adopts an annual appropriation budget for all of its governmental funds. Budgetary comparison 
statements have been provided to demonstrate budgetary compliance. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 3 and 4 of this report. 

Proprietary fundy, Jackson County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise fitnds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County 
uses enterprise funds to account for its airport, recreation, and exposition park operations. h1.ternal service funds are ;ill 
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County's various functions. The County 
uses an internal service fund to account for its self-insurance, motor pool, central services, and computer n~placement 
operations.. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have 
been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, but in greater detail. 
The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each of the three enterprise funds, which are 
considered to be major funds. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 11 through 14 of this report. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. 
Fiduciary funds are not reported in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of those funds are not 
available to ~;upport the County's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to that used for 
proprietary funds. 

The County maintains two different types of fiduciary funds. Jackson County Employees' Retirement Plan Trust Fund is 
used to repmi resources held in trust for retirees and benefits covered by Jackson County Employees' Retirement Plans #2 
and #4. The Agency funds report resources held by the County in a custodial capacity for individuals, private 
organizations and other governments. 

The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 15 and 16 of this report. 

Notes to th(~ financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial 
statements can be found on pages 17 through 51 of this report. 

Other informaltion. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
required supplementary information concerning the County's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and 
other post employee benefits (OPEB) to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found on page 52 of 
this report. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and internal service funds 
are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions and OPEB. Combining and 
individual fund statements and schedules can be found starting on page 53 of this report. 

Government-wilde Financial Analysis 

Net assets, over time, may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. Jackson County's assets, 
including its capital assets net of depreciation, exceeded its liabilities by $464,560,302 at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year. 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Total 

6/30/2012 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/2011 6/3012012 6/30/2011 

Current and nth er assets $ 142,306,582 $ 159,859,331 $ 18,186,530 $ 17,712,207 $ 160,493,112 $ 177,571,538 
Capital assets 256,176,811 261,278,128 11l,493,060 \I 367,669,871 

Total asset,: 398,483,393 421,137,459 129,679,590 129,037,680 528,162,983 550,175,139 

Long-term liabilities outstanding 34,463,199 37,274,759 19,661,266 20,052,644 54,124,465 57,327,403 
Other liabilities 10,937,514 957,288 11,894,802 

Total liabil ities 48,212,273 20,884,760 21,009,932 63,602,681 69,222,205 

Net assets: 
Net investment in capital assets 233,702,157 235,804,411 92,475,443 91,964,637 326,177,600 327,769,048 
Restricted 47,586,863 51,037,058 1,424,273 1,624,071 49,011,136 52,661,129 
Unrestricted 74,476,452 86,083,717 14,895,114 14,439,040 89,371,566 100,522,757 

Total net at:sets $ 372,925,186 $ 108,794,830 $ 108,027,748 $ 464,560,302 $ 480,952,934 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

By far, the largest portion of the County's net assets (70.3%) reflects its investment in capj;tal assets (e.g., land, buildings, 
equipment, software and infrastructure), less any related outstanding debt that was used to acquire those assets. The 
County uses these capital assets to provide a variety of services to its citizens. Accordingly, these assets are not available 
for future sp'ending. Although the County's investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be n01ed 
that the resources used to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the Gapital assets ttu~mselves cannot 
be used to liquidate those liabilities. 

An additional portion of the County's ne:! assets (10.5%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on 
how they may be used. The remaining balance of $89,37 I ,566 is unrestricted and may be used to meet the County's 
ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County is able to report positive balances in all re:ported categories of net assets, 
both for the govemment as a whole, a'l well as for its separate govemmental and business-type activitIes, with th¢~ 

exception of1he Exposition Park. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 

However, the County's overall net assets decreased $16,392,632 from the prior fiscal year. The reaEons for this overall 
decrease are: discussed in the foHowing sections tor govemmental activities and busin(~ss-type activities. 

Revenues 
Program Revenues 

Charges for s(:rvic-es 
Operating gr,ants and contributions 
C"pital grants and contributions 

General ReverlUes 

Property taJ«!~ 
Grants and contributions not 

resuricted to specific programs 
Unrestricted investment earnings 

Total revenues 

Expensl:s 
General Government 
Ekctions & Re(.'Ords 
Community Justice & Safety 
Culture & R!!(;reation 
PI:mning" Development & 

Nat.ural Resources 
Health &. Human Services 
Transportatioll 
Imerest on long-term debt 
AiIpOrt 
Exposition Park 
Recreation Enterprise 

Total e>:pens-es 

Change in net assets before transfers 
Transfers 

Change in net assets 

Net assets - beginning 

Net assets - ending 

$ 

Jackson County's Changes in Net Assets 

Governmental 

19,278,108 $ 
61,773,153 

82,250 

37,181,804 

5,206,439 

10,489,720 
1,872,126 

48,650,631 
8,257,201 

9,678,094 
35,130,881 
28,358,761 

1,053,455 

2010-11 

18,638,823 $ 
75,768,836 

2,682,142 

38,315,765 

Business-Type 

Activities Total -------,---
2011-12 

9,794,197 $ 
1,913,864 
4,070,289 

2010-11 

9,833,647 $ 
6,986,434 
2,644,349 

29,072,305 1; 

63,687,017 
4,152,539 

37,181,804 

28,472,470 
82,755,270 

5,326,491 

38,315,765 

5,206,439 11,583,055 11,583,055 
3,569,681 ___ -'2;;;..7..;;;6,.;;.0..;,;420- ___ --'3;;;04.;",.:.;77:.,::0 ____ 3,412.972 __ ---=3..::,8:.:,.74.:.,,1..:.;4-'.1 

150,558,302 

11,454,522 
1,899,608 

47,962,680 
8,274,799 

5,144,634 
44,366,754 
19,410,613 

1,273,563 

16,054,392 19,769,200 ___ 1_42,713,076 170,327,502 

11,060,591 10,750,019 
2,309,698 2,226,551 

10,489,720 
1,872,126 

48,650,631 
8,257,201 

9,678,094 
35,130,88) 
28,358,761 

1,053,455 
11,060,591 
2,309,698 

11,454,522 
1,899,6IJ8 

47,962,680 
8,274,7'19 

5,144,634 
44,366,7:;4 
19,410,613 
1,273,563 

10,750,019 
2,226,5:;1 

------- ----- __ ---'2:;.,.,2:;.4:.,:4;.;:.,5.;;..50::- ____ 6::.:,.:.:75:.::2.:,2~4(~ ____ :::.::..;.=;;,;;... ____ ---=;,.;;.:.=,:.;:;... 

143,490,869 

(16,832,185) 

139,787,173 15,614,839 19,728,81t~ __ ~,;,.:.::;:;".:.;~..:;... ____ .:.;:.:..:::.:.;::,;;;.;::,;:... 

10,771,129 439,553 40,38~f (16,392.632) 10,811,513 
• ___ =,:..,:::.:::::..!. ___ ..\-(1;,,;;0"""4,"'83;;,;;].1..) ____ 3;;.;;2;.;.7"".5.;;.29'- ____ .:.:10;.,:4,;;;.8:;c;3,:... _______ _ 

(17,159,714) 10,666,296 767,082 145,217 (16,392,632) 10,811,513 

362_258,890 108,027,748 470,141,421 

$ 355,765,472 $ 372,925.186 =$===1=08::!:,7=9=4~,8=30===$===I=08::!:,0=2=7:!:::,7=4!~ =~=~i~.:g~k::d:==~g~~~: 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the County's net assets by $17,159,714, or 104.6% of the 
total decrease. This is a reduction of $27,826,010 over last year's increase of $10,666,296. Total expenses increased by 
$3,703,696 or 2.6%, and total revenues decreased by $23,899,618 or 15.9% for the same period. Key elements of this 
change are as follows: 

• The decrease in net assets is largely due to jurisdictional transfers of infrastructure assets of approximately $10.6 
million. 

• The decrease in revenues is due largely to the reduction in O&C replacement funds of almost $8 million. 

• A chll1ge in the way the state contracts for services to the developmentally disabled reduced both revenues and 
expenses by the same amount ($\ 0 million reduction). 

Expenses :mcl F'rogram Revenues Governmental Activities 

......... -

$60,000,000 

$50,000,000 - I 
~ 

$40,000,000 I 
~ 
~ 

$30,000,000 ' .. 
' ..... , , 

$20,000,000 

, 
$10,000,000 ; 

J 
-., 

D I ",': 

$-
'. ~ 

General Government Elections & Records I (ommuo;ty Ju"ke & Culture & Recreation 
Safety 

c Expens~s $10,489,720 $1,872,126 48,650,631 $8,257,201 

Revenues $8,404,035 $1,892,530 $16,592,480 $1,203,741 

...• -""--~ ,'¥""'9~~~""""""""{!"F.,"~ ~.,.,, __ ~"'-""'S-='''''~ " 

$60,000,000 

$50,000,000 

$40,000,000 

$30,000,000 -
~ 

$20,000,000 -'" .j .I' 

$10,OOO,aoo I' 

r ] 
" .?-

Planning, 
Health & Human Interest on long-term 

Development & 
Services 

Transportation 
debt 

Natural Resources 

C Expenses $9,678,094 $35,130,881 $28,358,761 $1,053,455 

Revenues $3,950,037 $31,866,816 $17,223,872 $-
.. -,. ,'. " 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
-----------

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 

--------------------------._--

Grants and 
contributions not 

restricted 
4% 

Property taxes 
29% 

contributions 
0% 

Investment earnings 
3% 

15% 

contributions 
49% 

Business-type adivities. Business··type activities increased the County's net assets by $767,082. This is $621,865 more 
than last year's increase of $145,217. Total expenses decreased $4,113,977 or 20.9% and total revenues decreased 
$3,714,808 or 18.8% for the same period. Key elements of this change are as follows: 

• Expenses decreased in the Recreation Enterprise Fund due to the costs incurred in the prior fiscal year for the 
removal of Gold Ray Dam (approx $4.3 million). 

Expenses and P,oogram Revenu.~s- Business-type Activilties 

-------------------------------------_._._-----_. 

$14,000,000 

$12,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$8,000,000 

$6,000,000 ---------------------------------_ .. 

$4,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$-
Airport Exposition Park Recreation Enterprise 

III Expens.es ~~l1,060,591 $2,309,698 $;2,244,550 
-·---r----------------·----+----·-------~------------------I 

Revenues ~~12,052,234 $2,005,513 $;1,720,603 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Revenues !by Source - Business-type activities 

Capital grants and 
contributions 

25% 

Operating grants and . 
contributions 

12% 

Financial Analysis of County Funds 

Investment earnings 
2% 

Charges for services 
61% 

As noted earlier, Jackson County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 

Governmental funds. The focus of the County's governmental funds is to provide infonnation on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County's financing 
requirements. At the end of the current fiscal year, the County's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $109,335,574, a decrease of $15,368,885 over the prior year, primarily due to the use of rainy day funds for 
capital improvement projects. Approximately 54.7% or $59,772,123 of this total amount constitutes assigned and 
unassigned/und balances, which is available for spending at the government's discretion. These balances are primarily in 
the General Fund. The remainder of fund balance is nonspendable, restricted, or committed to indicate that it is 1) not in 
spendable form ($3,119,459), 2) legally required to be maintained intact ($10,000), or 3) restricted for particular purposes 
($46,433,992). 

General FUliid Components of Fund Balance - June 30, 2011 and 2012 

$50,000,000 

$40,000,000 1SF r-- , 

$30,000,000 '----

$20,000,000 -
r---:-

...... 

.•.. 

$10,000,000 -

$- - ............... 
I Unassigned Assigned Restricted Nonspendable , 

IJ June 30,2011 $45,290,827 $23,557,412 $1,228, $1,369,154 

June 3(1, 2012 $34,231,274 $13,490,187 $624,838 $1,119,904 
L----. - '.-~- ~, """,'- - . " . 
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Discussion and 

The general fund is the operating fund of the County. At the end ofthe current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the 
general fund was $34,231,274, while total fund balance decreased to $49,466,203. As a measure of the general fund's 
liquidity, it may be usefhl to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total general fund 
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 55.6 percent of total gt:neral fund expenditures, while 
total fund balance represents approximately 80.3 percent of that same amount. 

Other Governmental Funds Components of Fund Balance - June 30, 2011 and 2012 

--------------------t'. 

$-
Unassigned Assigned 

JunE! 30,2011 $- $2,984,223 $48,627,246 

JunE, 30 .. 2012 $- $12,050,662 $45,809,154 $2,009,555 

Although not reflected in the County's financial reports as an assignment or commitment of fund balance, the County 
anticipates that the fIrst three months of expenditures in the subsequent fiscal year will be substantially covered by the 
ending fund balance. This is made necessary by the timing of the general fund's major revenue sources (property taxes 
and O&C replacement flmds), which are not available until the fall. The amount of the fund balance that ',vas budgeted as 
unappropriated ending fund balance to meet cash flow needs, thereby making it unavailable until the subsequent year, was 
$9,769,252. 

The fund balancj~ of the general fund decreased by $21,980,169 during the current fiscal year. Key factors were a<; 

follows: 

• The County is using rajny day funds for capital prc~ects, specifically the County office building remodel and the 
new sheritfffacility. The general fund transferred $19,824,502 to the capital projects fund during the current fiscal 
year. The goal of the office building remodel is to move those departments with higher foot traffic to the lower 
floors for convenience to the citizens; move those departments that work most closely together to the same 
vicinity in the building; consolidate departments into one location where possible; and to upgrade the electrical 
systems, lighting systems, and heatinglventilation/air-conditioning (HV AC) systems. 

• Imerest income dit 
decrease in the amlO 

_.f,t,,~195,709 primarily due to the change in the economy and interest rates as welI as 1ll 

.avffilabl-e to earn interest. 

• General fund revenues decreased due to a reduction in O&C replacement funds. 

The general road fund balance decreased by $194,374 (1.3%) to $14,611,720. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The health and human services fund balance increased by $1,607,713 (10.2%). The health department receives the 
majority of it:; funding from the State of Oregon. The increase in fund balance is due to the receipt of additional mental 
health funding in excess of additional program costs. 

The special r~ve:nue fund balance increased by $303,511 largely due to the recognition of previously deferred Title III 
funds received. 

The other governmental funds fund balances increased by $4,894,434 (30.5%) to $20,949,257. This change includes a 
decrease in White City Capital fund balance of $2,449,478; an increase in other non-major capital project funds of 
$8,093,294; a dj~crease in debt service fund balances of $756,470; and an increase in enhanced law district funds of 
$7,088. S(!veral large projects in White City were nearing completion at the end of the fiscal year. In addition, funds 
transferred to th(~ capital projects fund for the sheriff facility were not all spent at year end. 

Proprietary}'rmds. The County's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statem(~nts for its three enterprise funds (airport, recreation, and exposition park), plus a column for the internal 
service funds. 

Unrestricted net assets of the exposition park at the end of the year amounted to $(137,197), those of the airport amounted 
to $15,669,,016, and those of the recreation enterprise amounted to $812,287. The change in net assets for these funds 
were ($88,91:5), $1,473,796, and $(359,739), respectively. Other factors concerning the finances of these three funds have 
already been .lddressed in the discussion of Jackson County's business-type activities. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Differences between the original expenditure budget, including operating transfers, and the final amended budget 
represent a 11ft increase of $366,491 or 0.4%. Major components of the increase were as follows: 

• $200,000 reflects additional video lottery funding for the Library. 
• $136,394 reflects additional grant revenues for Emergency Management. 

The difference between the final amended budget and actual expenditures was $9,160,476. One reason for this difference 
is the reserves of $2,039,467 that were budgeted in the general fund fiduciary but not expended. In addition, budgeted 
personal services of $2,953,701 in the general fund were not spent. This was due to additional cuts in a few general fund 
departments, and employee turnover in other general fund departments. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities at year-end 
amounts to S367,669,871 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, land 
improvement5, buildings, equipment, park facilities, roads and bridges, and software. The total increase in capital assets 
for the current fiscal year was approximately 1.3%. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

• Nearly $7 million was spent on the new Sheriff Administration Building which was completed in early 2012-13. 
• Purchasl~ ofthe Federal Building was completed and design work has begun. 
• The Airport completed the Freight Enhancement project, funded by Connect Oregon 11l Grant ($2.5 million). 
• Infrastructure - Approximately $11 million of infrastructure projects were completed. $10.6 million in completed 

infra~;tructure projects were transferred to other local jurisdictions, including the City of Medford and City of 
Central Point. 
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Land $ 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 
Software 
Constructiol in progress 
Infras1ructu,:e 

Total net assets $ 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Jackson County's Capital Assets 
(net of depreciation) 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

6/3012012 6/30/2011 

19,000,680 $ 18,678,826 $ 17,791,936 $ 17,615,182 
69,924,643 74,344,327 87,007,178 87,718,953 

6,659,030 6,748,198 2,373,296 2,679,939 
1,301,786 918,213 

10,814,675 18,038,675 4,320,650 3,311,399 
148,4 7 5 ,997 142,549,889 

256,176,811 $ 261,278,128 $ 11,325,473 

Total 

6/3012012 6/30/2011 

" ,~ 36,792,616 $ 36,294,008 
156,931,82 I 162,063,280 

9,032,326 9,428,137 
1,301,786 918,213 

15,135,325 21,350,074 
_ 148,475,99~ - 142,549,8~2_ 

$ 367,669,871-= 

Additionaa information of the County's capital assets can be found in Note C in the Notes to Financial Statements se(~tiol1 
of this report on pages 33 through 34, 

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the County had total bonded debt outstanding of $42,064,354. Of 
this amount, $20,625,000 is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the County and $744,354 is special assessment Mbt 
for whIch the County is liable in the event of default by the property owners subject to the assessment Airport revenue 
bonds of $18,995,000 are funded by passenger facility charges and other airport revenues. Urban renewal bonds of 
$1,700,000 are funded by the property tax increment within the urban renewal boundary. 

General obHgation 
Bancroft bOllds 
Airpolt revenue bonds 
Urban renewal bond:, 

Total 

Jackson County's Outstanding Debt 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities 

~----

6/30/2012 6/30/2011 6/30/2011 

$ 20,62:5,000 $ 22,790,000 $ $ 
744,354 867,839 

18,995,000 19,335,000 
. __ 1,700,000 2,485,000 

$ 23,069,354 $ 26,142,839 $ 19,335,000 

Total 

6/3012012 -----
); 20,625,000 $ 22,790,000 

744,354 867,839 
18,995,000 19,335,000 

__ !.2?0,0Q.Q... 2,485,000 

J 42,064,354. 

Jackson County maintains an "Aa2" rating from Moody's Investor Service for its Library Refunding Bond Series 2006, 
and the Library Refunding Bond Series 2010 bond issues. 

Oregon revis.ed statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a County may have outstanding to 2.0% of the tnte 
cash value: of all taxable property in the County. The current debt limitation for the County is $450,531,059 which is 
significantly more than the $20,625,000 which the County has outstanding. 

Additional information of the County's long-term debt can be found in Note D in the Notes section on pages 34 through 
39. Computaltion of the legal debt margin is shown in the Statistical Section on page 98. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget 

• Once known for timber, the economy of Jackson County has diversified. Health Care has become the largest 
employment group in the County. Jackson County boasts several major and community medical centers and 
physician groups, with the Asante Health System being the largest Jackson County employer. Retail, including 
Harry and David's mail order business, is the second largest employment group in the County. Government is the 
third largest employment group. This reflects the fact that the federal government owns 52% of the land within 
the County's boundaries. At the close of the fiscal year, the County's unemployment rate was 10.7%, which was 
above the state average of 8.6%. At the same time, the national average was 8.4%. 

• Th~ population of the County increased 1.1 % during the past year, with K-12 school enrollment down 1.0%. 

• County-issued residential building permits increased 11.2% from the previous fiscal year, reflecting the small 
growth in building activity nation-wide. This doesn't include pennits issued by cities. 

• Total taxable assessed value within the County increased by only 1.2%. 

A significant source of County general fund revenue is the former federal Oregon & California Railroads act funds (O&C 
funds), which had been in place, with modifications, since 1937. Public Law 110-343 included an extension to the O&C 
and Federal Forest revenues, which ended in the current fiscal year. 

These are among the factors that were considered in preparing Jackson County's budget for the 2012-13 fiscal year. 

The County's 2012-13 budget is $316,219,068 plus $6,022,034 for the Urban Renewal Agency, $1,985,000 for the White 
City Law Enforcement District, and $1,000,473 for the White City Lighting District, each of which are "blended" 
component units. The total for the County plus its three component units is $325,226,575. This represents a decrease 
9.2% from the final 2011-12 budget. Budgeted funds include the general fund, special revenue, capital project, debt 
service, enterprise and internal service funds. The general fund appropriation budget is $78,801,426, a decrease of 17.8%. 
In Oregon, tre total amount of the fund balance is budgeted as a resource; therefore, a decrease in fund balance one year 
results in a corresponding decrease in the following year's budget regardless of the amount of the fund balance that is 
actually appropriated for expenditure. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide to citizens, customers, investors, creditors and others with an interest in the 
Jackson County, a general overview of the County's finances and to demonstrate accountability for the funds it receives. 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report, or requests for additional financial information, 
should be addressed to the Jackson County Finance Director, 10 S. Oakdale AVe., #113, Medford, OR 97501. 

xxi 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Statement or Net Assets 

June 30,2012 

Primary Government 

Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 126,228,647 $ 18,146,725 $ 144,375,372 

Receivables (net of uncollectible allowance) 9,637,041 572,421 10,209,462 

Internal balances 2,330,839 (2,330,839) 

Inventories 1,924,712 167,140 2,091,852 

Depo,its and prepaid items 368,840 3,852 372,692 

Defelred charges 1,232,586 643,649 1,876,235 

Net pension obligation 583,917 583,917 

Restr :cted assets: 

Temporarily restricted: 

Cash and investments 983,582 983,582 

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation): 

Land 19,000,680 17,791,936 36,792,616 

Buildings and improvements 69,924,643 87,007,178 156,931,821 

Equipment 6,659,030 2,373,296 9,032,326 

Software 1,301,786 1,301,786 

Construction in progress 10,814,675 4,320,650 15,135,325 

I lfrastructure 148,475,997 148,475,997 

Total assets 398,483,393 129,679,590 528,162,983 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and other current liabilities 7,957,626 627,910 8,585,536 
Accrued interest payable 74,202 81,965 156,167 

Unearned revenues 222,894 513,619 736,513 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 9,477,668 365,000 9,842,668 

Due in more than one year 24,985,531 19,296,266 44,281,797 

Total liabilities 42,717,921 20,884,760 63,602,681 

NET ASSETS 

Net investment in capital assets 233,702,157 92,475,443 326,177,600 

Restricted for: 

General Government 2,891,897 2,891,897 

Elections & Records 1,089,268 1,089,268 

Community Justice & Safety 1,869,053 1,869,053 

Culture & Recreation 621,965 621,965 

Planning, Development & Natural Resources 2,191,458 2,191,458 

Health & Human Services 16,408,175 16,408,175 

Transportation 15,040,679 15,040,679 

Debt Service 7,464,368 1,424,273 8,888,641 

Nonexpendable 10,000 10,000 

Unre:;tricted 74,476,452 14,895,114 89,371,566 

Total net assets $ 355,765,472 $ 108,794,830 $ 464,560,302 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



J~lcn{Son County, Oregon 
Statement of Activities 

_______________________ . ______ F_o_r_t_h_e_fi_ls_C<_<II..,:y:o-e_a_r_E!,n<lled June 30, 20!l2 

Functions / PfOm:!!!!!~ 

Governmental activities: 

General Govemment 

Elections & Records 

Community JlI&tice &. Safety 

Culture &. Re(oreatiofl 

Planning, Developm"nt 

& N:'Ltur~J Resollrces 

Health & Human Services 

Transportation 

Interest on long-tenn debt 

Total gov;:rnmental activIties 

Business-type activi~jes: 

Airport 

Exposition Parl, 

Recreation Enrerprist: 

Total business" type activities 

Total primary ~~,ovenunent 

Expenses 

:> 10,489,720 $ 

1,872,126 

48,650,631 

8,257,201 

9,678,094 

35,130,881 

28,358,761 

1,053,455 

143,490,869 

11,060,591 

2,309,698 

2,244,550 

15,614,839 

$ 159,105,708 

Ckneral revenues: 

Property taxes 

Charges for 

Services 

1,310,805 

1,883,077 

5,615,258 

676,748 

3,564,969 

3,135,451 

3,091,800 

19,278,10& 

7,217,246 

1,750,736 

826,215 

9,794,197 

Program Revenues 

$ 

$ 

Operating 

Grants and 

Contributions 

7,093,230 

9,453 

10,894,972 

526,993 

385,068 

28,731,365 

14,132,072 

61,773,153 

1,171,582 

50,002 

692,280 

1,913,864 

63,687,017 

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 

Unrestricted investment earnings 

Transfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net assets 

Net assets - beginnil1g 

Net assets - ending 

$ 

Capital 

Grants and 

82,250 

Net (Expense) Re'lenu,= and 
___ Cl~~~:.!;.. __ , 

Governmental Business-type 

$ (2,U85,685) $ 

20,404 

(32,058,151) 

(7,053,460) 

(5,728,057) 

(3,264,065) 

(11,134,889) 

(1,053,455) ------. 

(2,085,68:\) 

20,404 

(32,058,1.51) 

(i ,053,460) 

(5,728,(157) 

(3,264,065) 

(11,134,1:89) 

(1,053.'i.?1l 

82,250 (62.357,:~ _____ -_ • .--I!!2d'.';Zd~l 

3,663,406 991,643 

204,775 (304,185) 

202,108 _____ "_" ___ @2!Zl." 

991,64J 

(304,1:l5) 

(523,~~!Z1 

4,070,289 _____ -___ 163,~ ___ 163,=i.!.. 

$ 37,181,g04 $ 

5,::06,439 

3,136,930 

(17,159,"114) 

276,042 

767,082 

$ 37,181,804 

5,206,439 

3,412,972 

'15,SOUI5 

(16,392,632) 

The accom panying notes a~ an in1~ __ ra_l~pa_rt_( •• )f_t_h_is_st_a_te_m_e_nt_-____________________ , 2 



Jackson County, Oregon 

ASSETS 
Cash and in; estillents 

Receivab'es (net of 

uncolle(:tibloe allowance) 

Deposits:md prepaid items 

Due from other funds 

Inventories 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts parable 

Accrued payroll, withholdings and 

benefits 
Due to other funds 

Deferred revenue 

Unearned re'lcmlC 

Retainages and c,ther liabilities 

TotalliHbilil:ies 

FUND BALANC ES 

Nonspendable 

Restricted 

Assigned 

Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

TotalliHbilities and fund balances 

Health and 

General Human Special 

General Road Services Revenue 

Fund Fund Fund Fund 

$ 46,545,624 $ 13,518,867 $ 17,499,050 $ 8,300,029 

6,325,099 1,360,662 987,339 100,918 

20,997 997 135,949 

3,746,523 272,795 334,990 78,773 

1,872,609 

$ 56,638,243 $ 17,025,930 $ 18,957,328 $ 8,479,720 

$ 693,323 $ 1,069,674 $ 589,380 $ 202,898 

3,865,605 

375,594 348,530 876,333 1,229,849 

2,024,727 950,669 
18,483 78,278 126,133 

194,308 45,337 25,783 

7,172,040 1,543,991 1,584,663 

1,119,904 1,873,606 135,949 

624,838 12,738,114 17,277,388 4,531,245 

13,490,187 2,363,812 

34,231,274 

49,466,203 17,413,337 

$ 56,638,243 $ 18,957,328 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 

of net assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds 
Other long-term assets are not available to pay current period 

expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds 

Internal service fund assets and liabilities are included in 

governmental activities in the statement of net assets 
Long,tenn liabilities are not due and payable in the current 

period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds 

Net assets of governmental activities 

The accompar ying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

Ba~ance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2012 

Other Total 

Governmental Governmental 

Funds Funds 

$ 21,359,591 $ 107,223,161 

826,986 9,601,004 

157,943 

160,650 4,593,731 

1,872,609 

$ 22,347,227 $ 123,448,448 

$ 7,924 $ 2,563,199 

3,865,605 

344,292 3,174,598 

742,028 3,717,424 

222,894 

303,726 

1,397,970 14,112,874 

3,129,459 

11,262,407 46,433,992 
9,686,850 25,540,849 

34,231,274 

20,949,257 109,335,574 

$ 22,347,227 

253,033, I 07 

3,717,424 

15,997,597 

3 



Jacl\.Son County, Oreg()lDl 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in .Fund Balanlce 

GI[)"c~rnmentaIFunds 

For the fiscal y~nded JUI~~ 30, 20~~. 

Health and 
General Human Special Other Total 

General Road Services Revenue Governmental Governmental 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds -----

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ 18,753,434 $ 13,942,266 $ 28,731,365 $ 5,295,082 $ 257,445 $ 66,979,592 
Charges for services 8,919,967 2,067,802 1,897,529 1,498,999 1,1:;5,465 15,519,762 
Lkenses and permits 192,380 1,125,288 1,317,668 
Fines and forfeitures 1,937,502 112,634 18,450 2,068,586 
Taxes 32;219,648 4,694,6:57 36,914,305 
Interest 1,034,952 205,204 285,893 153,893 297,722 1,977,664 
Misceila;]eous 42,497 13,437 11,672 830,770 

Total revenues 63,593,643 16,257,769 32,380,JJ3 6,979,861 125,608,347 .. 
EXPENDlTIJRES 

Cunent: 
General Govemment 4,937,173 3,558,593 1&4,744 8,640,510 
Elections & Records 1,212,462 552,285 1,764,747 
Community Justice & Safety 44,476,051 228,299 1,315,606 46,019,956 
Culi:ure & Re'creation 5,694,798 294,946 4,153 5,993,897 
Planning, Development & 

Natural Resources 4,026,729 188,996 527,U9 4,742,864 

Health & Human Services 33,952,103 33,952,103 
T ranspDliation 14,738,202 209,064 6(12,960 15,550,226 

Debt service: 
Principal 3,073,485 3,073,485 
Interest 1,064,327 1,064,327 

Capital ()Utiay: 
General Govemment 699,266 10,332,653 11,031,919 
Elections & Records 7,605 7,605 
Community Justice & Safety 491,121 491,121 
Planning, Development & 

Natural Resources 31,450 2,454,832 2,486,282 
Transportation 2,931,256 I,On,8:!1 3,959,077 -
Totai expenditures 61,576,655 17,669,458 33,952,103 5,032,183 _ 20,547,720 .138,778,119 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) <,xpenditures (1,411,689) (l ,571 ,990) 1,947,678 (14,150,759) (13,169,7722-

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (IJSES) 
Transfers in 1,408,989 880,515 3,179,703 13,083 19,824,502 25,306,792 
Transfers out (25,406,146) (1,657,250) _---1Z1'9,3(9) (27,842,705) 

Total other financing sources ~;l97,157) 880,515 3,179,703 19,045,193 __ (2,535,9.!2!. 

Net change in fund balanc,~s (21,980,169) (531,174) 1,607,713 303,51 I 4,894,434 (15,705,685) 

Fund balances - beginning 71,446,372 14,806,094 15,805,624 6,591,546 16,054,K!3 124,704,459 
Increase in reserve for invenlones 336,800 . _____ ,__ 336,800 •. 

------

Fund ba!'ll1ces - ending $ 49,466,203 $ 14,611,720 $ 17,413,337 $ 6,895,057 $ 20,949,257 $ lO9,335,574 .. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis statement. 4 ---'---



Jackson County, Oregon 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

Amounts rep0l1('d for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because: 

Net change in fimd balances - total governmental funds 

Goverr mental funds report the change in inventories as a change in fund balance. 
However, in the statement of activities the change is included in expenses. 

Goverrmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the statement of 
ac:ivities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reportl~d as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays 
exceeded depreciation during the year. 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 

In the statement of activities, only the gain (loss) on the sale of capital assets is reported. 
However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial 
re~;ources. Thus, the change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance 
by the cost of the capital assets sold. 

The issuance oflong-terrn debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, 
while repayment oflong-terrn debt principal consumes current financial resources of 
governmental funds. However, neither transaction has any effect on net assets. Also, 
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs and similar items when debt is 
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of 
activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences. 

Long-ternl debt principal repaid 
Amortization of debt issuance costs 

Revenues in the statement of activities that did not provide current fmancial resources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds. This is the effect of the change in the deferral 
of these amounts during the year. 

Property taxes 
Assessments 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental 
fu ~ds. This is the effect of the change in these liabilities during the year. 

Net pension obligation 
Net OPEB obligation 
Compensated absences 
Accrued interest on debt 

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation ofintemal service fund activities related to 
gc-vemmental activities. 

Chang': in net assets of governmental activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

17,661,170 
(12,121,099) 

3,073,485 
(74,422) 

267,499 
(237,018) 

271,523 
(282,630) 
(217,741) 

10,872 

$ (15,705,685) 

336,800 

5,540,071 

(10,494,589) 

2,999,063 

30,481 

(217,976) 

352,121 

5 



Jackson County, Oregon 
General Fund 

Statement of RE~venues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budg(~t ailld Actual 
__ ,__ For the fiscal year ended J1nllc 3~: 2012 

REVENUES 

Intergovernmental 

Charges for services 

Licenses and permits 

Fines ~nd forfeitures 

Taxes 

Interest 

IViiscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDrruREs 

General Government: 

Assessor 

Finance 

County Administration - Emergency Management 

Fiduciary 

Total General Gov,~rnment 

Elections &: Records' 

Coun~y Clerk 

Community Justice & Safety: 

District Attorney 

Jackson County Justice Court 

Sheriff 

Community Justice 

Total Community Justice & Safety 

Culture & Recreation: 

Library 

Planning, Development & Natural Resources: 

Economic and Special Dev.elopment 
Development Services 

Total Planning, Development & Natural Resources 

Total (:xpenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
T (ansfers in 

Transfers out 

T atal other financing sources and uses 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund halance - beginning 

Fllnd halan,;e - ending 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Varianc.~ with 

Final Budget Original Final 
--~==;;....- -- ~ 

23,584,003 

9,512,400 

162,070 

2,169,985 

32,502,986 

1,024,114 

235,658 

69,191,216 

3,691,746 

848,916 

230,229 
4,538,574 

9,309,465 

1,435,636 

4,770,726 

558,903 

28,734,815 

14,770,130 

48,834,574 

6,069,541 

$ 23,021,559 $ 18,753,434 $ (4,268,125) 

9,592,790 8,919,967 (672,823) 

162,070 192,380 30,310 

2,169,985 1,937,502 (232,483) 

32,502,986 32,219,648 (283,338) 

1,024,114 1,034,952 10,838 

___ ...;2;.;;3,;;.5,~6;;,;58;.,. __ 535,7~ __ 2.00,102 

68,709,162 ~:!l.. _ (5,115,519) 

4,167,957 

848,916 

366,623 

3,808,363 

3,968,933 199,024 

809,455 .19,461 

281,733 84,890 

576,318 _~12,045 

1,435,636 ___ I,220,0~ __ . __ 2""..;.,,--_ 

4,779,228 

558,903 

28,734,815 

4,416,797 

481,036 

26,126,341 
13,942,998 

362,431 

77,867 

2,608,474 

__ ...,;4.::;,;8,:;;.84;.::3,.;,;;,0.:,,76;.,. __ ---..:44,967,172 

5,694,798 574,743 

1,000,092 1,275,687 851,951 423,736 
3,721,332 3,721,332 3,206,228 

__ 4-,,7_2_1,,-42_4 _____ -"'----'---' ______ 4,058, I?:L _____ .. ---' __ 
___ 7;,.;0.;;;,3;,.;.7.;.;0,~64.;..;0;,.;. ___ 7;,.;0,::.;,7..;;.3.;.:7,.;..;13;;.;1 _ ___ ..;;61,576,655 

$ 

(1,179,424) (2,027,969) 

578,273 

(25,486,958) 

1,426,818 

(25,486,958) 

2,016,988 

1,408,989 
(25,406,146 ) 

4,0'14,957 

( 17,829) 

80,812 

(24,908,685) 

(26,088, I 09) 

71,351,727 

45,263,618 $ 

(24,060,140) ___ ..Q3,997,157) ____ 62,983 

(26,088, I 09) (21,980,169) 4,107,940 

45,263,618 $ 49,466,203 _~_ 4~)2,58~ 

!he accompanying notes are !!!_in_t_e.;;;g_ra_'..:p_a_rt_o_f_t_h_i_s_st_a_te_ffi_e_rt.t_, _________________ . 6 



Jackson County, Oregon 
General Road Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

Bud/ilieted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Ori/iliinal Final Amounts Final Budget 

REVENUES 
llllte rgovernmental $ 13,427,121 $ 13,427,121 $ 13,942,266 $ 515,145 
Charges for services 1,645,091 1,645,091 2,067,802 422,711 
Interest 275,000 275,000 205,204 (69,796) 
Mis ce Ilaneous 42,497 42,497 

Total revenues 15,347,212 15,347,212 16,257,769 910,557 

EXPENDITURES 
CUI rent: 

Transportation: 
Personal services 8,020,341 8,020,341 7,106,883 913,458 
Materials and services 8,418,445 8,383,445 7,63] ,319 752,126 
Contingency 200,000 200,000 200,000 

Total Transportation 16,638,786 16,603,786 14,738,202 1,865,584 

Capital outlay: 
Transportation 4,171,169 4,206,169 2,931,256 1,274,913 

Total expenditures 20,809,955 20,809,955 17,669,458 3,140,497 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over t5,462,7431 ~5,462,7431 ~1,411,6891 4,051,054 
(under) expenditures 

OlliER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfer in 880,515 880,515 880,515 

Net change in fund balances (4,582,228) (4,582,228) (531,174) 4,051,054 

fur.ld balance - beginning 12,068,426 12,068,426 14,806,094 2,737,668 
Change in reserve for inventories 336,800 336,800 

fund balance - ending $ 7,486,198 $ 7,486,198 $ 7,125,522 

The acccmpanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 7 



Jacks.on COllllI1ty, Oregon 
Health and Humalil Services Fund 

Statement oj[ Rf:venues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgf-t and Actual 
________________ F_o_r_t_h_e_fi_ls_c_al~y:;....(~~ended Junle 3~: 2012 

BudBeted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts _FinaIBI:~ -----

REVENUES 
lntt!rgovemmental $ 38,856,133 $ 40,209,346 $ 28,731 ,365 $ (1l,477,981) 
Charges for servic'es 3,269,607 3,333,607 1,897,529 (1,436,078) 
Licenses and penn its 1,210,600 1,210,600 1,125,288 (85,312) 
I~ines and forfeitures 123,850 123,850 112,634 (11,216) 
interest 165,000 65,000 285,893 220,893 
Miscellaneous __ -1.Q,000 10,000 __ 227,404 __ ---.?l7,404 

Total revenues ~,635,190 44,952,403 -..B;:l80,113 __ Q2,~Q2,2922.. 

EXPENDITURES 
CUlTent: 

Health & Human Servicf:s: 
Personal sl!rvices 20,314,003 20,262,399 18,085,279 2,177,120 
Materials and services 27,204,988 28,496,657 ---..!2.~~6~,824 __ 12,629,833 

Total Health & Human Services 47,518,991 48,759,056 33,952,103 14,806,953 

Capital outlay: 
Health & Human Services __ 3,500,000 3,500,000 __ 3,500,000 -----

Total expenditures 51,018,991 52,259,056 --1l~~ __ 18,3.Q6,953 

Excess (deficit!ncy) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (7,383,801) (7,306,653) (1,571,990) 5,734,663 

OnlER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfer in 3,179,703 3,179,703 _3_,179,703 -------

Net change in fund balances ( 4,.204,098) (4,126,950) 1,607,713 5,734,663 

Fund balance - beginning 15,200,434 15,123,286 ~JW5,624 __ ._.~!2,33~ 

Fund balance - endling $ 10,996,336 $ 10,996,336 $17,413,337 $ 6,417,001 

2'hea:~~~lyingno~~~~_in_te~g~ra_l~p_art_of_t_h_is_s_ta_te_m_e_n.t. ______________ __ 8 



Jackson County, Oregon 
Special Revenue Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Fine!; and forfeitures 
Inlterest 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
G(:m:ral Government: 

County Schools 
Tith: III 
Titl<: II 
Video Lottery 

Total General Government 

Elections & Records: 
~:urveyor 

Community Justice & Safety: 
Court Security 

Culture & Recreation: 
Law Library 
Sports Park Mitigation 

Total Culture & Recreation 

Planning Development & Natural 
Resources: 

Solid Waste Management 

$ 

Bud~eted Amounts 
Original Final 

2,849,395 $ 3,846,990 
1,353,648 1,353,648 

17,000 22,000 
80,340 84,340 

6,792 6,792 

4,307,175 

1,000,000 1,000,000 
3,819,046 3,819,046 
1,500,000 1,500,000 

25,500 

6,319,046 6,344,546 

1,492,597 1,492,597 

524,434 524,434 

699,555 699,555 
151,595 

699,555 

1,922,828 1,922,828 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

Actual Variance with 
Amounts Final Budget 

$ 5,295,082 $ 1,448,092 
1,498,999 145,351 

18,450 (3,550) 
153,893 69,553 

13,437 6,645 

6,979,861 1,666,091 

490,291 509,709 
1,857,157 1,961,889 
1,211,145 288,855 

25,500 

3,558,593 2,785,953 

552,285 940,312 

206,837 317,597 

294,946 404,609 
21,462 130,133 

316,408 534,742 

188,996 1,733,832 

(Continues) 

9 
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Jackson County~, Oregolll 
Speciall Rev(;~nue Fund 

Statemel1lt of R{~yenues, Expenditures, ~md Changes il1l FUl1ld Balance - Budgt~t and Actual 
(Continued) 

________________ F_o_r_t_h_e_fi_ls_c_a_1 =-y_t~a,r ,el1lded Jlune 3~;, 2012 

EXPENDITURES (Continued) 

Transportation: 
County Trails 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfer~: out 

Total other financing sources and uses 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts _.E~!ill~~ 

$ 361,479 
-'---, 

(7,012,764) 

118,083 
_--->(_859,097) 

_----'(_841 ,014) 

(7,853,778) 

_....;..::7,.,;;.;;853,778 

$ 

$ 361,479 _$ __ 209,064 _L_~2,415 

11,497,034 __ 5_,032,183 __ ..h4.&4,851 

18,083 13,083 (5,000) 
(1,688,597) ~557,250) ___ ll,347 

(1,670,514) ---D.~544,167) ____ 16,341-

(7,853,778) 303,511 8,157,289 

7,853,778 __ 6_,:591,546 ___ (1,262,2322. 

$ $ 6~g95,057 =$ _ 6,8,2;5,057 

2~he a~~~npal1yjng nl:!:~~~_in_te...;g;;..r_al_p;_a_rt_o_f_th_i_s_st_a_te_m_e_n_lt. ____________ , 10 



Jackson County, Oregon 
Statement or Net Assets 
Proprietary Funds 
June 30, 2012 

Business-Tv£!: Activities - Enterl:!rise Funds 
Exposition Exposition 

Park Park Airport Airport 
Current Year Prior Year Current Y car Prior Year 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and inv"stments $ 251,773 $ 137,529 $ 16,978,322 $ 15,336,168 
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 74,599 80,656 477,487 774,647 
Deposits and prepaid items 3,711 141 175 
Due from other ftends 776 9,448 550,224 213,017 
Inventorie,s 167,140 126,465 

Total current assets 330,859 227,633 18,173,314 16,450,472 

Noncurrent assets: 
Deferred charges - bond issuance costs 643,649 691,808 
Cash restricted to payment of long-term debt 983,582 1,001,544 

Total restricted assets 1,627,231 1,693,352 
Capital asset!: 

Land 822,237 822,237 15,586,464 15,277,983 
Buildings 10,722,499 10,474,287 68,649,420 69,541,794 
Softwar! 
Improvrmen ts other than buildings 776,440 776,440 46,355,934 44,790,334 
Equipm!nt 193,564 193,564 4,202,087 4,173,915 
Construotion in progress 4,326,874 3,240,980 
Less accumulated depreciation !6,049,372l (5,609,82I l (40,150,842l {38.7S0,530l 

Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 6,465,368 6,656,707 98,969,937 98,274,476 

Total noncurrent assets 6,465,368 6.656,707 100,597,168 99.967.828 

Total assets 6,796,227 6,884,340 II 8,770,482 116,418)00 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 58,021 66,748 265,026 295,338 
Accrued claims liability 
Due to other 'bnds 190,484 178,852 1,359,166 247,775 
Revenue bonds payable, current 355.000 340,000 
Contract paY,lble, current 10,000 10,000 
Accrued interest payable 81,965 85,572 
Compensated abs,~nces 
Deferred rev"nue 219,551 221,654 183,729 147,773 
Retainages and other liabilities 259,412 103,076 

Total current liabilities 468,056 467,254 2514,298 1.229.534 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Revenue bon,is payable (net of unamortized discounts 

and deferred amount on refunding) 19,207,932 19,604,310 
Contracts pa)ablc, net of current portion 88,334 98,334 

Total noncurrent liabilities 19,296,266 19,102,644 

Total liabilities 468,056 467,254 21,810,564 20,932,178 

NEr ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 6,465,368 6,656,707 79,952,320 78,913,640 
Restricted for debt service 1,338,582 1,341,544 
Unrestricted (137, 1971 (239,62 ]) 15,669,016 15.230.938 

Total net assets $ 6,328,171 $ 6,417,086 l> 96,959.918 $ 95,486,122 

Aejustrnent to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds 

Net assets of business-type activities 

The accomp~ying notes are an integral part ofthis statement. II 



Jackson COlllnty, Oregolll 
Statemenlt of Net Assets (Continued) 

Pmpriehllry F1llnds 
Jun~~ 30, 2012 ------------_._-------_._---------

___ ..;;;B...;;u.o;.sin,ess-Type Activities - Enterpris,!; Funds (Continued) 

Recreation RecIeation 

Enterprisl! Enterprise Total 

Cunent Y(~ar 
-----~---

$ 916,630 
20,335 

73,723 

1,383,235 
6,162,724 

4,85.:i,915 
251,357 

485 
__ (6,59::.2§.1l. 

___ 6,05~',75L 

___ ~:.22.L 
___ 7,068,44~. 

4\451 

42,611 

110,339 

6,057,755 

812 287 
---~--

$ 

Prior Year 

841.,772 
12,.904 

61,833 

___ ....;C)16,50~. 

---'-_._-

1,514,962 
6,051,916 

4,721,150 
280,963 

70,419 
___ 1~!45,12(~. 

___ 6,394,290 •. 

___ i..:",,394,29(~. 

___ 7,"",31O,795~. 

37,127 

43,891 

____ ,81,018 

____ 81,018 

6,394,290 

---....;!~~.!... 

=$===7=,229,781_: 

$ 

$ 

Current Year 

18,146,725 
572,421 

3,852 
624,723 
167,140 

19,514,861 

643,649 
983,582 

1,627,231 

17,791,936 
85,534,643 

51,986,289 
4,647,008 
4,327,359 

(52,794,175) 

I II ,493,060 

113,120,291 

132,635,152 

368,498 

1,592,261 
355,000 

10,000 
81,965 

513,619 
259,412 

3,180,755 

19,207,932 
88,334 

19,296,266 

22,477,021 

92,475,443 
1,338,582 

16,344,106 

110,158,131 

(1,363,301l 

108,794,830 

$ 

$ 

Government 

Activities -

Internal 

Service Fund 

19,005,486 
36,037 

210,897 
629,112 

52,103 

19,933,635 

382,150 
631,400 
350,939 

8,723,947 

(6,717,014) 

3,371,422 

3,371,422 

23,305,057 

913,576 
4,298,474 
1,080,707 

2,104,194 
32,063 
14,029 

8,443,043 

8,443,043 

3,371,422 

11,490,592 

14,862,014 

The accoill~~~'ing ~~m int:2'_a_l.:.p_art_o •• f_t_h_is_s_t_at_e_ill_e_n_t_, ___________________ _ 12 



Jackson County, Oregon 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

Proprietary Funds 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

Business-Type Activities-
Ente!:!!ris. Funds 

Govemmenlal 
Exposition Exposition Airpon Airpcn Recreation Recreation Total Activities 

Park Park Current Prior Enterprise Enterprise Current (ntema) 

Current Year Prior Year Year Year Current Year Prior Year Year Service F lIlId 

Operating revenues 
Intergovernmen.al $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 110,035 
Charges for services 1,474,899 1,346,268 7,145,941 7,364,958 816,869 881,569 9,437,709 18,767,364 
Fines and forfeitures 5,648 7,445 155 303 5,803 
Miscellaneous 232,400 150,161 24,279 38,470 2,984 3,094 259,663 5,407 

Total operati IS revenues 1,707,299 1,4%,429 7,175,868 7,410,873 820,008 884,966 9.703,175 18,882,806 

Operating expenses. 
Salaries and wa!:es 297,980 333,900 1,387,672 1,380,741 480.525 506,124 2,166,177 5,578,077 
Payroll taxes and herdits 128,905 130,574 790,417 702,333 216,148 199,408 1,135,470 2,657,409 
General operatir g expenses 348,877 279,133 400,868 349,506 92,638 83,781 842,383 7,011,610 
Special fees 227,800 345,910 227,800 
Property maintellanCI~ and utilities 257,212 252,274 944,931 904,013 293,528 248,227 1,495,671 1,954525 
Equipment maintenan.ce 89,202 76,725 139,922 148,546 44,876 33,084 274,000 1,469,354 
Professional ane other 

suppon ;;.ervices 496,027 362,341 1,359,432 1,537,497 509,036 5,242,796 2 .. 364,495 931,147 
Depreciation 439,551 431,785 4,577,386 4,521,298 403,448 384,893 5,420,385 1,106,604 
Other 1,297 1,759 50,598 42,145 7,863 6,307 59,758 657,448 

Total operating eApenses 2,286,851 2,214,401 9,651,226 9,586,079 2,048,062 6,704,620 13,986,139 2L366J74 

Operating in,;om(, (loss) \579,5521 \717,9721 \2,475,3581 )2,175,2061 \1.228,0541 (5,819,654) 14.282,%41 (2,483,368) 

Nonoperating re.ver:ues {expenses): 
Intergovernmem al revenues 50,002 36,031 783,580 5,728,571 833,582 
Passenger facililY charges 1,171,582 1,221,832 1,171,582 
Interest reve:1ue 2,091 664 160,033 287,196 13,918 16,910 276,042 328,496 
Interest expense 

(net ofamoll,t capitalized) ( 1,046,095) (1,066,760) (1,046,095) 
Amortization of bond premirnn 41,378 41,379 41,378 
Gain on sale of:ixed assets 43,437 6,207 49,644 121,606 
Loss on sa1e of fixed assets (192,818) (131,727) ___ (23,479) 1'3245451 !64.7121 

Total nonoperating revenues 
(expense,,) 95,530 36,695 234,080 483,647 671,978 ___ 5,722,002 1.001588 385,390 

Income (loss) before (484,022) (681,277) (2.241,278) (1,691,559) (556,076) (97,652) (3.281,376) (2,097,978) 
contributions and transfers 

Capita! contribdiolls 204,775 17,480 3,663,406 2,626,869 110,808 3,978,989 
Transfers in 190,332 13,071 51,668 89,389 96,762 331,389 2,229,929 
Transfers out (5,0001 13,8601 (3,8601 (2 L545) 

Change in nt"t assets (88,915) (655,726) 1,473,796 935,310 (359,739) (890) 1.025J42 110,406 

Total net assets - Ix ginning 6,417.086 7,072,812 95,486,122 94,550,812 7,229,781 7,230,671 14,75 I .608 

Total net assets ~ el ding S 6,417,086 $ %,959.918 $ 95,486,122 $ 7,229,781 $ 14,862,014 

Adjustll",nt 10 reneet the consolidation of inten,.1 service fund activities related to enterprise fnnds. (258,0601 

Change in net assets of business-type activities $ 767,082 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 13 



Cash flov .. s from operatng aCbvities: 
Sal~ cf goods and services 
Receipts fmm intc:rfund !;ervices provided 
Employee paymil payments 

Purchases of goods and ~er¥lces 

Re(:eipts from ollt,ide agencies 

Payments H: r int:;lfund sl~rvices provided 

.md ""ed 
Other openrting receipts 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating tlCb'tllies 
operating acdviries 

Cash flows from Iloncapital financing activities 
Transfers receivea 
Transfers ppjd 

Operating subsidies received 

Net cash p""vided by (used in) 
noncapital financing activities 

Cash flo\\'S from i:apital and related financing ;l.::tivities: 
Capital grants 
Pro:::eeds fr':-m sali~ of caj)ital assets 
Deht principal pa}menls 
Debt Interest payments 
Pur,:::hase of capital asseu" 
Pro,;et.-ds frcm passenger facility charges 
Car nal con1 r'lbutlcln 

Net cash pm\ided by (uS';d to) capital and 
related finandng activities 

Cash flows from investing actiVIties' 
Interest on investments 

Net increaSt~ (de(:r.~ase) iu cash and investments 

Cash and im'-estnl(mts - beginning 

Casll and investments ~ e:lwng 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net 
casIl pJ'(p,,ridfd by (used ir,) op~rating acriv:ties 
Operating Income (loss) 

Adjustment;: to r,~:oncde operating incomJ~ 
(loss) (0 nel cash provided by 
(used Ul ) operating activities: 
Depredation 

(Incre;lse) decrease in: 
.&\CCOUflts re~j ... able 
Interfund rewivable 

Prepaio expenses 
Invent('ries 

Incr~e (decrease) in: 
Accounts payab1e 

Jad;son County, Oreg;on 
Stat.ernE,"t of Cash Flows 

JPlt'oprietary !Funds 
_____________________ F_o_r_t_h~scal yl::!!.~!!!.:!::me 30, 2{~12 

Business~ Tl:ee ACb\-;bes ~ Ente!Ense Funds Governmr.nta; 

Exposition EXpOsition Airport Airport Recreation Recreation Acri"lties 

Park Park Current Prior Enterprise Enterprise Internal 

-~~ Prior Year Year Year Current Year -~~.--~- SeIVice Fund -------
1,487,525 1,399,143 $ 7,000,941 8,441,369 904,246 360,789 9,392,712 

18,752,157 

(426,885) (464,473) (2,178,089) (2,083,07") (696,673) (705,531) (3,JOl,647) (8,360",621 

(1,289,726) (1,On,635) .;912,124) (3,186,129) (622,539) (6,207,553) (2.82089) (10,376.1951 

168.732 

(lJI,495) (127.233) (786,853) (818,172) (318,358) (339,452) (1.236,706) (1,009';241 

_-2!1:!.22.. 150,161 --~---~ 3,139 ______ ~. ___ 265.466 58,f~:::'_ 

(l28,181) (55.037) 3,153,802 2.399.909_ (730, 1851 _~l&8.350) • __ ~ ____ J2~£!!. 

190,332 B,071 51,668 89,389 96,762 3>JJ89 2,229,S29 

(5,000) (3,860) (3,860) (21,.':A.5) 

50,002 36,031 ------ 787,221 _~~ . __ ...!E.E.. 

~:!l!.. 44,102 ___ 51,668 872,750 __ ~91,359 • __ ..!l~~,lli,.. ____ g~!:!. 

3.804,315 2,752,029 3,804,315 

6,207 121,606 

(350,000) (330,000) (350.000) 
(L001,543) (1.018,600) 0.001.543) 

(5.465,665) (3,519,521) (87,832) (235,008) 15,553,497) (1,0:14,517]. 

1.171,582 1,221,832 1,17l.582 
_____ • __ ..1.!.2,808 _, ______ ,. 

(L84I,3111 (894,26°1 (81,625) (235.008) __ !.!.:!!.!lm_ (902,91.!l. 

____ 2,'22L 664 260,033 287,196 13.918 16.910 ___ ~,042 328,496 

114,244 (10,271) 1.624.192 1,792,845 74,858 84.911 1,917,895 867,766 

_--1E .. ?12.. 147,800 __ 1_6 illZ!1... ;7,317,013 18,m,7:!2-. 

..! 251,773 137,529 $ 17,961,904 ; $ ; 9,234,908 19,005,4~ 

..!~)52) (717,972) ~475,358) (2,175,206) $ (1,228,0541 (5,819,6541 __ $ _:4,232,9641 $ (2.483.368) 

439,551 431,785 4,577..386 4,521,298 403,448 384,892 5,420,385 1.106.604 

6,057 (6.109) 156.251 418,794 (1 L072) (187) 15J.236 2,647 
8,672 1.655 (337,207) 597,685 (11,890) (20,593) (3'10,425) 94,325 

(3,m) 15,551 34 (50) (3,677) (102,357\ 

(40,675) 340 (40,675) (14,613) 

(8:127) 1l,049 (30,312) (315,324) 8,324 (868,642) (:<0,715) 64,894 

Accrued payroll, withholdings & benefits: 31,527 

Accrued claims liability 209,6'10 
liltert'ulld pay,",le ll,632 150,675 1,111,391 (683.689) (1,280) (20,485) 1,121,743 469,173 

Compelsated absences (156,4')3) 

Deferred rev-e:me and other liabilities F,12-!l 57,329 192.292 36.061 110,339 ______ (43,68q ____ ~~ 1l,6:L 

Total adjustm,mts ~!Z!... 662,935 5.629.160 (568,6961 ___ ~S~ J,717,1'~L 

Net cash provided by (ust:d in) operating acttvittes (128,181) (55,037) 3,153,802 $ J2288,3501 = $ _1,292;436 (766,2'~g: 

Noncash lfl\'esrin,~!" ca(:lllal and financing activt1ies: 
Capital conllibut:ons 204.775 17,480 2Q4,775 

Capital assel add] tions (204,775) (17,480) (204,775) 

Book value of capi tal assets sold 192,818 60,225 1<)2,818 04,711 

Gain (loss) en sale of capital assets (192,8181 (60,2251 --~~ (O4,7l.ll. 

Tolall10nC2'Sn investing, capital and 
finandllg activities $ 

= 

The accompanying n~~!:!!.!!:.!.:J:>,;;;.Jr_a_l.:.p_a_rt_o_f_t_h_is_s_t_a_te_m_e_n_t •. _____________________________ 1_4 



ASSETS 
Cash anc investments: 

Pooled cash and investments $ 
GUHanteed deposits 
Mutual fund investments 

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 

TOI al assets 

LIABIUTIE S 
Account; payable 
Amount~; held in trust 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Held in trust for employees' pension benefits $ 

The a(;companying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

Jackson County, Oregon 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 

Fiduciary Funds 
June 30, 2012 

Jackson County 
Employees' 
Retirement Agency 

Plan Trust Fund 

$ 3,341,595 
7,244,738 

10,605,890 
15,091,980 

17,850,628 

169,193 

17,850,628 
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ADDITIONS 
Contributions - employer 
Investment earnings (loss) 

ToM additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Benefits 
Administrative expense 

Total deductions 

Change in m:t assets 

Net ass(:ts - beginning 

Net assds - t:nding 

Jacksolll County, Oregon 
Statement of Changes in Fidudary Net A.ssets 

F'iduciary 118'unds 
' ________________ F_(_'r_t_h_e_fi_ls_c_a_l~yl:!!:. ended ~rune 30" 2012 

Jackson County 
Employees' 
Retirement 

Plan Trust Fund 

$ 1,139,638 
____ Q9,539) 

____ ~0,099 

1,622,019 
___ ._._.!6,77~:.... 

____ ...u~8,793 

(518,694) 

___ ._18,~~9,322_ 

}he a:~~~nyi~~~~2,_in_t....;eg;;..r_a_l, p;...a_rt_o_f_t_h_is_s_ta_te_m_e_r,_lt. ___________ , 16 
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JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financi:lIl Statements 

J~ul!le 30,,2012 
------------------------------------------------------------
I. Summary of significant accounting policies: 

A. Description of government-wide financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) 
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. All 
Hduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial statements. Governmental activities, which nonnally 
are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions, are reported separately 
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external customers for 
support .. 

B. Reporting entity 

Jackson County was formed January 12, 1852 under the predecessor chapter to Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 
202. Its present home rule charter, effective January 8, 1979 (revised November 2, 1999) was adopted under 
Article VI, Section 10, of th,~ Oregon State Constitution. Its boundaries are established by ORS 201.150.. The 
County is governed by a Board of Commissioners consisting of three independently elected members serving 
staggered four-year terms. The accompanying financial statements present the County and its component units, 
entiti,~s for which the County is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units are, in 
substance, part of the primary government's operations, even though they are legally separate entities. Thus, 
blended component units are appropriately presented as funds of the County (the primary government). The 
County has three blended component units which are included in this report. 

Blended component units: 

J'ackson County Urban Renewal Agency (Agency) - The Agency was created in April 1991 under the provisions 
of state law as the agency :responsible for rebuilding the infrastructure, public facilities and parks in the White 
City area. The "tax increment financing" method is being used to provide funds for the Agency. The s{:parate 
June 30, 2012 financial statements of Jackson County Urban Renewal Agency are available at the County's 
administrative offices. The Agency consists of the three elected members of the County's Board of 
Commissioners. The Agency is administered by the County's Administrator's Office. A seven-member 
Advisory Committee: appointed by the Agency makes recommendations on project priorities and plan 
amendments. 

White C.J!LEnhanced Law Enforcement District - The District was created June 14, 1995, under the provisions 
of state law, by the Jackson County Board of Commissioners. The District is support·~d by a permanent propel1y 
tax rate per thousand of$2.0211. The Jackson County Board of Commissioners, which also serves as the Board 
of the District, oversees policy direction for the District. The Jackson County Sheriffs Office ha~, enten::d into a 
contractual agreement with the District to provide enhanced public safety service within District boundaries. 
The District's separate June 30, 2012 financial statements are available at the County's administrative offices. 

17 



JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

I. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued): 

White C!1LLighting District The District was created on May 26, 2004 under the provisions of state law, for 
the purpose of providing for the operations and maintenance of street lighting to citizens living within the 
district. In the November 2, 2004 election, the citizens within the district passed a permanent rate levy of $.047 
per $1,000 assessed valuation to fund District operations. The Jackson County Board of Commissioners, which 
also serves as the Board of the District, oversees policy direction for the District. The District's separate June 30, 
2012 financial statements are available at the County's administrative offices. 

C. Basis of presentation - government-wide financial statements 

While s,eparate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. The 
governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental and internal service funds, while business­
type activities incorporate data from the government's enterprise funds. Separate financial statements are 
provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded 
from tbe government-wide financial statements. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the 
government's general fund and general road fund and various other functions of the county. Elimination of 
these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
Indirect expenses consisting of building depreciation are allocated based on utilized square footage. 

D. lBasis of presentation fund financial statements 

The fund financial statements provide information about the County's funds, including its fiduciary funds and 
blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category governmental, proprietary, and 
fiduciary are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise 
funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated 
and repc,rted as nonmajor funds. Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements. 

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

The gen'?ral fund is the County's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
goverI11T.ent, except for those accounted for in another fund. 

The g,m.~ral road fund accounts for Road User Taxes collected by the state. The expenditures of the road fund 
are restricted under Article IX of the Constitution of the State of Oregon for construction, reconstruction, 
improvement, repair, maintenance, operation, use and policing of public highways, roads and streets within the 
County. 

18 



JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financhnl Statements 

J"ul!le 30" 2012 

L Summary of significaut accounting policies (Continued): 

The health and human services fund is used to account for state funds restricted to the provision of health 
servkes. This fund accounts for the expenditures of public health, mental health, resta.urant inspection, 
environmental health and veterans' services. 

The special revenues fund was established to individually account for various revenues that are restricted or 
committed to expenditures for specific purposes, and are not established as other special revenue funds. 
Departments within this fund are Surveyor, County Trails, Law Library, Liquor Enfi)rcement, Title II, Title III, 
Solid Waste Management, Court Security, County Schools, Sports Park Mitigation, and Video Lottery. 

The County reports the following m~~or enterprise funds: 

The (~xposition park fund accounts for the operations of the County's Exposition Park, including the: annual 
c:ouniy filir. 

The airport fund accounts for the operations and capital projects of the Rogue Valley Interna1ional-Medford 
Airport. 

The recreation enterprise fund accounts for the operations of the extensive parks system. 

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types: 

The internal service fund accounts for the County's self-insurance (general liability, auto liability, workers' 
c;ompensation servicl~s and manager's health benefits), motor pool, computer replacement and general 
administrative support functions ("central services") that are charged to other departments on a cost­
reimbursement basis. 

The pension trust fund accounts for the County's single employer pension plans. 

Agency funds account for property taxes collected on behalf of other taxing districts, and miscellaneous fees 
(:ollected on behalf of other government agencies. 

During the course of operations the government has activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual 
balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds. While these balances are reported in 
fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial 
statements. Balances between the funds included in governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and internal 
service funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the governmental 
activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities (Le." the enterprise 
funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the business··type activities 
(:olumn. 
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JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

L Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued): 

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In fund financial 
statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in fund financial 
statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. 
Transfer:; between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is 

included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in 
business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the business-type 
activitie~: column. 

E. Measurement focus and basis of accounting 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis 
of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial 
resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for 
recognition in the financial statements. 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability 
is incurr~d, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year 
for wbich they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requinernents imposed by the provider have been met. 

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measure3.ble and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current 
period cr soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt 
service expenditures, and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset 
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions 
under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

Property taxes collected within 60 days of year-end, state, county and local shared revenues, federal and state 
grants (10 the extent that revenues are recorded as eligible expenditures are incurred), and interest associated 
with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as 
revenues ofthe current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only 
when cash .is received by the government. 

The proprietary and pension trust funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. The agency funds have no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of 
accounting for reporting its assets and liabilities. 

20 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



---- ----------------------, 

JACKSON COUNTY, OREG~ON 
Notes to }i'inancia:l Statements 

June 30~, 2012 

l. Summary of signitkant ac(:ounting policies (Continued): 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December I, 1989, general.ly are 
follo'wed in both tht~ government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the ,extent that those 
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type 
activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The government has elected not to follow 
subsequent private-sector guidance. 

F. Assets, liabilities, and net assets/fund balance 

1. Cash and investments 

The County's cash consists of bank demand deposits, investments which are short-term (less than 90-day 
maturity at purchase) highly liquid instruments and deposits considered to be cash equivalents" The County 
maintains a ,~ash and investment management pool that is available for use by all funds, except the pensiol1 trust 
fund. The cash and investment management pool has the general characteristic of a demand dt~posit account for 
all County funds in that these funds may deposit additional cash at any time and also effectively may withdraw 
cash at any time without prior notice or penalty. 

The County reports ell short-term, highly-liquid money market investments and participating interest-earning 
investment contracts with a remaining maturity at time of purchase of three months or less at amortized cost. 
Investments with a remaining maturity at time of purchase of more than three months are valued at fair value. 
Investments held by others :fbr the pension trust funds are also valued at fair value. 

The County's investments at year-end consist of investments in the State of Oregon Local Government 
lnves:ment Pool, certiificates of deposit, Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), Federal Farm Credit 
Bank (FFCB), Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) 
certificates, corporate paper, and U.S. Government securities held under repurchase agreements, all of which are 
authorized by Oregon Revised Statutes. Interest earned from pooled investments is allocated to each fund based 
on each fund's portion of the total investment balance calculated on a daily basis. 

The County maintains depository insurance under federal depository insurance funds. The County also covers 
deposits with collateral held in a multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the: Oregon State 
Treasurer. The Local Government Investment Pool, repurchase agreements, commercial paper, banker's 
acceptances ,and U.S. Treasury and agency investments, are exempt from Statutes requiring such collateral. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes all assets in the cash and investment management 
pool, including cash and investments with fiscal agents which is restricted. 
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June 30, 2012 

I. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued): 

2. Receivables 

Activities between funds that are representative of lendinglborrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the 
fiscal year are referred to as "due to/from other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as 

"internal balances". 

Property tax receivables are deemed to be substantially collectible or recoverable through foreclosure. 
Accordingly, no allowance for doubtful tax accounts is deemed necessary. All other receivables are shown net 
of an allowance for uncollectibles. 

Assessments receivable, which represent minor improvements benefiting specific property owners, are financed 
by and recorded in the governmental funds. The receivables are offset by a deferred revenue account and are 
recorded as income as they become measurable and available. Substantially all assessments are receivable in 
instalhm:nts, including interest at 6% to 9%, over periods of 10 to 20 years. 

3. Inventories and prepaid items 

In the gc,vemmental funds, inventories consist primarily of road repair materials and supplies. Inventories are 
valued al: average cost and are shown in the balance sheet as an asset. The amount shown as inventory has been 
recorded as an expenditure (purchase method). In the proprietary funds, inventory of materials and supplies is 
valued. at lower of first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost or market. Expense is recognized as the materials and supplies 
are used. 

Deposits represent amounts held by others as agents of the County which remain the property of, and wiIl be 
returned to, the County. Payments to vendors which reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods are 
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items 
is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. 

4. Capital assets 

Capital assets, which includes land, property, equipment, infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, 
storm drains, street lighting, and similar items), and their improvements, are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets 
are defined by the County as assets with a useful life of more than one year and an initial, individual cost of 
more than $30,000 for intangible assets and $5,000 for other assets. Such assets are recorded at historical cost 
or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair 
market value at the date of donation. 
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I. Summary of signifIcant accounting policies (Continued): 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or mateirially extend asset 

Jives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 

constructed. Interest incurred during construction phases of capital assets of business-type activities is included 

as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. During the year, the county incurred no interest 

'~xpense for capital assetsfi:>]" business-type activities. 

Capital assets are d,epreciated unless they are inexhaustible in nature, such as land. Property, plant and 

equipment ofthe County, as well as the component units, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the 

estimated useful lives of the related assets. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized. 

The estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows: 

Buildings and improvements 

Equipment, including vehicles and software 

Roads 

Bridges 

Signals & street lights 

Software 

Storm drains & sidewalks 

7 to 50 years 

3 to 20 years 

30 to 40 years 

20 to 50 years 

20 years 

3 to 5 years 

30 years 

In general, an asphalt overlay of 2" or less is considered to be maintenance. An overlay of greater than 2", or 

which increases the capacity of the road system, is considered to be an increase to 1the original I ife of the road 

system and is capitalized. 

5. Fund balances and net assets 

In th'i! financial statements, assets in excess of liabilities are presented in one of hvo ways depending on the 
measurement focus used in the reporting fund. 

On the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds, assets in excess of liabilities are reported as fund balance 21nd are 

segregatfed into separate classifications indicating the extent to which the County is bound to honor constraints 
on the specific purposes fj)f which those funds can be spent. The County itself can establish limitations of the 

lIse of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund 
balance). 
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JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30,2012 

I. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued): 

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes 
detennined by a fonnal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority. The Board of 
Commissioners is the highest level of decision-making authority for the County that can, by Board Order, 
commit fund balance. Once ordered, the limitation imposed by the order remains in place until a subsequent 
order to remove or revise the limitation. Resources that are constrained by the County's intent to use them for a 
specific purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed, are reported as assigned fund balance. The County 
has not established a policy regarding the assignment of funds, so this category of fund balance represents the 
residual amounts not otherwise reported as unspendable, restricted or committed in governmental funds outside 
of the: General Fund. In the General Fund, it represents amounts assigned through order of the Board of 
Commi~sioner that do not qualify as committed because the assignment expires. 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is 
availabb, the County considers amounts to be spent in order from most restricted to least restricted: Restricted, 
Committed, Assigned, and then Unassigned. 

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, the proprietary funds' Statement of Net Assets, and the 
fiduciary funds' Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets, net assets are segregated into restricted and unrestricted 
balance~;. Restrictions are limitations on how the net assets may be used. Restrictions may be placed on net 
assets by an external party that provided the resources, by enabling legislation or by the nature of the asset. 

Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt represents total capital assets less accumulated 
depreciation less debt directly related to capital assets. This amount is reported on the Statement of Net Assets 
and in the financial statements for Proprietary Fund types. 

6. Self-insurance and accrued claims liability 

The County maintains self-insurance programs (included in the Internal Service Fund) for certain tort and 
general liability claims, management medical claims and workers' compensation. Premiums are charged to 
variolJS County funds based on periodically adjusted rates. Premium payments are recorded as expenditures or 
expenses in the insured fund and revenue in the insurer fund. Estimated liabilities for incurred but not reported 
claims have been accrued. 
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Notes to Ji'inanda.l Statements 

---------------,-----,--------------- J~e 30" 2012 

I. Summary of signincant accounting polic.ies (Continued): 

G, Revenues and expell1dItures/expenses 

1. Program revenues 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, lise, or 
directly bendit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to meeting the operatiional or capital 
requirements of a particular function. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes, and other 
internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. 

2. Properly laxes 

Property tax'~s attach an enforceable lien on real property and are levied on July 1. Property taxes are assessed 
in October and tax payments are due November 15th of the same year. Under the partial payment schedule, the 
first one-third of taxes are due November 15th, the second one-third on February 15th, and the remaining one­
third on May 15th. Real property taxes unpaid on May 16 are considered delinquent. Th~ County levies, 
collects and distributes property taxes for all taxing jurisdictions within its boundaries. 

3. Compensated absences 

Accumulated vested compensated absences which have been advance funded are reported in the Internal S,ervice 
Fund. Each pay period, newly accrued vacation in all funds is expensed as earned and transfened to the Internal 
Service Fund. Vacation time is charged against the liability balance as taken. Sick pay, which does not vest, is 
r,;:corded when leave is taken. 

4. Proprietary funds operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally re,sult from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
propr~etary fund's principal., ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the exposition park, the 
airport, the recreation enterprise funds, and the internal service fund are charges to customers for sales and 
services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service fund include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

5~ Lomparative data 

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented only for individual enterprise funds in the fund 
financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in the financial position Imd op(~rations 
of these funds. 
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JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

I. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued): 

6. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United ~~tates of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

II. Re.eonciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements 

A. Long-term liabilities not reported in the funds 

The governmental funds balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balances reported for 
governmental funds and net asset details reported for governmental activities. One element of that reconciliation 
is the explanation that "long-tenn liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not 
reported in the funds". The details of this $26,318,231 difference are as follows: 

Bonds payable: 
Genl~ral obligation bonds 
Urban renewal bonds 
Ban(:roft bonds 
U nam0l1ized bond premium 
Unamol1ized debt issuance costs/loss on refunding 

Compensated absences 
Net pem.ion obligation 
Net OPEB obligation 
Accrued interest on debt 

Net adjustment related to long-tenn liabilities 

$ 20,625,000 
1,700,000 

744,354 
637,886 

(1,232,586) 
2,386,640 
(171,096) 

1,553,830 
74,202 

$ 26,318,230 

The net pension obligation reflected above is the remaining balance estimated to exist as of June 30, 2012. The 
net pension obligation in Note G is the latest available actuarially detennined balance as of December 31,2011. 
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HI. Stew3lI"dship, compliance, and accoullltability 

A. Budlgetary information 

JACKSON COUNTY, ORE~GON 
Notes to Finandal Statements 

Jrune 30~, 2012 

Except for agency and pension trust funds, the Coun~y is required by State law to budget all funds. The Board 
Order authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the level by which expenditures cannot legally exceed 

appropriations. All funds are legally adopted and expenditures are controlled at various levels established by the 

resolution, as detailed below" 

Total expenditures by department/activity: 

General Fund 
Capital Proj(:cts Fund 
Library Debt Service Fund 

Special Revenue FUl1d 
Internal Service Fund 

Total expeflditur,es by exp,enditure type (persolllal services, materials and sc~rvices, c:apiital outlay, 
c:ontingency, and tr;ansfer t:o other funds): 

General Roads Fund 
Health and Human Services Fund 
Law Enhancement District 

Airport Enterprise Fund 
Exposition Park Enterprise Fund 
Recwation Enterprise Fund 

The latter level is the lowest level at which appropriations are adopted and the budgetary comparisons are 
prese:nted at this level. Unexpected additional resources may be added to the budget through the use of a 
supplemental budg(:t. A supplemental budget requires hearings before the public, publications in newspapers 
and approval by the Board of Commissioners. Original and supplemental budgets may be modified by the use of 
appropriatiol1 transfers between the levels of control. Such transfers require approval by the Board of 
Commissioners. The County Administrator's office has been assigned authority to make appropriation 
adjustments within funds, including interdepartmental and expenditure type, without Board of Commis.sioner 
approval, provided the totall appropriation for a fund is not increased and provided accumulated adjustments do 
not exc{~ed 10% of the applicable fund total. The County made numerous appropriation transfers during the year 
ended June 30, 2012 within funds, with Board of Commissioners' approval. Appropriations lapse as of year-end. 

The County budgets its governmental fund types on the modified accrual basis of accounting and its proprietary 
fund types, with the (:xception of capital expenditures, depreciation and debt principal, on the accrual basis of 
accounting. All budgets are adopted on a fiscal year basis. Actual expenditures or transfers out (on a budgetary 
basis) were less than the appropriations authorized by the Board of Commissioners. 
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IV. ][)etaiJed notes on all activities and funds 

A. Ca8h and investments 

JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

The County's cash and investments are comprised of the following at June 30,2012: 

Cash on hand and imprest funds 
Deposits with financial institutions 
Cash held by the Association ofO&C Counties 
Assets he d by others for the pension trust funds 
Investmellts 

Total cash and investments 

Less cash and investments in fiduciary funds 
Less cash and investments restrieted to payment of long-term debt 

Cash and inwstments, as reported in statement 0 f net assets 

$ 59,729 
49,441,207 

473,454 
17,850,628 

98,726,158 

166,551,176 

(21,192,222) 
(983,582) 

$ 144,375,372 

Deposita with financial institutions: Deposits with financial institutions are bank demand deposits and 

certific8ces of deposit. Deposits are covered by Federal Depository Insurance (FDIC) or by collateral held in a 
multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the Oregon State Treasurer. The total bank balance, 

as shown on the banks' records at June 30, 2012 is $51,382,032. Of these deposits, $1,255,000 was covered by 
FDIC ar:.d $50,127,032 was covered by the state collateral pool. 

Effectiw July 1,2008, the Oregon State Treasurer became responsible for monitoring public funds held by bank 
depositories in excess of FDIC insured amounts, and for assuring that public funds on deposit are collateralized 

to the extent required by Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 295. ORS Chapter 295 requires depository 
banks to place and maintain on deposit with a third-party custodian bank securities having a value of 10%, 25% 

or 110% of public funds on deposit depending primarily on the capitalization level of the depository bank. The 
$50,127,032 in County deposits covered by the state collateral pool is exposed to custodial credit risk because 

the collateral is not held by a third-party custodian bank in the County's name. 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the govenunent's deposits may 
not be thlly recovered through collateral. Through its investment policy, the County addresses custodial credit 
risk f()r deposits by limiting certificates of deposit to 65% of the investment portfolio. Tn addition, any single 
issuer of certificates of deposit is limited to 30% of the portfolio. At June 30, 2012, the County held $41,000,000 
in certircates of deposit, which represented 27.94% of the total portfolio at year-end. 

Cash hdd by the Association of O&C Counties: Deposits held at the Association of O&C Counties are 
uncol1ateralized and are to be returned to the County no later than November 1, 2012. AU earnings on 
investm;:nt of this deposit will be retained by the Association. 
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IV. Detailed notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

A. Caslll and investments (Continued) 

Assets held by others for the pension trust funds: Cash and investments of the pension trust funds consist of 
amounts deposited with Standard Insurance Company. 

Investments: For fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the normal investment horizon for the County is 5 years with 
a target modified duration at 2.:5 years. County Treasurers in Oregon may adopt investment horizons beyond 18 
months if they develop an investment policy that is reviewed by the State Treasurer's Oregon Short Term Fund 
Board, and is adopted annually by the County's governing body. Jackson County's investment policy extends 
the maximum maturity to 60 months. 

State statutes authorize the County to invest in general obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, 
certain commercial paper,. bankers' acceptances, certain bonded obligations of Oregon municipalities, bank 
repurcha'5e agreements, and the Oregon Local Government Investment Pool, among others. The County's 
investment policy neither increases nor decreases the types of investments available per statute. 

At June 30, 2012, the County's investments consisted of: 

Fair Value Percent 

Rt:purdlase agreements $ 1,424,273 1.4% 
US Govelillment Agency Securities 56,874,370 57.7% 
Corporate papeT: 

General Electric 6,331,457 6.4% 
11) Morgan Chase 6,265,834 6.3';'<, 

Wells Fargo Bank 6,482,947 6.6% 

Westpak Bank 5,519,003 5.6% 

Oilier 12,485,743 12.6% 
Local government investment pool 3,342,531 

Total investment> $ 98,726,158 100.0% 

The Oregon Local Government Investment Pool is an open-ended, no-load diversified portfolio pool. The fair 
value of the County's position in the pool is substantially the same as the value of the County's participant 
balance. 

The Oregon Local Government Investment Pool is an external investment pool which is part of the Oregon 
Short·Tel1TI Fund. Investment policies are governed by the Oregon Revised Statues and the Oregon Investment 
Cound1 (Council). The State Treasurer is the investment officer for the Council. Investments are further 
governed by portfolio guidelines issued by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board. The Oregon Short-Term Fund 
does not receive credit quality ratings from nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. 
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IV. )[)eltailed notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

A. ICa:~h and investments (Continued) 

JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

Interest ~ate risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. The Oregon Short-Term Fund manages this risk by limiting the maturity of the investments held 

by the fund. Weighted average maturities of investments in the Oregon Short-Term Fund at June 30, 2012 were 
approximately: 60% mature within 93 days, 19% mature from 94 days to one year, and 21 % mature from one to 

three years. 

In accordance with its investment policy, the County seeks to manage loss associated with changes in interest 

rates by structuring its portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, 
thereby generally avoiding the need to sell securities prior to maturity. In addition, the 60 month investment 
horizon for operating and capital funds, combined with an attempt to keep maturities relatively short when rates 
appear to be rising, seeks to limit interest rate risk. 

As of June 30, 2012, maturities for the County's investments are as follows: 

Maturities 
Investmellt Type 0-1 Years 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 

Repurchase a.greements $ 1,424,273 $ $ 
US GoveTlment agency securities 7,378,110 49,496,260 
Corporate paper: 8,476,688 28,608,296 
Local government investment pool 3,342,531 

Total fair value $ 20,621,602 $ 28,608,296 $ 49,496,260 

Credit risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligation. 

Investm~nts in U.S Government Agency securities consist of U.S. Government instrumentalities which are rated 
AA+ (S&P) or Aaa (Moody's). Investments in corporate paper are rated P-2 or A by Moody's or A-2 or better 
by St,mdard and Poor's at the settlement date. 

The Repur-chase Agreement is an overnight sweep of funds invested in U.S. Treasury and Agency securities. 
Treasury securities do not require a rating; U.S. Government instrumentalities carry an AAA/Aaa rating. In 
August 2011, Standard and Poor's lowered its rating on government sponsored securities to AA+. 

Conceni'ration of credit risk. The County's investment policy is more restrictive than state statutes and seeks to 
manage concentration of credit risk through the establishment of maximum percentages for various types of 
investments, as well as maximums by issuing institution. Actual year-end percentages are provided in a 

previou:; table. The County's policy is as follows: 
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IV. Detailed not,es on all activities and funds (Continued) 

A. Cash and investilnelilts (Continued) 

Diversification by Instrumen! 
US treasury obligations 
US tI'l~asury instrumentalities 
Bankers' acceptances 

Certi1icates of deposit 
Repurchase ag;reements 
Corporate indebtedness 

Diver:sificatiOlLQy Institution 
Local Government Investment Pool 
US tfl~asury instrumentality issuer 

Any certificate of deposit issuer 
Corporate indebtedness issuer 

,------------------,-,--~--

JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to l8'inandal Statements 

June 30, 2012 

Maximum Percent of !,ortfo li!2 
100% 
75% 
2:5% 

65% 
25% 
35% 

50% 
33% 

30% 
5% 

Custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of ;the failure of the 
eounterpart)', the County '.villI not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are 
in the possession of an outsiide party. The County previously implemented third-paI1y safekeeping with Union 
Bank for non-depository investments. Investments held by Union Bank are held in the County's name. 
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June 30, 2012 

IV. Detailed notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

B. Re,eeivables 

Receivables for the County's individual major funds and non-major funds, internal service fund and fiduciary 
funds an as follows: 

Property Investment 
Taxes Accounts Assessments Income Total 

Governmental activities: 
G(:neral Fund $ 2,523,350 $ 2,465,935 $ $ 1,335,814 $ 6,325,099 
General Road Fund 409,993 950,669 1,360,662 
Heath and Human Services Fund 987,339 987,339 
Special Revenue Fund 100,918 100,918 
Nonrnajor Governmental Funds 797,779 29,207 826,986 
Internal Service Fund 36,037 36,037 

3,321,129 4,000,222 979,876 1,335,814 9,637,041 
Busine:ss· type activities: 

Expcsition Park Enterprise Fund 74,599 74,599 
Airport Enterprise Fund 477,487 477,487 
R<:cr,:ation Enterprise Fund 20,335 20,335 

572,421 572,421 

Fiduciary Fund - Agency 15,091,980 15,091,980 

Total s - all funds $ 18,413,109 $ 4,572,643 $ 979,876 $ 1,335,814 $ 25,301,442 

Except for two General Fund contracts receivable totaling $615,453 and the assessments receivable, there are 
no significant receivable balances not expected to be collected within one year. The contracts receivable are 
being cdlected in installments. The allowance for uncollectible accounts is not significant. 

32 



--------._---_.,,---------

JACKSON COUNTY, ORI~IGON 
Notes to Finandal Statements 

Jrune 30~, 2012 --_._------------_._----------_._------, 
lrv. Detailed notles on alii activities and funds (Continued) 

ce. Capital asselts 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30,2012 was as follows: 

GoveJI'omental activities: 

Capital ass'~ts not being depr,~ciated: 
Land 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not bemg depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildmgs and improvements 
Equipment 
Software 

Infrastructure 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Lt~ss accumulated depreciation for" 
Bllliidings and improvements 
Equipment 
Software 
Infi-as tTl:cture 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being de~preciated, net 

Governme:ntal activities capit.al assets, net 

Busin~~ss-type activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being d,epreciated 

Capital assets being deprecialed: 
Buildings arAd improvements 
Equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

Business-type activities capital assets, net 

Balance Balance 

__ J_u-,IY,---,1 ,_2_0_1_1 ___ In_c_re_a_se_s ____ D_e_c_re_as_e_s __ Transfers __ .~lne 3~,~ 

$ 18,678,826 $ 88,527 $ $ 233,327 $ 19,000,680 
___ 1_8"",0.;..38"",,6_7_5 ____ 1_5,-,3_54....;,2_6....;.8 _________ (22,578,26!l • __ ~~I4,672_ 

36,717,501 

129,382,675 
26,229,906 

1,755,892 

196,079,887 

353,448,360 

_----:1~5.:..;,4...:.;42;;.:,,;.;79;.;;5 ________ (22,344,94!l._._~~,15,352_ 

44,480 
2,026,699 

559,815 
611,899 

3,242,893 

130,139,519 
27,237,587 

2,315,707 

10,524,685 __ ~,589,141!~ • __ . 20i::256,241-

712,364 

1,019,018 

55,038,348 5,176,528 60,214,876 
19,481,708 2,l 03,417 1,006,568 201,578,557 

837,679 176,242 1,013,921 
__ ....;5..;;.3,:;;,5_29;..:,9;...;9....;8 ___ ---'-5"",7..;.7....;1,_51_5 _____ 2_1'-,2.;;.;69 __________ 2:280,24.±_ 

128,887,733 13,227,702 1,027,837 ____ • ____ ...!..±.!.£87,598 

224,560,627 (9,984,809) 10,515,866 _.23,301,50,!_._ 226,361,456 

$ 261,278,128 $ 5,457,986 $ 10,515,866 $_= (43,4J;b : $ 256~76,811_ 

$ 17,615,182 $ 2,699 $ 131,727 $ 305,782 $ 17,791,936 
__ ----'3,_31_1'-,3_99 ____ 5"-,4_90-',_91_4 _________ ~,481 ,66:~2. __ ~W,650 

20,926,581 5,493,613 __ ....;.;13;,.;,1.:..;,7;;,.27~ __ . .J!,175,88 ~2. __ ...E..!.12,586 

136,355,921 315,584 3,369,892 4.,219,318 137,520,931 
___ 4-,,6.;..4....;8,-,4_42 ____ .;..5.;..9,:.;..88;:...1 ____ ...:5_4"",6..;..06,- _____ • _____ 4~53,712-

141,004,363 375,465 3,424,498 _~,219,31:~ ___ 142,174,648 

48,636,968 5,053,860 3,177,075 50,513,753 
__ -...:..1 '.;..;96;.;;8~,5..;.;03~ ___ ....;;3..;;.66~,.;;.;52.;..;4 ____ ...:5.;..4,:;;,6..;;.06;:.... __________ 2.!.80,42I 

50,605,471 5,420,384 3,231,681 

90,398,892 _---'-(5-',0_4_4'-,9_19..:...) ___ 19_2,-,8_17 ___ ~,219,311~_ ___ 89,380,474 

$ 111,325,473 $ 448,694 $ 324,544 $ _= 43,43'~= = $ 111~93,060 
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JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

IV. Detailed notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

C. Capital assets (Continued) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the County as follows for the fiscal year end June 
30,2012: 

Governmental activities: 
Genelal Government 
Ekctions & Records 
Community Justice & Safety 
Health & Human Services 
Culture &; Recreation 
Plann ing, Development, & Natural Rescources, 

in eluding depreciation of general infrastructure assets 
Transportation, including depreciation of general 

infrastructure assets 
Intl~mal Services 

Total depreciation expense, governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Airport enterprise 
Expm:ition Park enterprise 
Re-~reation enterprise 

Total depreciation expense, business-type activities 

D. Long-term obligations 

1. Changes in long-term obligations 

$ 1,538,813 
4,690 

\,374,986 
366,550 

2,146,949 

755,426 

5,933,685 
1,106,603 

$ 13,227,702 

$ 4,577,386 
439,551 
403,448 

$ 5,420,385 

Change~. in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2012 are as follows: 

Balance 
July 1,2011 Additions Deletions 

Gover'nmental Activities 
Bonds payable: 

Gem:ral obligation bonds $ 22,790,000 $ $ 2,165,000 
Unarnovtized bond premium 718,461 80,575 
Urban renewal bonds 2,485,000 785,000 
Bancroft bond 867,839 123,485 

Other liabilities: 
Accrued claims liability 4,088,784 5,505,137 5,295,447 
Net pension obligation 640,324 586,013 813,516 
Net OPEB obligation 1,254,855 494,493 195,518 
Compensated absences 4,429,496 3,725,995 3,664,657 

Governmental activities 
long .. tenn liabilities $ 37,274,759 $ 10,311,638 $ 13,123,198 

Balance Due within 
Junl: 30, 2012 One Year 

$ 20,625,000 $ 2,250,000 
637,886 

1,700,000 825,000 
744,354 

4,298,474 4,298,474 
412,821 

1,553,830 
4,490,834 2,104,194 

$ 34,463,199 $ 9,477,668 
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IV. ])et~liled notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

U. Long-term obligations (Continued) 

JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Ii'inandal Statements 

June 30,2012 

The net pension obligation is a liability of the general fund. Pension costs are expensed during the year to all 
funds with payroll costs. The resulting liabilities are subsequently transferred to the general fund jur payment. 

An internal service fund is used to pay the County's compensated absences liabilities. Internal service funds 
predominately serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term obligations for them are included as part 
of the above totals for governmental activities. Also, the accrued claims liability is an intema1 service fund 
obligation. 

Busin,ess,·TYP(1 Activities 

Bonds payable 
Unamortized bond premium 

Contract payable 

Busini:ss·type activities 
long·'term liabilities 

2. Bonds payablE: 

(;overnmentall Activities 
General Obligation Bonds. 

Seri(!s 2002 
General Obligation Bonds. 

Series 2006 
General Obligation Bonds, 

Series 2010 

Bancroft Bond:" 
Series 2009 

Urban Renewal Bonds, 
Series 1999 A 

Total Governmental Activities 

Husinl!ss-Type Activite:s: 
Airport Bonds, 

S<':ries A - 2007 
Airport Bonds, 

S,:ries B - 2007 

Total BusJnes~-Type Activities 

Outstanding 
July 1,2011 

$ 1,075,000 

11,480,000 

10,235,000 

867,839 

2,485,000 

$ 26,142,839 

$ 13,480,000 

5,855,000 

$ 19,335,000 

Principal 

Issued During 
Year 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Matured and 
Paid During 

Year 

$ 1,075,000 

1,065,000 

25,000 

123,485 

785,000 

$ 3,073,485 

$ 

Outstanding 
June 2012 

$ 

10,415,000 

10,210,000 

744,354 

__ 12°0,000 _ 

$ 23,069,354 
-, 

$ 13,480,000 

$ 

340,000 __ 5,515,000_ 

340,000 $ 18,995,000 _, 

Interest 

Matured and 
Paid During 

Year 

$ 43,000 

446,,965 

387,100 

43,,435 

$ 707,.700 
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IV. Jl>etailed notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

D. Long-term obligations (Continued) 

3. Lel~al debt margin 

JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

The County is subject to a debt limit on general obligation bonds that is 2 percent of the real market value of all 
taxable property within the County's boundaries. As of June 30,2012 that amount was $450,531,059. As of 
June 30, 2012 the total outstanding debt applicable to the limit was $20,625,000 which is 4.58 percent of the 
total dect limit The County is also subject to a debt limit on revenue bonds of 1 percent of the real market value 

of all taxable property within the County's boundaries. As of June 30, 2012 that amount was $225,265,530. As 
of June 30, 2012 the total outstanding debt applicable to the limit was $18,955,000 which is 8.41 percent of the 

total debt limit 

4. 'General obligation bonds 

Series: 2006: Jackson County General Obligation Library Refunding Bonds - Series 2006, principal is due in 
varying annual installments through June 2020; interest paid semi-annually at 4.00% through June 2015, 3.75% 
through June 2018,3.875% for June 2019 and 4.00% for June 2020. The proceeds of the bonds were used to 

extinguish $12,730,000 of outstanding Series 2000 General Obligation Library Bonds through an in-substance 
defeasance. 

Year Ending Principal 
30 Maturities Interest Total 

2013 $ 1,110,000 $ 404,365 $ 1,514,365 
2014 1,165,000 359,965 1,524,965 
2015 1,215,000 313,365 1,528,365 
2016 1,270,000 264,765 1,534,765 
2017 1,320,000 217,775 1,537,775 

2018·2020 4,335,000 345,200 4,680,200 

$ 1,905,435 $ 12,320,435 

Series 2010: Jackson County General Obligation Refunding Bonds - Series 2010, principal is due in annual 
installments through June 2020; interest paid semi-annually at 2.0% through June 2012, 3.00% through June 
2015,4.0% through June 2018 and 4.5% for June 2020. The proceeds of the bonds were used to extinguish 
$10,325,000 of outstanding Series 2002 General Obligation Library Bonds through an in-substance defeasance. 

Year Ending Principal 
June 30 Maturities Interest Total 

2013 $ 1,140,000 $ 386,600 $ 1,526,600 
2014 1,175,000 352,400 1,527,400 
2015 1,205,000 317,150 1,522,150 
2016 1,240,000 281,000 1,521,000 
2017 1,285,000 231,400 1,516,400 

2018·2020 4,165,000 370,875 4,535,875 

$ 10,210,000 $ 1,939,425 $ 12,149,425 
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JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to F'inandal Sltatements 

Junc~ 30, 2012 --------------------,----------------------------------------,----------
IV. DetalHed notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

n. Long-term obligations (Continued) 

5. Bancroft bonds 

Series 2009:: Jackson County Roads IronwoodiLeafwood Local Improvement District. Principal is due at 
maturity or as a prepayment as money is received from the property owners, The bond matures 011 March 1, 
2028, Interest payments at a rate of 5,15% are due semi-annually on September and March of each year 
commendng March 1,2010. The proceeds of this bond were used to provide funds to financ,e the costs of the 
IronwoodlLeafwood Local Improvement District road improvement project, to payoff interim financing for the 
project and pay bond issuance costs. 

The debt service on the bond will be paid from payments received by the County from ass~:ssment contracts 
entered into with property owners who benefited by the road improvement project. These amoun1s, including 
interest are 100 percent pledged to pay the scheduled principal and interest payments on the special assessment 
bonds. In the event that a deficiency exists because of unpaid or delinquent special assessmtmts at the time a 
debt service payment is due, the government must provide resources to cover the defid~ney until other 
fI~sources, for example, foredo sure proceeds are received. 

6. Urban Renewal bonds 

Principal and interest on all Urban Renewal Bonds are payable first from all tax increment revenUl~s and st'lcond, 
if necessary, from all other available resources. As part of the bond covenants, the Agency is required to certify 
to the County Assessor of Jackson County, Oregon, to the extent it is legally able to do so, ea.ch fiscal year 
bonds are outstanding, an amount sufficient so that the amount to be received is not less than the annual debt 
service on the bonds. In the event the tax increment revenues in such fiscal year are less than the annual debt 
service on the bonds in such fiscal year, then the Agency will certify to the County Assessor, to the extent it is 
legally able to do so, in future fiscal years such amounts as are necessary to make up any defickncy for previous 
fiscal years. 

Serie~11999A: Jackson County Urban Renewal Agency, Urban Renewal Bonds - Series 1999A, principal is due 
in increasing annual installments through June 1,2014; interest paid semiannually at 4.40% in 2000 to 5,910% in 
2014; bonds may be prepaid on any interest payment date, in whole or in part. 
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IV. Ueltailed notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

D. Long-term obligations (Continued) 

JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

Bond proceeds were designated for 1) refunding, on an advance refunding basis, the Urban Renewal Bonds 
series 1993; 2) paying costs of capital projects as defined in the 1999 project list, and; 3) paying the costs of 
issuance of the bonds. There is no reserve requirement for this issue. 

Year Ending Principal 
lun,: 30 Maturities Interest Total ------

2013 $ 825,000 $ 99,475 $ 924,475 
2014 875,000 51,625 

$ 1,700,000 $ 151,100 $ 1,851,100 

7. Airport revenue bonds 

Series 2007A & 2007B: Jackson County Airport Revenue Bonds Series 2007A (non-AMT) in the amount of 
$13,480,000 and Series 2007B (AMT) in the amount of $6,475,000 dated July 10,2007. Series 2007A interest 
paid semi-annually commencing December 1,2007 at 5.25% through December, 2037. Series 2007A principal 
paid annually commencing December 1, 2023. Series 2007B interest paid semi-annually commencing 
December 1, 2007 at 5.169% through December, 2023. Series 2007B principal paid annually commencing 
December 1,2009. Both Series 2007A and 2007B are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of 
the COUrIty, in whole or in part, on any date on or after December 1,2017. The bond proceeds were used with 
Airport and FAA revenues to construct a new terminal facility and related improvements at the Rogue Valley 
International-Medford Airport. For the year ended June 30, 2012, pledged revenues were $3,529,305 and the 
debt serv'ic,e payments were $1,341,544 (263%). 

Year Ending Principal Principal 
June 30 Maturities Interest Total Interest Total 

2013 $ $ 707,700 $ 707,700 $ 355,000 $ 275,881 $ 630,881 
2014 707,700 707,700 375,000 257,016 632,016 
2015 707,700 707,700 395,000 237,116 632,116 
2016 707,700 707,700 415,000 216,181 631,181 
2017 707,700 707,700 435,000 194,216 629,216 

2018·2022 3,538,500 3,538,500 2,555,000 597,901 3,152,901 
2023·2027 2,320,000 3,334,801 5,654,801 985,000 45,612 1,030,612 
2028 .. 2032 4,285,000 2,390,720 6,675,720 
2033·2037 5,575,000 1,103,945 6,678,945 

2038 1,300,000 34,125 1,334,125 

$ 13,480,000 $ 13,940,591 $ 27,420,591 $ 5,515,000 
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IV. Detailed notl~s on :lllllllctivities and funds (Continued) 

D. Long-term obligations (Continued) 

8. Prior year dl~feas3!nce of debt 

JACKSON COUNTY, ORJ1:GON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

J'UJlle 30~1 2012 

In prior years, the county defeased general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of the new bonds in an 

inevocable trust account to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, Hie trust 

account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the government's fimmcial statements. 
At June 30, 2012, all ofthe defeased bonds had been retired. 

9. SEC Rule 15c2-12 

Jackson County is required to file material events notices to a nationally recognized municipal securities 
information repository. Management believes there are no material events requiring filing as of the date of this 

repoli. Annual disclosure information is provided in the statistical section of this report. 

10. Contract payable 

The County is leasing land at the airport to a truck center. As part of the operating lease, the County has agreed 
to reimburse the lessee for $200,000 in improvements. The reimbursement is payable in monthly installments of 

$833 over a twenty-'YI~ar period. Future amounts due are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30 Total 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

2018·2022 

j. 10,000 
10,000 
10,000 
10,000 
10,000 
48,334 

Subsequent to the end of the fiscal year, the county executed a supplemental agreement to the ground lease. 
Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) has declared the need to acquire the property for a bypass 
project. The sale to ODOT, if completed, will include funding for compensation to the truck center. 
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IV. Detailed notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

E. Pension plans 

1. Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) 

JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30,2012 

Plan description: The County participates in OPERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit 
retirement plan, established under Oregon Revised Statutes 238.600, which acts as a common investment and 
adminkrative agent for public employers in the State of Oregon. OPERS provides retirement, death and 
disability benefits to participants and their beneficiaries. All County employees are eligible to participate in 

OPERS in accordance with OPERS statutes. Benefits are established by state statute, and employer 
contributions are made at an actuarially determined rate as adopted by the Public Employees Retirement Board. 
OPERS, a I;omponent unit of the State of Oregon, issues a comprehensive annual financial report, which may be 
obtained by writing to Public Employees Retirement System, P.O. Box 23700, Portland, Oregon 9728 I -3700 or 
by calling (503) 598-7377. 

Fundin!~ policy: The County is required to contribute to the system at an actuarially determined rate. The 
current rate is 11.33% of annual covered payroll for general service member employees of the State and Local 

Govemrnent Rate Pool, 19.00% for PERS police and fire member employees, 9.76% for general service 
member employees of the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP) and 12.47% for police and fire 

member employees of the OPSRP. State statutes require covered employees to contribute 6% of their annual 
covered salary to the system but allow the employer to pay any or all of the employees' contribution in addition 
to the required employers' contribution. The County currently pays for certain employees' contributions. 

Annual pension cost: For the fiscal years ended June 30, 20]2, 2011 and 2010, the County's annual pension 

cost contributed was $8,553,277, $6,369,849, and $6,394,505, respectively, and were equal to 100% of the 
required contributions for each year. 

2. Single employer plans #1, #3 and #5 

Plan description, funding policy and annual pension cost: The County has maintained five single employer 
(sole agl~nt) defined benefit plans which provide retirement, death and disability benefits to participants or their 
benefiichries. During the 1992-1993 fiscal year, the County's employees participating in pension plans # I, #3 
and #5 (management, non-management general employees and members of the Jackson County Sheriff 
employe:es association) voted to convert their current pension plans to OPERS. Enrollment was made retroactive 
as though each employee enrolled in OPERS on the date of hire. Since these plans have been integrated with 
OPERS, the County is no longer required to make contributions to these plans, as the contributions to these 
plans are now a part of the overall OPERS contribution. As of June 30, 2000, all transferable plan assets for 
plans #1, #3 and #5 were transferred to OPERS. 
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JACKSON COUNTY, ORI~~GON 
Notes to ]lfinandal Statements 

June 30" 2012 ---------------_._----------_._------,---_._---,---
llV. Detailed not,es on aU activities and funds (Continued) 

K. Pension plants (Continued) 

~t Single employer pJans #2 and #4 

li>lan d(~scription: Plans #2 and #4 (Sheriffs deputies and corrections officers, and Sheriffs management and 
confidential employees, respectively) of the County's single employer (sole agent) defined benefit pension plans 
have transferred agreed-upon assets to OPERS. At the time of conversion, 41 empIoyees elected to remain in 
Plan #2 and 14 elected to remain in Plan #4. All new employees that would have historically been eliigible to 
partkipatein these plans are being enrolled as members of OPERS. Benefits are established by ORS 
237.620(4), which states that the County must maintain pension plans for Police and Fire Department 
employees. Employer contributions are actuarially determined by Standard Life Insurance Company, which 
mainitains the pension plans' assets. 

l~umlling policy: The contribution requirements of plan members and the County are establiished in contracts 
between the County and the Sheriffs Office. Members of Plans #2 and #4 are required to contriblllte 6% of their 
monthly salary, based on pre-tax dollars. The County contributes whatever amount is required in addition to 
accumulated employee contributions to pay for the cost of the plan. Currently, (January 1, 20:ll2 valuatiion), the 
actuarially determined rates are 307.6% (3 active participants) and 206.2% (1 active participant) of covered 
payroll for Plans #2 and #4" assuming 6 and 5-year amortization periods, respectively. 

Annual pension cost and net pension obligation: The County's annual pension cost and net pensioIl obligation 
relakd to pension Plans #2 and #4 for the plan year ended December 31, 2011 is as follows: 

AnmJal required contribution 
[nter~:st on net pension obligation 
Adjustment to annual Jrequired contribution 

Annual pension cost 

Contri butions made by December 31, 2011 

increase (decrease) in net pension 
obligation 

Net pension obligation, January 1,2011 

Net pension obligation, December 31,2011 

Financial Statement Liability: 
"Net pension obligation/(asset), June 30, 2012 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Plan #2 

697,965 
88,976 

~252,7442 

534,197 

808,320 

(274,123) 

1,186,343 

912,220 

412,821 

Plan #4 

$ 162,129 
(25,907) 
85,380 

221,602 

30!,50.z... 

$ (79,905) 

_--,,-(3_4,~,44Q2. 

$ (425,345) 

$ (583,917) 

---"-----------,---,------------------- 41 



JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

IV. J[)etailed notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

E. Pension plans (Continued) 

The Conoty's annual pension cost, percentage of annual pension cost and net pension obligation for the current 
year and each of the two preceding years were as follows: 

Annual Percentage Net 
Plan Year Pension of APe Pension 

Ended Cost~APq Contributed Obligation 

Plan #2 December 31,2011 $ 534,197 151.3% $ 912,220 
December 31, 2010 692,517 104.9% 1,186,343 
December 31,2009 1,103,904 68.2% 1,220,549 

Plan #4 December 31, 2011 $ 221,602 136.1% $ (425,345) 
December 31,2010 336,964 113.4% (345,440) 
December 31, 2009 565,183 70.2% (300,438) 

As of Jmuary 1, 2012, Plans #2 and #4 have 3 and 1 active employees, respectively. Below is a schedule of 
employer contributions for the current year and each of the two preceding years: 

Plan #2 

Plan #4 

Plan Year 
Ended 

December 31, 2011 
December 31,2010 
December 31, 2009 

December 31,2011 
December 31, 2010 
December 31, 2009 

Annual Required 
Contribution 

$ 697,965 
861,007 

1,223,879 

$ 162,129 
285,239 
484,440 

Percent 
Contributed 

115.8% 
84.4% 
61.5% 

186.0% 
133.9% 
81.9% 
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JACKSON COUNT~i, ORE(;ON 
Notes to 'Financi~111 Statements 

June 30" 2012 

JV. Detailed notc~s on ldl activities and funds (Continued) 

K Pension plans (Continued) 

'Funded status and funding progress: As of January I, 2012, the most recent actuarial valu.ation date, the 

funded status of Plan #2 and #4 were as follows: 

Plan #2 Plan #4 

Actual accrued liability $ 14,637,839 $ 6,239,035 
Actuarial value of plan assets 11,236,948 5,467,601 

Unfund,~d acmarial accrue:d liability (UAAL) $ 3,400,891 $ 771,434 

fundled ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 76.8% &7.6% 

Covered payroll (annual paymll of activity employees 
covered by the plan) $ 246,682 $ 101,855 

UAAL as a percentage; of cove:red payroll 1378.7% 757.4% 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following th,~ notes to the 

financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 

increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

Actuarial methods and assumptions: The annual re~quired contribution for the current year was actuarially 

detennined 2S part of , a January 1,2011 actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost me:thod. On January 

1, 2011, the actuarial value of assets was equal to the balance in the deposit administration fimd with interest 

accrUl~d to the end of the previous calendar quarter, increased by the amount of any accrued or assumed 

contributions and decreased by the amount of any accrued expenses. The actuarial assumptions illclude 

projected salary increases of 4% per year and a return on investment and inflation rate of 7.5'%. The unfunded 

actuarially accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroU expenses on art open 
basis over a 4-year period for Plan #2 and a 3-year period for Plan #4. 

:F. Other postemployment benefit (OPEB) obligations 

Plan description: Th(~ County maintains a single-employer defined benefit postemployment health care bt;nefits 

plan. 1ne Jackson County Health Benefit Retiree Program allows eligible retirees and the:ir dependents to 
purchase continuation coverage under the County's health insurance plans from thl! date of rt::1irement until 

eligibility for Medicare. There is no separate, audited GAAP-basis postemployment benefit plan repOIt available 

for this plan. 
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IV. ])eltailed notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30,2012 

F. .other postemployment benefit (OPE B) obligations (Continued) 

Fundiin~: policy: The eligible retirees and their dependents pay the cost of the health insurance at COBRA rates. 
The County is responsible for an implicit rate subsidy that is the difference between the rate charged to retirees 
and the estimated rate that would be applicable to those retirees if the benefit was acquired for them as a 
separate group. There is no obligation on the part of the County to fund these benefits in advance. Funding is 
on a pay-as-you-go basis. The County made $195,518 in contributions to the plan for payment of benefits in 
fiscal year I~nding June 30,2012. 

Annual O])EB cost and net OPEB obligation: The County's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to 
the plan for the year ended June 30, 2012 are as follows: 

Annuall'equired contribution 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 

Annual OPEB cost 

Contribution made 

Incr4~ase in net OPEB obligation 

NetOPEB obligation - July 1,2011 

Net OPEB obligation - June 30, 2012 

$ 501,358 
43,920 

(50,875) 

494,493 

298,975 

1,254,855 

$ 1,553,830 

The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB 
obligation for the last three years were as follows: 

Percentage of 
Year Ended Annual AnnualOPEB NetOPEB 

June 30 OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation 

2012 $ 494,493 39.5% $ 1,553,830 
;~Oll 484,409 40.5% 1,254,855 
;~01O 767,416 38.7% 966,724 
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JACKSON COUNTY, ORE:GON 
Notes to J,'inandal Sltatements 

June 30,2012 -----------,-------------
IV. Detailed notf:S on all activities and funds (Continued) 

Jr. Oth'!r postemplloymernt benefit (OPE B) obligations (Continued) 

Jrundled status and funding progress: As of July II, 2010, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was 

$4,542,225 and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued iliability (UAAL) 

of $4,542,225. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $42,108,740 

and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 10.79%. The UAAL is amortized over an open 30 year 

period. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 

about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include: assumptions about future 

employment, mortality' and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the 

plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revisions as actual results are 

compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the 

fiinandall statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 

increasing or decreasing ov~~r time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

Actuarial methods and assumptiollls: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the 

substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and incllld~~ the types of 

beneflits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit cos115 between the 

employer and the plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used inciUlde techniques 

that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial 

value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the actuarial valuation conducted as of July 1, 2010, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was used. 

Under this method, the actuarial present value of the projected benefits of each active employee included in the 

valualion is allocated on a level basis over the service of the active employee between assumed entry age and 

assumed exit age. The actuarial assumptions included (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future 
assets of 3.5%, and (b) annual health care cost trend and inflation rate of 7%. The assumed rate of increase 

slows with time, stabilizing at 5%. 
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IV. Detailed notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

G. Construction and other commitments 

JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 20t2 

Constru~fion commitments. The County has one active construction project as of June 30, 2012. The project is a 
road improvement project financed by federal intergovernmental funds within the General Road Fund. At year­
end the ;~overnment's capital construction commitments are as follows: 

Project Spent to Date Remaining Commitment 

Kirtland Road realignment $ 1,083,204 $ 950,106 

Encumbrances. Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for 
the exp(~nditure of monies are recorded in order to restrict that portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
employt:d in all budgeted funds during the year for administrative control purposes only. Encumbrances 
outstanding at year-end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities and are included in restricted, committed, or 
assigned fund balances. 

Encumbered amounts at June 30, 2012 include: 

General Roa.d Fund 
Health and Human Services Fund 
Special Revenue Fund 
Other Gwernmental Funds 

Tota I Encumbrances 

H. Self-insurance 

$ 

$ 

4,797,245 
152,537 
112,954 
107,817 

5,170,553 

The County has established a department within the Internal Service Fund to account for and finance its risks of 
loss. Th~ County is self-insured for unemployment compensation, workers' compensation, most general liability, 
auto liability, police professional liability, municipal liability exposures and manager's health benefits. The 
County carries an excess general and auto liability policy which is subject to a $1,000,000 self-insured retention 
with a $10,000,000 per occurrence/aggregate. The County carries an Excess Workers' Compensation policy 
which i:; subject to a $650,000 self-insured retention and Statutory limits for Workers' Compensation claims, 
plus a $ 1 ,000,000 limit for Employers Liability claims. The County purchases insurance for the airport and 
several miscellaneous liability exposures. The County experienced no claim losses in excess of coverage 
obtained during fiscal years 2010 through 2012. 

Claims liabilities reported in the County's general purpose financial statements are based on an actuarial 
estimate of the ultimate cost of settling claims incurred, including incurred but not reported (lBNR) claims as of 
the balance sheet date. Claims liabilities include all incremental costs incurred directly as a result of a claim, and 
consider estimated recoveries on both settled and unsettled claims. Claims expense has been reduced by 
amounts recovered, or expected to be recovered through excess insurance. 
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lrv. ][)etailed notes on all activilties and funds (Continued) 

H. Self-insuran,~e (Continued) 

JACKSON COUNTY, ORE4GON 
Notes to Finandall Statemen1i:s 

Jililne 30" 2012 

At June 30, 2012, a total claims liability of $4,298,474 is reported. All prior and current-year claims are fully 
reserved and have not been discounted. The County does not utilize annuity contracts from eommereial insurers. 

Therefore, during this reportiing period, all known liabilities have been disclosed. Changes in the claims liability 
for the last two fiscal years are as follows: 

Current-Year 
Year Balance at Claims and 

Ended Beginning Change 
June ~,o of Year Estimates ---"---- -------

2012 $ 4-,088,784 $ 5,505,137 
2011 $ 4-,087,180 $ 4,687,435 

I. Municipal solid waste landfill 

Claim 
Payments 

$ 5,295,447 
$ 4,685,831 

Balance at 
End of Year 

$ 4,298,474 
$ 4,088,784 

There are currently four landfills in Jackson County. Of these four, only one is in operation (Dry Creek 
Landtill). It is located on private property and is operated by Rogue Waste Systems. There are two closed 
landfills that are in postclosure care (Valley View and South Stage). Landfill owm:rs are re:sponsible tor the 
closure and postclosure care costs associated with the landfills. Jackson County monitors the owners to ensure 

they are: meeting regulatory requirements and are adequately funding the closure and post-c:1osure care: costs 
associated with the landfills. Jackson County has not recorded a liability related to these landfills as of June 30, 

2012 and does not anticipate any future obligations as the owners have maintained adequate fund:ing of 
postclosure care requirements and have met regulatory requirements. 

Located on Forest Service land, the fourth landfill (Prospect) is operated by Jackson County. The landfill bas not 
accepted waste since October 9, 1993 and therefore, does not qualifY for regulation under the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency rule "Solid Waste Facility Criteria" issued October 9, 1991. The Oregon 
Department of Environmental Quali1Y requires necessary financial assurance be provided to ensure appropriate 
postciosure eare. The County is working with the U.S. Forest Service towards obtaining termination of Solid 
Waste Permit (numbe:r (223). For fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 the County provided $150 in postclosure 
care :ior the Prospect Landfill. The County may incur additional post closure costs in the future, but those costs 
are undetemtinable. 
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JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

IV. Detailed notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

J. Fund balances/net assets 

Fund Ba lances, Governmental funds: On the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds, the fund balances are 
reported in the aggregate in the classifications defined by GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting 
and Gowrnmental Fund Type Definitions. Fund balances by classification at June 30, 2012 were as follows: 

Nonspcndable: 

Inventory 

Paid e ~penses 

Long· Tenn Notes Receivable 

Permanent Funds - Library 

o &. C Reserves 

Restrict<~d IQr: 

Sheriff Programs 

Road Maintenance Projects 

Surve;lor Cornerstone Preservation 

Fir'~wise Communities, Search, Rescue 

a1d Emergency Services on Federal 

Land, or Community Wildlife 

Protection Plans 

Public Health Programs 

Menial Health Programs 

Other Health Programs 

Anim<:l Shelter 

Law E.nforccment in White City 

Debt ~:eryjce 

Street Improvements 

White City Capital Projects 

Other Capital Projects 

Other Purposes 

Assigned to: 

Capit!! Projects 

PERS Unfunded Liability 

Budg .. ted 12-13 to cover revenue shortfall 

Waste Disposal Costs 

Other Purposes 

Unassigned: 

Total Fund Balances 

$ 

General 

Fund 

20,997 

615,453 

10,000 

473,454 

433,865 

190,973 

7,065,166 

569,678 

4,855,343 

1,000,000 

34,231,274 

$ 

General 

Road Fund 

Health and 

Human 

Services f'und 

1,872,609 $ 
997 

12,738,114 

135,949 

590,000 

9,990,000 

5,097,388 

1,600,000 

$ 

Special 

Revenue 

945,826 

2,389,212 

1,196,207 

2,363,812 

$ 49,466,203 $ 14,611,720 $ 17,413,337 $ 6,895,057 

Other 

Governmental 

Funds 

$ 

752,784 

6,727,689 

1,305,758 

1,963,335 

512,841 

9,686,850 
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JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to :Finandal Statements 

JUlie 30, 2012 
---------------------,-------------------------------------------------
IV. Detailed not{!s on all activities and funds (Continued) 

Ji. I"und balances/net assets (Continued) 

The County maintains minimum unassigned fund balance sufficient to meet cash requiremen1 until Federal 

receipts and property tax payments are received, generally three months estimated expenses. The amollnt of 
fund balance maintained for this purpose is $9,769.,252. The General Fund unassigned fund. balance also 

includes $19,758,167 of "rainy day" funds. The rainy day funds can be spent by appropriation in filture budgets. 

Net asse1s: The govemment-wide Statement of Net Assets reports $49,0 11,137 of restricted net assets, of which 

$48,599,896 is restricted by enabling legislation. 

K Due from/to other funds 

The fl)lIowing is a listing ofinterfund receivables and payables by fund at June 30, 2012: 

Governmental Funds 
General Fund 
General Road Fund 
Health and Human Servi,;oes Fund 
Special Revenue Fund 
Otht:r Governmental Funds 

Pmprietary Funds 
Exposition Park En1tell)risle Fund 
Airport Enterprisl~ Fund 
Recreation Enterprise Fund 
Internal Service Fund 

Totals - all funds 

$ 

$ 

3,746,523 
272,795 
334,990 

78,773 
160,650 

4,593,731 

776 
550,224 

73,723 
629,112 

1,253,835 

5,847,566 

Payable 

$ 375,594 
348,530 
876,333 

1,229,849 
344,292 

3,174,598 

190,484 
1,359,166 

42,611 
1,080,707 

2,672,968 

$ 5,847,566 

All interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that interfund goods and services are 
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and payments 
between funds are made. These amounts also include a working capital loan made to !the exposition park which 
the general thnd expects to collect in the subsequent year. 
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JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

IV. Detailed notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

L. Interfund transfers 

Transfers f,:>r the year ended June 30, 2012 are summarized as follows: 

Transfer To 
Governmental Funds 

Health and 
General Human Special 

Transfer From General Road Services Revenue Nonmajor -----
Govel11mental Funds: 

Gen~ral $ $280,515 $ 3,053,369 $ 13,083 $ 19,824,502 
Special Revenue 1,387,444 126,334 
Nonmajor 600,000 

Proprietlry Funds: 
Intemal Service 21,545 

Total $1,408,989 $880,515 $3,179,703 $ 13,083 $19,824,502 

Transfer To 
ProErieta:x Funds 

Exposition 
Park Airport Recreation Internal 

Transfer From Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Service Total -----
Governmental Funds: 

General $ 15,744 $ 51,668 $ 25,723 $2,141,542 $25,406,146 
Special Revenue 4,588 54,357 84,527 1,657,250 
Nonmajor 170,000 9,309 779,309 

Proprietary Funds: 
Receation 3,860 3,860 
Intel11aii Service 21,545 

Total $ 190,332 $ 51,668 $ 89,389 $2,229,929 $27,868,110 

TransfeJ:s are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that 

statute or budget requires to expend them, move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the 

receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and use unrestricted revenues collected 

in the ~;eneral fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary 

authorizations. 
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IV. ])etfliled notes on all activities and funds (Continued) 

M. Contingenci~'s 

JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
Notes to J;'inandal Statements 

J!~e 3C!z, 2012 

The County is party to various legal proceedings generally incidental to its business. Although the ultimate 

disposition of these proceedings is not presently determinable, management is vigorously defending the claims 

and does not believe that adverse determination in any or all of such proceedings will have a material adverse 

effect upon the financial condition of the County. 

The County participates in various federal and state grant programs, the principal of which are subject to 

program compliance audits pursuant to the Single Audit Act as amended. Accordingly, the county"s compliance 

with applicable grant requirements will be established at a future date. The amount of expenditun~s which may 

be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the county anticipates such 

amounts, if any, will be immaterial. 

N. Related palrty 

In March 2009, the County loaned the County Administrator $654,000 for the purpose of refinancing his 

primary residence. The loan is payable in 360 monthly installments of $2,922 or more, includi:ng interest at the 

rate of 3.46% per annum (the applicable federal rate at the time the loan was issued) on the unpaid balance. The 

first installment was paid April 2009 and the loan matures in March 2039. The loan is secured by a trust deed 

on the r(~sidence. The outstanding balance of the loan at June 30, 2012 was $608,630 and is included in 

receivables on the statement of net assets. 
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Jackson County, Or1egon 

-,--"-----------
Schedule of FU~ld!ng Pr~~,gress 

Unfunded 
Unfunded A,:;uarial Accrued 

Actuarial Actuaria.l Actuarial Actuarial Liability as a 
Valluation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of 

Date: Assets Liability Liability Ratio ~roll_ .~~~~:ed Payroll ---"--- -----------

Single Employer Pension Plans 

Plan #2 
1/1/2012 $ 11,236,948 $ 14,637,839 $ 3,400,891 76.8% $ 246,682 1378.7% 

1/1/2011 11,533,272 14,605,775 3,072,503 79.0% 306,913 1001.1% 
]/1/2010 10,503,044 14,291,953 3,788,909 73.5% 278,614 1359.9% 
1/1/2009 8,983,022 14,480,997 5,497,975 62.0% 294,597 1866.3% 

1/1/2008 11,631,393 14,176,061 2,544,668 82.0% 361,719 703.5% 

1/1/2007 11,062,207 13,468,670 2,406,463 82.1% 601,.168 400.3% 
11/1/2006 9,984,077 12,863,057 2,878,980 77.6% 607,234 474.1% 

1/1/2005 9,014,238 12,394,560 3,380,322 72.7% 610,997 553.2% 
1/1/2004 7,899,814 12,420,572 4,520,758 63.6% 744,563 607.2% 
1/1/2003 5,972,268 11,640,824 5,668,556 51.3% 952,972 594.8% 

Plan #4 
1/112012 $ 5,467,601 $ 6,239,035 $: 771,434 87.6% $ 101,855 757.4% 

1/112011 5,660,531 6,271,444 610,913 90.3% 225,685 270.7% 
1/1/2010 5,079,388 6,185,998 1,106,610 82.1% 199,875 553.7% 

1/1/2009 4,286,443 6,195,453 1,909,010 69.2% 230,407 828.5% 

1/1/2008 5,338,893 6,089,376 750,483 87.7% 194,486 385.9% 

Vl/2007 5,0008,557 6,013,129 1,004,572 83.3% 187,364 536.2% 
11/112006 4,449,440 5,655,368 1,205,928 78.7% 239,976 502.5% 

1/112005 3,938,633 5,773,818 1,835,185 68.2% 31.1,717 588.7% 

1/112004 3,374,435 5,699,204 2,324,769 59.2% 307,704 755.5% 

1/1/2003 2,640,392 5,882,061 3,241,669 44.9% 594,240 545.5% 

Postemployme.nt Health Care Benefits Plan 

7/1/2010 $ " ,~ 4,542,225 $ 4,542,225 0.0% $ 42,llO8,740 10.8% 
7/1/2008 6,473,019 6,473,019 0.0% 40,533,000 ]6.0% 

For the postemployment health care benefits plan, the July 1, 2008 actuarial valuation is the first yl~ar this 
inforrnation was avaiilable" The County receives an actuarial valuation every two years. The decrease in the 
actuarial accrued liabiility is due primarily to a change in the assumed health care cost trend rate and updated 
Oregon PERS retirement rates. 
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and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules 



-------------~~---.--------------------------------

Governmental Funds 

Enhanc~~dLaw Enforcement District Fund The District was created June 14, 1995 under authority of 
Oregon Revised Statute Chapter 451 by the Jackson County Board of Commissioners. Revenues consist 
primarily of a property tax levy. 

Capital Projects FUJllds These funds were established to account for financial resources to b(~ used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital improvements not being financed by proprietary funds. Principal 
resources are intergovernmental, charges for services, sale of bonds, interest and operating transfers. These 
funds include Capitnl Proj,ects, White City Capital, White City Development and White Ci~y Lil~hting 
District. 

Debt SCJrVicc Funds These funds were established to account for the payment of principal and interest on the 
County's general obligation bonds. The principal source of funding is property taxes. These funds include 
Library Debt Service, Juvenile Debt Service and Urban Renewal Agency Debt Service. 



Jackson County, Oregon 
Combining Balance Sheet 
NonmajoJ' Governmental Funds 
June 3(i1, 2012 

Special 
Revenue Fund Capital Projects 
Enhanced Law White White City 
Enforcement Capital White City City Lighting 

District Projects Capital DeveloEment 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments $ 798,269 $ 11,969,345 $ 1,215,844 $ 34,792 $ 716,882 
Receivables (net of allowance 

for uncollectibles) 
Property taxes 98,895 22,765 
Assessments 29,207 

Due from other funds 17,182 46,371 10,626 307 4,895 

Total assets $ 914,346 $ 12,044,923 $ 1,226,470 $ 35,099 $ 744,542 

LlABILlTIES 
AccO!mts payable $ $ 4,075 $ $ $ 3,849 
Due to other funds 80,392 220,466 10 20,273 
Deferred revenue 81,170 29,207 18,644 
Retai ~ages and other liabilities 285,726 

Total liabilities 161,562 539,474 10 42,766 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 752,784 1,818,599 1,226,470 35,089 701,776 
Assigned 9,686,850 

T otai fund balances 752,784 1I,505,449 1,226,470 35,089 701,776 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 914,346 $ 12,044,923 $ 1,226,470 $ 35,099 $ 744,542 
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Jackson County, Or1egon 
Combining Balance Sh.!et i(Con1thmed) 

NonmajOlr Governmentall"unds 
June 30" 2012 ,-----------------------_._----,--

Debt Service Funds ------------ '-~-.~-~-
Library Juve:nile Urban Renewal 
Debt Debt Agency Debt 

Service Service Service -----_. ------, --....;;.;~;.....;;.;~--

$ 697,368 $ 97,053 $ 5,830,038 

611,055 65,064 

793 42,593 

=.$ 1,.34t~306: _ $ 917,846 _ =$====5=,9=3=7=,6=95= 

$ 
23,151 

%5,110 

___ J.!:~OOO • 

= 60t~261 : 

740,045 

$ 

------------

97,846 

___ ?4(~045. .• __ ...27,846_ 

$ 

= $ 1,:W~306. $ 97,8i~ $ 

47,897 

47,897 

5,889,798 

5,889,798 

5,937,695 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

21,359,591 

797,779 
29,207 

160,650 

22,347,227 

7,924 
344,292 
742,028 
303,726 

1,397,970 

11,262,407 
9,686,850 

20,949,257 

22,347,227 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
NonmajOi' Governmental Funds 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

Special 
Revenue Fund Ca£ital Projects 
Enhanced Law White White White City 
Enforcement Capital City City Lighting 

District Projects Capital Development District 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ $ $ 257,445 $ $ 
Charges for services 1,135,465 
Ta.xe; 1,306,201 304,604 
Initer1:st 16,493 98,409 34,681 899 12,517 
Misc,~lIa.neous 11,672 

Tntal revenues 1,322,694 1,245,546 292,126 899 317,121 

EXPENDITURES 
Cum:nt: 

General Government 144,744 
Community Justice & Safety 1,315,606 
Culture & Recreation 
P lanning, Development & 

Natural Resources 345,024 29,298 152,817 
Transportation 602,960 

Debt service: 
Principal 123,485 
Interest 43,435 

Capital outlay: 
General Government 10,332,653 
Planning, Development & 

Natural Resources 2,396,580 58,252 
Transportation 1,027,821 

Tntal expenditures 1,315,606 12,275,098 2,741,604 29,298 21 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 7,088 (11,029,552) (2,449,478) (28,399) 106,052 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 19,824,502 
Transfers out (779,309) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 19,045,193 

Net change in fund balances 7,088 8,015,641 (2,449,478) (28,399) 106,052 

Fund baiances - beginning 745,696 3,489,808 3,675,948 63,488 595,724 

Fund balances - ending $ 752,784 $ 11,505,449 $ 1,226,470 $ 35,089 $ 701,776 
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Jackson CoullIty,. Oregolll 
Combining Staltem{!~nt of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balanl:es (Contiltlued) 

Nonmajor Governmeiltal Funds 
For the fiscal y,~~.endel:~~~e 31~: 2012 

Debt Service Funds -.--.----.-------.. =~-.----
Ubra.ry Juvenile Urban Renewal 
Debt Debt Agency Debt 

Service 

$ $ 

2,976 .. 625 
31,320 

3,007,945 

Service 

$ 

Service 

107,227 
103,403 

210,630 

$ 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

257,445 
1,135,46:5 
4,694,657 

297,722 
11,672 

6,396,961 

144,744 
1,315,606 

4,153 4,153 

2,165,000 
877,065 

___ (38,273). 

(38,273) 

___ 778,318 ___ 9'7,84~ 

= $ 74(~045: _ $ 9'1,846 _ $ 

785,000 
143,827 

928,827 

(718,197) 

(718,197) 

6,607,995 

527,139 
602,960 

3,073,485 
1,064,327 

110,332,653 

2,454,832 
1,027,821 

20,547,720 

(114,150,759) 

19,824,502 
(779,309) 

119,045,193 

4,894,434 

16,054,823 

5,889,798 =$===2=0,=,9=49=,=25=7= 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Enhanced Law Enforcement District Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the fiscal year ended June 30,2012 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Ori~inal Final Amounts Final Budget 

REVENUES 
Taxe:; $ 1,325,700 $ 1,325,700 $ 1,306,201 $ (19,499) 
Interest 10,000 10,000 16,493 6,493 

Total revenues 1,335,700 1,335,700 1,322,694 

EXPENDITURES 
Community Justice & Safety: 

P{,rsonal services 933,680 883,436 50,244 
Materials and services 1,925,700 567,020 432,170 134,850 
Ocher requirements 100,000 100,000 

Total expenditures 1,925,700 1,600,700 1,315,606 285,094 

Net change in fund balances (590,000) (265,000) 7,088 272,088 

Fund ba lances - beginning 590,000 590,000 155,696 

Fund balances - ending .. $ 325,000 $ 752,784 
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Jackson COUI111ty~. Oregon 
Capitall Projects Fund 

S(:hedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balan4~e Budg(~Jt and Actual 

-- For the fiscal year ended J~~e 3~, 2012 

Bud!leted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Original Revised Amounts --~!!.:~ 

REVENUES 

Charges for serv ices $ 540,000 $ 545,000 $ 1,135,465 $ 590,465 

Inlerest 96,786 96,786 98,409 

Miscelianeous I 

Tot'J revenues 636,786 641,786 

EXPENDITURES 

Gi~neral Government 

Capital Projects: 

Materials and services 200,000 200,000 144,744 55,256 

Capital outlay 20,201,943 9.,699,290 

Total General Government 20,401,943 9.,754,546 

Culture, & Recrc,ation 

Parks System Development 

Materials and services 119,5~0 119,500 _____ 119,500 

T ransportati{)l1 

Str,!et Improvement: 

Materials and services 1,015,000 998,000 9,153 988,847 

Debt service 150,000 167,000 80 ---------
Total Street Improvement 1,165,000 _____ 988,927 

Greenway: 

Materials and services 1,100 14,571 14,571 

Capital outlay 990 .-.. ~-----
Total Greenway 1,100 --.~ • ______ , 15,56.!.., 

Roads System Development: 

Mat(~rials and services 49,000 49,000 _. _____ . 5,000 

Bridge Replacement: 

Materials and services 228,000 544,807 544,807 

Capital outlay 1,033,193 1,024,811 -----,~~ 
Total Bridge Replacemer,t 1,578,000 1,569,618 -----~ 

Total Transportation 2,815,571 1,797,701 _____ ld)17,870 

Total expenditures 12,215,098 ____ 1,2,;,891,916 

Excess (defidency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (22,525,228) (11,029,552) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Tmnsfers in 19,872,814 19,872,814 19,824,502 (48,312) 

Transfers out (635,000) (805,000) (779,309) 

Total other financing sources and uses 19,237,814 19,067,814 19,045,193 

Net ehange in fund baIan~es (3,439,943) (3,457,414) 8,015,641 11,473,055 

Fund hala;lces - beginning 3,439,943 3,457,414 3,489,808 

Fund balan,~es - ending $ $ 11,505,449 

58 
-----------,---,-~---,--



Jackson County, Oregon 
White City Capital Fund 

S{:hedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Original Revised Amounts Final Budset 

REVEl'lUES 
Intergovernmental $ $ $ 257,445 $ 257,445 
Interest 49,348 34,681 (14,667) 

Total revenues 49,348 49,348 292,126 

EXPENDITURES 
Planning, Development & Natural Resources: 

Matl:rials and services 1,125,000 1,125,000 345,024 779,976 
Capital outlay 1,556,218 8 2,396,580 459,638 

Total expenditures 2,681,218 3,981,218 2,741,604 14 

Net change in fund balances (2,631,870) (3,931,870) (2,449,478) 1,482,392 

Fund balance - beginning 2,631,870 3,931,870 ~75,948 (255,922l 
Fund balance - ending $ $ 1,226,470 $ 1,226,470 
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Jackson COlLllllty,. Oregon 
White City Devdolpment Fundi. 

Schedule of Revenues, .Expenditures, allid Changes in Fund Balances -- Budg{~1t and Actual 
For the fiscal y('~~ende,:~~~e 3~~ 2012 

REVENUES 
Interest 

EXPENDITURES 
Planning, Development & Natural Resources: 

PI~rsonal services 
Materials and selvices. 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

lFund balanct:s - beginning 

lFund balanct!s _. ending 

Budgeted Amounts 
~inal Revised 

$ 54 $ 54 

5,000 
60,000 

65,000 

(64,946) 

A ctual Varian,ct~ with 
Amounts __ Final Bl!~ 

$ 899 845 

3,678 1,322 
_~,620 _____ 1:4,380 

__ 29,298 ____ 1:5,702 

(28,399) 36,547 

~,174 

~,174 

(29,120) 

29,120 64,946 __ 63,488 ______ J,1,4581 

$ $ 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
White City Lighting District 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

REVENUES 
Taxe~, 

Intl~rest 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Planning, Development & Natural Resources: 

Mlterials and services 
Cc!pital outlay 

Total expenditures 

N(~t change in fund balances 

Fund balance - beginning 

Fund balance - ending 

$ 

$ 

Buds;eted Amounts 
Oris;inal Revised 

309,604 $ 309,604 
10,000 10,000 

319,604 319,604 

779,932 779,932 
120,900 120,900 

900,832 900,832 

(581,228) (581,228) 

581,228 581,228 

$ 

Actual Variance with 
Amounts Final Buds;et 

$ 304,604 $ (5,000) 
12,517 2,517 

3 21 ~2,4831 

152,817 627,115 
58,252 62,648 

211,069 689,763 

106,052 687,280 

~5,724 14,496 

$ 701,776 $ 701,776 
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Jackson COlLlnty, Oregon 
Library Debt Service Fund 

Schedule of Revenl1les, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balancc~s -- Budg£:t and Actual 
For the fiscal y{'~~endec!~~~e 31~: 2012 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Intefl~st 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Culture & Recreation: 

Liibrary S··1 
Materials and services 
Debt Service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Total Librmy S··} 
Library S··2 

Debt Service: 
Principal 
Interest 

Total Library S-2 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - endiing 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

$ 3,061,302 
___ .21,563 

3,082,865 

1,065,000 
487,765 

__ ~1...,;;,552, 765 

1,100,000 
430,100 

1,530, I 00 

_----"'3"""',082,865 

737,345 

$ 737,345 

$ 3,061,302 

$ 

21,563 

3,082,865 

1,065,000 
487,765 

1,552,765 

1,100,000 
430,100 

1,530,100 

3,082,865 

737,345 

737,345 

Actual 
Amounts 

Varianc(: with 

__ El!lal Bl:~ 

$ 2,,976,625 $ (84,677) 
___ ._1!:,32~ __ .. __ . __ 9,75~'-
__ ,,-,3,:~)07 ,945 __ .. __ Q·4,92(~ 

4,,153 (4,153) 

1,.065,000 
446,965 ____ JI0,800 

1,516,118 ___ -26,647 

1,.1 00,000 
___ ':~30_,10_0_ _ ____ . __ _ 

1,530,100 

3,046,218 ____ 16,647 

(38,273) (38,273) 

___ .1'78,~ ____ J:0,973 

$ 740,045 J~===2,700 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Juvenile Debt Service Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

$ 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

$ 

$ 

Actual 
Amounts 

97,846 

97,846 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

$ 97,846 

63 



- ---- - -------_ •. _--- .'7'-"" ;;;za",,- ___ 'r_',_, ~~~..au...~~ -__ •• t;"'''''''7''''~~~~ 

Jackson County,. Oregon 
Urban Renewal Debt Service Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances .- BudgE:t and Actual 
______ For the fiscal year ende,~~~!!!~~ 20t!. 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amount __ ~'inc~~~ ----

REVENlJES 
Taxes $ 149,063 $ 149,063 $ 107,227 $ (4J:,836) 
Interest 130,015 130,015 __ 103,~03 ____ -.f~;,612) 

Total revenues 279,078 279,078 -----.1! ° ,63 0 _____ (1~:,448} 

EXPENDITURES 
Planning, De.velopment & Natural Resources: 

Other requirements 4,550,858 4,550,858 4,550,858 
D.ebt service: 

Principal 785,000 785,000 785,000 
Interest 143,828 143,828 __ 1~f3,827 --------

Total expenditures 5,479,686 5,479,686 __ 2.?8,827 ____ 4,5~1,859 

Net change in fund balances (5,200,608) (5,200,608) (718,197) 4,482,411 

Fund balance - beginning 5,200,608 5,200,608 6,607,995 ____ 1,4Q2',387 

Fund balance - ending $ $ $ 5,889,798 $ 5,889,798 
====--==== :=;:;;;:=~=:= 
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.nt,,,,rr,r .. , .. Funds 

These funds are used to account for the acquisition, operation and maintenance of County facilities which are 
predominately self-supporting through service charges and user fees to customers. 

• Exposition Park Enterprise 

• Airport Enterprise 

• Recreation Enterprise 



Jackson Coulllty., Oregon 
Exposition Park Entf,rprise Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actua) 

For the fiscal year ende~1 J~~e 30, 2012 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for servkes 
Taxes 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Operations: 

P,ersonal servkes 
Materials and selvices 

Total expenditures 

Ex(:ess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOUR.CES (USES) 
Transfers in 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance - beginning 

Fund balance: - ending 

Total from above: 
RI~venues 

Expenditures 
Other financing sourc~~s (uses) 

Add: 
Gain on sale of fixed assets 
Capital contributions 

Less: 
Depreciation 

Change in net assets as reported in 
statemtmt of revenues, expenses and 
changes in fund net assc~ts 

$ 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

18,015 $ 18,015 
1,631,269 1,469,277 

8,008 

220,350 220,350 

1,877,642 1,707,642 

498,570 439,013 
1,399,404 1,458,961 

1,897,974 1,897,974 

(20,332) (190,332) 

20,332 190,332 

$ 

Actual Variance with 
Amounts ._ Final Budget 

$ 50,002 $ 31,987 
1,474,899 5,622 

2,091 2,091 

... __ ...!2,0~_ 

__ I ,759,392 •. . _____ 51,750 

426,885 12,128 
1 . ____ 38,546 

1,847,300 _ . ___ 2.0,674_ 

(87,908) 102,424 

102,424 102,424 

__ (239,621) . __ .J?19,6212. 

$ (137,197):) (137,197) 

$ 1,759,392 
(1,847,300) 

___ ...!2.0,332 • 
102,424 

43,437 
204,775 

(439,551). 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Airport Enterprise Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

REVENUES 
Interg.)vemmental 
Charg.~s fi)r services and rentals 
Fines ,md forfeitures 
lnt,,:re!lt 
Misce llaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Operations: 

Pe'sonal services 
Materi:als and services 
Capital outlay 
Otiler requirements 

Total expenditures 

Ex(:esi (deficiency) of revenues 
ov~r (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
T r:msters in 

Net ehange in fund balance 

Fund balance - beginning 

Fund ;JaIance - ending 

Total rrom above: 
R,venues 
Eli penditures 
Other financing sources (uses) 

Add: 
Expertditures capitalized 
Bonds payable principal payment 
Amortization of bond premium 
Contract payable payment 

Less: 
Depreciation 
Bond issuance expense 
Loss on disposal of assets 

Change in net assets as reported in 
statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in fund net assets 

$ 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

7,279,164 $ 7,279,164 
9,052,611 9,052,611 

1,400 1,400 
205,149 205,149 

15,000 1 

16,553,324 

2,755,372 2,755,372 
3,860,279 3,860,279 
9,378,656 9,614,917 

16,236,718 16,000,457 

32,231,025 32,231,025 

(\5,677,701) (15,677,701) 

51,668 51,668 

(15,626,033) (\5,626,033) 

15,923,264 

297,231 $ 297,231 

Actual Variance with 
Amounts Final Budget 

$ $ (3,615,758) 
(745,087) 

4,248 
54,883 
9,280 

(4,292,434) 

2,178,089 577,283 
2,895,751 964,528 
5,465,665 4,149,252 

3 

11,881,049 20,349,976 

379,841 16,057,542 

5 

431,509 16,057,542 

649,218 

$ 16,706,760 

$ 12,260,890 
(11,881,049) 

51,668 
431,509 

5,465,664 
340,000 

41,378 
10,000 

(4,577,386) 
(44,552) 

(192,818) 

$ 1,473,796 
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Jackson County, Oll~eg()ln 
Recreation Enterpris(;~ Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Ch:anges illl FlUlIld Balances 
Budget (Non-GAAP Budg,etary Basis) 3md Actuaf 

____________ . __ F_o_r_t_h_e_fi_ls_c_a....;1 y::....(;~ar end(;~d .~~;~le 3~:, 20U 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with 

REVENUES 

Intergovernmental 
Cilarges for services 
Fi nes: and forfeitures 
Interest 
Miscl~llaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Operations: 

P,:rsonal services 
Materials and services 

Capital outlay 
Other requirement~: 

Total expenditures 

Excess (detlciency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditurt~s 

OTHER FINA'JCING SOURCES (USES) 
Tnmsfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (USI~S) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance - beginning 

Fund balance - ending 

Total from above: 
Revenues 
Expenditures 
Oth'~r financing sources (uses) 

Add: 
Expenditures capitalized 
Capital contributions 

Less: 
Depreciation 
Book value of fixed assets sold 

Change in Het assets as reported in 

Original 

$ 958,779 
827,500 

17,000 
5,000 

_ 1,808,279 

825,082 
1,100,338 

175,000 
381,457 

2,481,877 

(673,598) 

123,598 

123,598 

(550,000) 

550,,000 

$ 

statement ofrevenm:s, expenses and changes in fund net assets 

-

$ 

$ 

Final 

958,779 
827,500 

17,000 
5,000 

1,808,279 

825,082 
1,124,478 

147,000 

381,457 

2,478,017 

$ 

Amounts 

783,580 
823,076 

155 
13,918 
2.,984 

1,623,713 

696,673 
947,941 

87,832 

__ 1 .... ,7,32,446 

__ fl~al E~:~ 

$ (175,199) 
(4,424) 

155 
(3,082) 

. _____ (2,016) 

, _____ (~:4,566) 

] 28,409 
176,537 

59,168 

. ____ . ...J~1 ,457 

. ____ ,~5,571 

(669,738) ___ (!08,733). ___ ._~~1,005 

123,598 

(3,860) 

119,738 

(550,000) 

550,000 

89,389 

___ (3,~60t 

(23,204) 

(34,209) 

526,796 

___ !,~35,4~ .. __ . __ ~~::,491 

=$====812,287 ::$::= 8~~,287 

$ 1,623,713 
(1,732,446) 

~\5,5~ 
---(23,204) 

87,832 
110,808 

(4013,448) 
__ .l.,;;.(1~1,727) 

=$======(3:::5:9,739) 
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Internal Service Fund 

This fbnd is used to account for activities and services perfonned for other organizational units within the 
County en a cost reimbursement basis. Charges to other organizational units are made to support these activities. 
The IntemaJi Service Fund includes Motor Pool, Computer Replacement, Self-Insurance and Central Services. 



· ---------_._---------------------------_ .. _,.'._----_.-_.'-------

Jackson COlllnty, Oregon 
Intemal Selt"Vilr:(~ Fund 

Schedule of RevEmues, Expenditures, and Changes in lWlHld B:alancE~ 
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis;) and! A.ctuaJ 

For the fiscal yE~ar endE;!.:!une ~" 2012 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Commissioners 
Information Teehnology 
Finanee 
County Counsel 
County Administration 
Fiduciary 
Library 
Motor Poo.! 
Computer Replacement 
Risk :\fanagement-General & Auto Liability 
Selt~Il')surance Health Plan 
Workers' Compensation 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINA~'JCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers O'Jt 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance - beginning 

Fund balance ending 

Total J'rom above: 
Revenues 
Expend iture s 
Otber finandng sources (uses) 

Add: 
Expenditures capitalized 

Less: 
Depreciatiou 
Book value of capitalll!;sets sold 

Change in net assets. as reported in 
statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in fund net assets 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

193,721 
19,687,419 

205,722 

20,091,192 

722,230 
4,952,450 

853,766 
866,169 

5,349,867 
2,730,601 

109,459 
2,815,721 

759,122 
6,238,467 
7,430,534 

$ 193,721 
19,761,461 

205,722 

20,165,234 

722,230 
5,002,450 

853,766 
866,169 

5,527,769 
2,573,376 

116,684 
3,421,328 

759,122 
6,238,467 
7,430,534 
2,619,935 

_..:;3.:..1.5,.;..44;8,321 36,131,830 

(\5,966,596) 

2,256,069 2,259,929 
(21,545) 

2,238,384 

(13,101,060) (13,728,212) 

13,728,212 

$ 

Actual 
Amounts 

$ llO,035 
18,889,193 

328,496 
__ ---:'5,184 

19,332,908 

653,751 
4,502,001 

819,240 
671,852 

5,123,709 
65,377 

111,832 
2,263,845 

216,438 
2,172,246 
4,065,119 

__ 618,677 

21,284,087 

Variance with 
__ Final~~ 

$ (83,686) 
(872,268) 
122,774 

854 

68,479 
500,449 

34,526 
194,317 
404,060 

2,507,999 
4,852 

1,.157,483 
542,684 

6,2:;8,467 
7,430,534 
2,6J9,935 

(1,951,179) ___ 20,871,459 

2,229.929 

__ JJ2.2.~.?l 
___ 22~08,384 

257,205 

11,233,387 

$ 11,490,592 

$ 19,331,908 
(21,284,087) 

____ 2"-:-,2.08,384 

257,205 

1,024,517 

(I, [06,604) 
__ .... (6,4,712) 

(30,000) 

,--------
, ___ ~,o,000) 

20,841,459 

___ (2,494,825) 

$ 18,346,634 
: -
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----------.----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Trust and Agency Funds account for resources received and held by the County in a fiduciary capacity or as an 
agent for private organizations, other governments and other funds. Disbursements from these funds are made in 
accordance with the trust agreement or applicable legislative enactment. These include Pension Trust Funds and 
Agency Funds. Pension Trust Funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds. 
Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of 
operations. 

PENS[ON TRUST FUNDS: (Nonbudgeted) 

To account for County pension plans. 

• Jackson County Employees' Retirement Plan #2 

• Jackson County Employees' Retirement Plan #4 

AGENCY FUNDS: (Non budgeted) 

• CII!rk Recording - For the receipt and disbursement of funds collected by the County Clerk on behalf 
of other agencies. 

• Ja4~kson County Justice Court For the receipt and disbursement of court fines and fees paid to 
Jackson County and other agencies. 

• Forfeiture - To account for receipt and disbursement of seized property, which is turned over to other 
agencies or retained by Jackson County. 

• Sheriff-For the receipt and disbursement of bail payments which are turned over to the State courts. 

• Special Deposits - Amounts on deposit with the County Treasurer, including unclaimed warrants, 
within parameters established by State law. 

• Property Tax Clearing - Used for the depositing and distributing of all tax funds received by the 
County Tax Collector. 



-. _________ , ______ , ____ = ____________________ '0 ___ .' ________________________________________ ... 0==.0 ____ .1.0 __ ===1 _= .... _ .... 1 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Mutua~ fund investments 

Total assets 

NET ASSETS 

Held in trust for employees' 
pension benefits 

Jackson COUlllltJ', Oregon 
PensiOII 1l'mst Funds 

Combining Statemenlt of Fiduc:iallry Net Assets 
.June 30, 2012 ------,----"----

Jackson County Employes' 
Retirement Plan TlUst Funds -...;;.;;.;..;,;; Totals ---,----"-----,--, 
Plan #2 Plan #4 2012 2011 ------- -------,--, 

$ 4,895,223 $ 2,349,515 $ 7,244,738 $ 7,424,400 
7,167,901 3,437,989 __ 1-,0,~i05,890 ____ 10,944,922 

$ 12,063,124 $ 5,787,504 $ 17,850,,628 ~~= 18,369,322 

$ 12,063,124 $ 5,787,504 $ 17,850,628 ~~=18,~~9,322 
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ADDITIONS 
Contributions - employer $ 
Investment earnings 

Total additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Benefits 
Inve~;tment loss 
Administrative expense 

Total deductions 

Change in net assets 

Net assets - beginning 

Net ass!:ts - ending $ 

Jackson County, Oregon 
Pension Trust Funds 

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

Jackson County Employes' 
Retirement Plan Trust Funds Totals 
Plan #2 Plan #4 2012 2011 

829,131 $ 310,507 $ 1,139,638 $ 1,140,720 
3,172,039 

829,131 310,507 1,139,638 

1,111,444 510,575 1,622,019 ] ,479,854 
9,378 10,161 19,539 
9,207 7,567 16,774 11,306 

1,130,029 528,303 1,658,332 ],491,160 

(300,898) (217,796) (518,694) 2,821,599 

12,364,022 6,005,300 18,369,322 ]5,547,723 

12,063,124 $ 5,787,504 $ 17,850,628 $ 18,369,322 

70 -----------------------------------------------------------------------



----------------, -

.Jackson County, Oregon 
AgEmcy FUllIds 

Combining Statement ofllfiduciary Net AS5:ets 
June 30, 2012 ---------------------------.--------------------------------------

ASSETS 

Cash and investment" 
Receivables (n<:1 of 

allowance for 
uncolleGtibles) 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payaHe 
Amoums held in trust 

Total liabilities 

Clerk 
Recording 

Jackson 
County 
Justice 

Forfeiture 

$ 4,775 $ 184,737 $ 92,279 $ 3,575 $ 

------ ----, 
$ 4,775 ===-_-_-_-_- i=:===== 

$ 92,279 

$ 4,625 $ 164,568 $ $ $ 

Special 
Deposits 

1l,067 $ 

$ 

Property 
Tax 

3,045,162 $ 

Totals 

3,341,595 $ 3,867,889 

15,091,980 , __ 15,0~~~ _ • ....;.;..:.;.......;.;..;.;.._ 

$ 169,193 $ 88,895 
____ 1_50_ ••• _;..:.;...:.;;.;:.;; ___ ..;.9..;.2,:....,27..;.9 ___ ~.;..;..... __ ..;.1.;.:1,,,-06:..;7 ___ ;..:.;...:.;..;;.....:..;.....;;... • __ 1~,26:!,38~ _,....;.;...:..;.;;;..;..,.;.c..:.... 

$ 4,775 $ 184,737 $ 92,279 $ 11,067 $ 
==== ...... -
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-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Clerk Recording: 
Assets: 

Cash and investments $ 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 

Amounts held in trust 

Total liabilities $ 

Jackson County Justice Court: 
Assets: 

Cash and inVC!stments $ 
Receivables (net of allowance for uncol!ectibJes) 

Total as:;ets $ 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 

Amounts held in trust 

Totallh:bilities $ 

Forfeiture: 
Assets: 

Cash and investments $ 

Liabilities: 
Amount~; heid in trust $ 

SherifIDeposi ts: 
Assets: 

Cash and investments $ 
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 

Total a5sels $ 

Liabilitie:;: 
Accounts payable $ 
Amounts hdd in trust 

Totalliabilitit:s $ 

Jackson County, Oregon 
Agency Funds 

Com bining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

Balances Balances 
2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012 

4,300 $ 32,438 $ 4,775 

4,150 $ 28,200 $ 27,725 $ 4,625 
150 32,438 32,438 150 

4,300 $ 60,638 63 $ 4,775 

92,031 $ 2,838,013 $ 2,745,307 $ 184,737 
1,596 

92,031 $ 2,839,609 

84,745 $ 682,216 $ 602,393 $ 164,568 
2,434,761 20,169 

92,031 $ 3,116,977 

90,866 $ 2,826 $ 1,413 $ 92,279 

90,866 $ 1,413 $ 92,279 

2,435 $ 103,409 $ 102,269 $ 3,575 
4,286 

2,435 $ 107,695 $ 3,575 

$ 1,320 $ 1,320 $ 

2,435 97,802 

$ 99,122 $ 3,575 

(Continues) 
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Special Deposits: 
Assets: 
Cash and invt:stments 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Amounts held in trust 

Total liabilities 

Property Tax Clearing: 
Assets: 

Cash and investments 
Receivables (net of allowance 

for uncollectibles) 

Tota 1 assets 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Amounts held in trust 

Total liabilities 

Total all Agency Funds: 
Assets: 

Cash and investments 
Receivablt:s (net of allowance 

for I.lncollectibles) 

Total assets 

Liabiliti,es: 
Accounts payable 
Amounts held in trust 

Total liabilities 

Jac:kso11l County, Oregon 
Agt'~ncy FUl11ds 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets, allld LiabLliti.es (C:=ontir1lUt~d)i 
For the fis~:al year ~~~~~~...:!..~;le 30, 2~!'12~ 

$ 

$ 

Balances 
June 30, 2011 

10,912 

___ 10,91~ 

=$== 10,912 

$ 3,667,345 

___ 15-,-,3,41,833 

=$==19=,009,178 

$ 
__ 1_9-,-,0,09,178 

=$===1=9=,009,178 

$ 3,867,889 

15,341 ,83~, 

$ 19,209,722 

$ 88,895 
19,120,827 -

$ 19,209,722 
= 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Additions 

51,401 

49,447 
49,637 

99,084 

$ 239,048,074 

$ 239,048,074 

$ 2,520,410 
237,228,349 

$ 239,748,759 

$ 242,076,161 

5,882 

$ 242,082,043 

$ 3,281,593 
239,844,400 

$ 243,125,993 

Deletions 

$ 49,,44~1 

$ 98,929 
======= 

$ 239,670,257 

$ 2,520,410 

__ 238,IOO,:~85_ 

~_ 240,620,~~95 : 

$ 242,602,4:55 

___ 255,7~!l., 

$ 242,858,1?0 : 

$ 3,201,295 

240,700,8:2-

$ 243,902, I '~o 

$ 

Balances 
June 30, 2012 

, ---

__ , __ 11,0~2. _ 

$ 

$ 3,045,162 

15,091,98!~ 

$ 18,137,14~~ 

$ 
, __ , 18,137,14~~" 

$ 3,341,595 

15,091 ,98(~_ 

$ 18,433,57:~= ---, 

$ 169,193 
18,264,382 --

$ 18,433,575 
---, --
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Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds 



Jackson County, Oregon 
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of GoverIllm,ental Funds 

Comparative Schedll!I(~ by Source 

Governmt:ntal funds capital asse:ts: 
Land 
Buildings 
Improvements other than buildings 
Equipment 
Software 
Infrastructure 
Construction in progress 

Total governmental funds capital assets 

Investments in governmental funds capital assets by source: 
General fund 
Special revenue fund 
Capital projects funds 

Total governmental funds capital assets 

June 30, 2012 and 2011 ._--------_._-.....;..._-----

$ 

$ 

$ 

2012 

18,618,530 
124,641,910 

4,866,208 
18,513,639 

1,964,769 
207,756,243 

10,814,674 

129,573,021 
188,204,173 

387,175,973 

$ 

$ ---

2011 

18,296,676 
124,123,732 

4,717,808 
17,830,490 

1,404,954 
196,079,888 

17,978,437 

380,43] ,985 

$ 128,785,757 
191,516,147 

_____ 60,1~),081 
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Function and Acti'lit;;:: Land Buildinlls 

General GovemlU('nt: 
Assessmellt $ $ 35,718 
Finance 

Taxation 
Property management 284.553 

Emergency ~1.U1ag,ement 
Fiduciary 6,057,721 35,119,542 
Title III 
Capital Projec, F,UId 44,480 

Total General Government 6,342,274 35,199,740 

Elections & Re"ords: 
C Olillty Ckrk-:'olectionslRecording 

Elections 
Recording 

SurveyoT 

Total Elections and Records 

Community Jusace & Safety: 
District Attom"y 

Prosecution Case Management 100,940 710,017 
Sheriff 

Administration 243,688 12,211,673 
Civil Proc"ssing 
Correc']on; 258,499 
Criminal Services 34,834 
Search and Rescue 117,615 
SaINT 

Community Justice Dept 
Adult supervision & Program 10,290 
Transib:on Center 104,922 
Conununit:r Justice· Juvenile 947,444 17,355,732 
C owt Serv lees 

Court Security Fund 227,307 
Law Enforcoment District 

Total Community Justice 
& Safety 1,292,072 31,030,889 

Jackson County, Oregon 
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds 

Schedule by Function and Activity 
June 30, 2012 

Improvements 
Other Than Construction 
Buildinlls E!jui[!Jnent Software Infrastructure in Pros;ress Total 

S S 43,349 $ 931,475 $ $ $ 1.010.542 

23,171 23.171 
284,553 

456,145 456.145 
533,731 587,160 391,454 173,361 42.862,969 

1,016,294 1,016,294 
63,466 10,358,939 10,466.885 

533,731 2,189.585 1,322,929 10,532300 56.120,559 

181,870 181,870 
63,195 63,195 

130,406 130,406 

375,471 375,471 

79,219 890.176 

116,184 585,411 70,441 13.227,407 
36,792 36,792 

36,665 845,520 16,870 1,157,554 
744.865 55,756 835,455 

78,094 205,771 401,480 

12,890 5,995 18,885 

155,157 44,937 210,384 
164,060 268,982 

199.876 7,940 18,510,992 
10,457 10,457 
49,148 276,455 

5,702 5.702 

598,866 2,785,827 143,067 35,850.721 
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............................ 1 ........... 1 ................. 1 .............................. IIZI ..... . ---

Jackson County, Oregon 
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds 

Schedule by Function and Adh'ity (Continued) 
.JUIH'~ 30, 20U 

----------------------------------------------------"------
Improvements 

Other Than 
Function and Activity ____ ---h!!l_d ____ B:;:,u::;i:::ld::;in:,:c!!;:::s __ .....:::B;::u::;ild:::i.:;ng:.;s:-_ 

TTansportation: 
Roads, Parks & Planning 

Admir} istration 
Engineering 
Road Maintenano, 
Vegetation Control 
Fleet Serv'ices 
COlIDty Bridge R{'placement 

County Trails 

$ 654,684 $ 4,821,270 $ 

4,200,397 

77,500 
322,022 

4,283 

551,025 

980,459 

53,914 
33,858 

19,942 

229,791 
Bear Creek Greenway 3,058,123 __ 1~ _______ ..;;;::;:==_ 

Total Transportation 

Culture, Education & Recreation: 
Librruy 

AdlTlnistration 
Law Libnuy 

Total Culture, Education 
& Reel eation 

tkalth & Human Services 
Health & Human Services 

Administration 
Humatl Se,rvices 
SubstlIDce Abuse 
Public Health 
Animal Control! Shelter 

6,352,754 3,395,628 

2,25",112 45,488,520 37,419 

45,488,520 37.419 

J,52S,2i7 6,570,007 280,155 

280,\55 Total Health & !cluman Ser",ce" __ 1_,528,277 __ ..:;6J.:,5~7.::.0,..::0.::.07:- ___ .....::.==_ 
Planning, Development & Natural Resources 

DeYelopment S"rvices Planning 
Naiura! Resources - \Vatermaster 
Wl,ite Ci~!' Urbaa Renewal 323,685 20,409 
""hite Ci~!' Lighting District -------;....---, 

Tota! Plaru.ing, Development & 
Natun>l ResuUfc"s __ 323,685 _____ _ 20,409 

Egu1pment 

$ 192,655 
305,299 

9,784,451 
472,887 
577,480 

8,400 

11,341,172 

1,212,072 
14,233 

__ I ,226,305 

14,323 
254,510 

71,942 
91,737 

__ 32,878 

465.390 

16,360 
113,529 

129,889 

Construction 
Software Infrastructure ..-J!~~[''?!.L- Total 

$ $ $ $ 5,722,523 
154,167,812 ;!32,374 158,989,74(' 

1O,335,4U 
472,887 

1,655,381 
29,923,049 30,245,071 

242,474. 

------ 4,677,34;~. 

184,090,861 __ agJ1i.. 212,340,89~~ 

----------------
48,992,12:1 

14,23L, 

49,006,35'; ---------------

8,392.76:1 
498,773 753,283 

71,942 
91,737 ____________________ E..EL 

498,773 _______ • ___ ••• __ ---2.J.;!l.2!!L 

16,360 
113,529 

23,586,463 23,930,557 
________ 78,919 ________ E,9JS~ 

________ 23,665,::!!L ______ _ 24,J39,36~~ 

fOlal Govemmental Funds 
Capita! A,set. $4,866,208 $18,513,639 $1.964,769 $207.756,243 
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Function and Activity 

General Gov,~rmnent: 
Asse,smmt 
Finance 

T'lXation 
Property management 

Emeqency Management 
Fiduciary 
Title ill 
Capital Project Fund 

Total General Govermnent 

Elections & Records: 
COllnty Clerk 

Elections 
RI,cording 

Surveyor 

Te·tallElections & Records 

Community Justice & Safety: 
District attorney 
Sh.,riff: 

Administration 
Civil Processing 
Ccrrections 
Criminal Services 
Seirch and Rescue 
So TNT 

Comrn unilY Justice Department: 
Acult Supervision and Program 
Community Justice 
Tnmsillion Center 
Su:)ervision Services 
Court Services 
Community Justice - Juvenile 

Court :")ecurity Fund 
Law En1brcement District 

To::al Community Justice & Safety 

Jackson County, Oregon 
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

Govemmental Governmental 
Funds Capital Transfers Funds Capital 

Assets within Assets 
July I, 2011 Deletions Functions June 30, 2012 

$ 520,079 $ 509,195 $ (18,732) $ $ 1,010,542 

6,461 16,710 23,171 
284,553 284,553 
456,145 456,145 

42,424,332 586,266 (147,628) 42,862,970 
1,016,294 1,016,294 

10,477,125 (716,995) 10,466,884 

12,605,590 (883,355) 56,120,559 

181,870 181,870 
55,590 7,605 63,195 

130,406 130,406 

367,866 7,605 375,471 

756,054 134,122 890,176 

12,959,506 429,632 (161,731) 13,227,407 

16,116 20,676 36,792 
1,176,235 (18,681 ) 1,157,554 

344,075 123,630 367,750 835,455 
1,292,974 302,074 (1,016,294) (177,274) 401,480 

49,625 (30,740) 18,885 

372,706 (36,644) (125,678) 210,384 

277,426 (8,444) 268,982 

10,457 10,457 
18,510,992 18,510,992 

276,455 276,455 
5,702 5,702 

36,048,323 855,336 (1,052,938) 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governm€::llttal FlLlnds 

Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity (Continued) 
_____________________ . ___ F_o_r_t_h_e_fi_ls_ca_l_y_e_~,r ended, Jl!~ 30~2012 

Governmental Governmc'ntal 
Funds Capital Transfers FWlds Capital 

Assets within Assets 

!.unctio!!..!!.~d Activity Julz:1,2011 Additions Deletions ._.;~?2£1,2..!l... 
Transportation: 

Roads, Parks & Planmng.: 
Administration 5,687,569 34,954 5,722,523 
Engineering 163,575,826 16,590,577 (21,176,663) 158,989,740 
Road Maintenance 10,125,718 438,020 (228,262) 10,335,476 
Vegetation Control 464,653 75,000 (66,766) 472,887 
Fleet Services 1,655,381 1,655,381 
County Bridge Replacement 29,220,260 5,815,292 (4,790,481 ) 30,245,071 

County Trails 242,474 242,474 
Bear Creek Greenway 4,677,347 

Total Tmnsportation 215,649,228 --E,953,843 

Culture, Education & Recreation: 
Library: 

Administration 47,751,084 47,751,084 
Tedmical Services 120,767 120,767 
Adult Services 1,120,272 1,120,272 
Law Library 22,674 (8,441) 

Total Culture, Education & R!:ereation 49,014,797 (8,441) ---_. 
Health & Human Services: 

Health & HU.man Services 
Administration 8,358,523 34,239 8,392,762 
Human Services 202,433 202,433 
Substance Abuse 70,402 (5,450) 64,952 
Public Health 91,270 (5,604) 8:5,666 
Developmental Disabilities 6,760 6,760 
Animal Control! Shelter 32,878 32,878 
Mental Health 567,022 I ---_. 
Total Health & Human Services 9,329,288 __ .24,239 (20,925) ---_. 

Planning, Development and Natural Resources: 
Development Services: 

Planning. 16,360 16,360 
Natural Resources - Watemlash:r 82,079 31,450 1 Ll,529 
White City Urban Renewal 25,511,712 8,603,703 (l 0, 184,858) 23,930,557 
White City Lighting District 14,007 __ ~4,912 

Total Pllm, Develop & Natural Resources 25,624,158 __ 8,700,065 (10,\84,858) ---_ .. ___ 24,139,365 

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 380,431,984 $ 45,156,678 $ (38,412,689) S -----, ----_. 

78 



Supplementary Schedules 

The County is required by State law to disclose the financial transactions of elected officials. This 
subsection includes schedules of cash receipts and turnovers for the Assessor, County Clerk, Sheriff, 
Surv1eyor and Justice Court. 

Other financial schedules in this subsection are property tax transactions, property taxes receivable and 
property tax collection schedules. 



• 1 • .................... 1 ................................................... 0 .............. Z£EE ........................... . 

Jackson County? On~gon 
Assji!ssor 

Schedule of Cash :R4~ceipts ami Turnovers 
________________ F_o_r_t_h_e_fi_ls_c_a_1 ::..ye_:il_r_ended~ Jl~~ 3°1.2012 

Cash on hand, July 1,2011 

Receipts: * 
State grants 

Application fees 

Map and photocopy sales 

Plat processing fees 

Miscellaneous 

T atal receipts 

Turnovers to County Treasurer 

Cash on hand, June 30,2012 

$ 754,572 
37,248 

1,619 

8,822 
10,085 ----..;., 

$ 220 

812,,346 

81 

$ 130 
====== 

*Tax rel~eipts are not reflected, as t~'{ation is a division of the Treasury and Financial Services Department. 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
County Clerk 

Schedule of Cash Receipts and Turnovers 
For the fiscal year ended June 30,2012 

------------------------------------------------------------------------~----

Cash on hand, July], 2O]]: 

Change funds 

Cash on deposit with County Treasurer 

Total cash 

Receipts:* 

Recording $ ],073,294 

Elections 471,092 

Total receipts 

Turnovers,: 

County Treasurer (revenues) 1,400,534 

Oth~rs ]43,377 

Total turnovers 

Cash 0[1 hand, June 30, 2012: 

Change fund 850 

Cas 1 on deposit with County Treasurer 4,775 

Tota] cash 

*Department cash receipts generally include fiduciary collections which are not recognized 

as n;:vt:nues of County operating funds. 

$ 850 

4,300 

5,150 

1,544,386 

1,543,9]1 

$ 
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----------------------------------------------------------------------------,----------------

Cash on hand, July 1,2011: 

Change fund 

Cash on deposit with County Treasurer 

Total cash 

Receipts* 

Turnovers: 

County Treasurer (revenues) 

Others 

Total turnovers 

Cash on hand, .Tune 30, 2012: 

Change fund 

Cash on deposit with County Treasurer 

Total cash 

Jackson County, iQregon 
Sheriff 

Schedule of Cash Rf:ceipts 3:ndl TUrllIovers 

For the fiscal year ended Jll~~ 300,W12 

$ 4,985,306 

___ 20,038 

1,015 

$ 7,770 

91,301 

99,071 

5,003,141 

5,00:5,344 

_~ __ :==96=,868 

*Department cash receipts generally include fiduciary collections which are not recognized 

as revenues of County operating funds. 
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Cash on hand, July 1,2011: 

Chang'~ fund 

Cash. on deposit with County Treasurer 

Total cash 

Rece:ipts: 

Surveyor document sales 

Cornerstone preservation funds 

Sur ley or fees 

Transfers from other funds 

Oth~r 

Total receipts 

Turnovers: 

County Treasurer 

Cash 01 hand, June 30, 2012: 

Change fund 

Cash on deposit with County Treasurer 

Total cash 

Jackson County, Oregon 
Surveyor 

Schedule of Cash Receipts and Turnovers 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

$ 60 

1,148,250 

1,148,310 

$ 20,178 

91 

68,335 

1,962 

21,024 

111,590 

137,770 

60 

1 1 

$ 1,122,130 
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Cash on hand, July 1, 20 II : 

Change Fund 

Cash on deposit with County Treasurer 

Receipts: 

Justice Court fines .and fees 

Turnovers: 

County Treasurer (revenues) 

Others 

T 01al Turnovers 

Cash on hand, June 30, 2012: 

Changle fund 

Cash on deposit with County Trea<;urer 

Total cash 

Jackson County, Oregon 
.Justice Court District 

Schedule of Cash Rf:ceipts a.ndl Turnovers 
For the fiscal year ended Jll~:!.! 30, ~W12 

$ 1,709,881 

626,811 ----, 

100 

___ 1, ~4,737 

100 

92,031 

92,131 

2,.429,398 

2,.336,692 
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Taxes 
Receivable 

Tax July I, 
Yeal 2011 ----. 

2011-12 $ 
2010-11 9,666,506 
2009-10 4,556,411 
2008-09 2,559,040 
2007-08 858,922 
2006-07 236,277 
2005-06 159,102 
2004-05 95,190 
2003-04 93,051 
2002-03 71,313 
Prior years 206,331 

Total:; $18,502,143 

Jackson County, Oregon 
Schedule of Property Tax Transactions and Outstanding Balances 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

Current Add Addl(Deduct) Taxes 
Levy as Deduct Interest on Deduct Cash Corrections Receivable 

Extended by Discounts Delinquent Collections and June 30, 
Assessor Taken Taxes on Taxes (1) Adjustments 2012 

$236,891,063 5,646,083 $199,817 $221,386,779 $ (846,736) $9,211,282 
(2,754) 556,253 5,733,782 (5,519) 4,486,212 
(8,534) 5 I 5,368 2,412,665 (15,919) 2,651,729 

(416) 694,577 2,270,223 32,718 1,016,527 
(235) 257,677 716,680 (32,351) 367,803 
(169) 33,910 85,368 (9,943) 175,045 

(20) 22,752 48,426 (13,437) 120,011 
7,654 22,307 (46) 80,491 
6,835 19,052 171 81,005 
6,663 19,507 (4,210) 54,258 

18,481 43,286 (12,781) 168,745 

$236,891,063 $5,633,955 $2,319,987 $232,758,076 ($908,053) $18,413,109 

(1) Amount includes property tax and payments of interest on delinquent taxes. 
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Special 

Law 
Enforcement 

Tax Year Total General District --- -,------ ------- -.......;;;.;;;.;;.;.;.;.-

2011-12 

2010-1 I 
2009-10 

2008-09 

2007-08 

2006-07 

2005-06 

2004-05 

2003-04 

2002-03 

$ 9,211,282 

4,486,2l2 

2,651,729 

1,016,528 

367,803 

175,045 

120,011 

80,491 

81,005 

54,258 

$ 1,260,150 

61J,738 

360,793 

134,240 

49,683 

24,141 

IM25 

11,047 

11,025 

$ 52,657 

25,836 

16,243 

1,828 

723 

364 

266 

187 

197 

139 

Jackson (::mmty, Oregon 
SchedulE~ of F'roperty Taxes Receivable by lie,'), Year by Fund 

Last Ten Fisi;:al Years 

Capital Projects 

White City 

Urban Lighting 

Renewal 

$ 

24,536 

9,416 

8,401 

5,839 

3,922 

4,047 

District 

$ 12,240 

6,008 

3,777 

425 

168 

85 
62 

Library 

Series 2000 

Debt ServiCe' 
Juvenile 

Series 2001 

Library 

Senes :W02 

Debt Service Debt Service Debt S~:rvict! 

$ 99,544 

30,462 

17,350 

6,215 

2,512 

1,293 

1,032 

$ 

9.,337 

569 

991 

1,062: 

$ 387,889 $ 

D,OI:! 
17,743 

6,567 

2,89:5 
1,486 

1,097 

772 

823 

Agency 

7,398,802 

3,780,150 

2,235,823 

833,380 

301,837 

139,275 

95,090 

62,8:17 

63,039 

755 

812 

587 2,905 763 42,434 

Prior years _._.,_;..;;.;;.:.;....;;... 

7,'130 

21,084 ___ .............. __ 5;;.:,;..;99...;8 ________ .......;:;;;..,;; _ ____ !i!!... _______ ____ 139,3~_ 

TDtais 98,895 $ 65,064 $ 22,765 $ 161,765 $ 1~,394 ===:====;==== $ 1),091,9PO 
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Special 
Revenue 

Enhanced Law 

Enforcement 

Tax Year Total General District 

2011-12 $ 223,003,622 $ 30,508,095 $ 1,263,946 

2010-11 5,177,529 708,314 29,818 

2009-10 1,897,297 258,145 11,622 

2008-09 J,575,647 206,048 2,805 

2007-08 459,003 60,362 878 

2006-07 51,457 7,097 107 

2005-06 25,674 3,557 57 
2004-05 14,653 2,011 34 

2003-04 12,217 1,663 29 

2002-03 12,845 1,759 33 

Prior years 74 

Totals $ 31,760,394 $ 1,309,403 

Jackson County, Oregon 
Schedule of Property Taxes Collections by Levy Year by Fund 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Capital Projects 

White City Library 

Urban Lighting Series 2000 Series 2001 Series 2002 

Renewal District Debt Debt Service Agency 

$ $ 6,934 $ 2,409,940 $ $ 9,390,741 $ 179,423,966 

35,157 34,644 4,369,596 

2,703 12,413 12,695 1,599,719 

53,01 I 652 9,540 14,331 10,080 1,279,180 

23,589 204 3,052 691 3,517 366,710 

2,470 25 380 437 40,941 

1,249 13 220 235 20,343 

714 137 180 140 11,437 

610 122 160 124 9,509 

688 139 181 10,045 

31,732 123 169 (10,636) -----

$ 114,063 $ 10,531 $ 187,120,809 
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Statistical Section 
(Unallldited) 

This palrt of Jackson County, Oregon's comprehensive annual financial n:!port presl~nts detailed 

information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statell1t:!nts, note 

disclosures, and required supplementary infonnation says about the government's overall financial 

health. 

Financial Trends 87 to 92 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government's 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 93 to 96 

These schedules contain h;(ormation to help the reader assess the government's most signljicant local 
revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 97 to 99 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the government's 
current level of outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economie lnfonnation l(11[)i to 101 

These schedules offer a~'mographic and economic indicators to help the reader lInderstan(i the 
environment within which the government'sfinancial activities take place. 

Operating Information 102to 105 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 
il?formation in the government's financial report relates to the services the government provides and 
the activities it performs. 

Annuall Disclosure Infomlation 106 to 114 

Sources: Unle;ls otherwise notl~d, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual financial 
reports for the relevant year. 



Jackson County, Oregon 
Net Assets bv Contoonent - Last Ten Fiscal Years - -- - - -.t oIL 

IAnn ........ 1 U()~i~ of' Al""l"t'nnntino) \c-.. ..... "' • ................. ...,. • ...,. " .... "" ..... _-- _ ... ........ bl 

2002·03 2003·04 2004·05 2005·06 2006-07 2007·08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 

Governmental activilics 
Invested ill capital assels, 

net of related debt $ 122,182,793 $ 133,755,267 $ 132,357,455 $ 173,897,701 $ 184,221,926 $ 196,360,146 $ 216,774,136 $ 222,447,664 $ 235,804,411 $ 233,702,157 
Rcstnctcd 31,136,344 31,419,912 76,090,327 58,691,149 56,017,063 61,464,939 55,928,939 52,117,929 51,085,657 47,586,863 
Unrestricted 25,456,767 36,945,546 50,041,106 48,239,664 63,461,839 74,765,668 83,719,204 87,693,297 &6,0:15,118 74,476,452 

Total governmental acHv itics 
net assets $ 202,120,725 $ 258,488,888 $ 280,828,514 $ 303,700,828 $ 332,590,753 $ 356,422,279 $ 362,258,890 $ 372,925,186 $ 355,765,472 

Business·type activities 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt $ 52,083,918 $ 55,857,600 $ 63,941,6&2 $ 66,190,250 $ 71,388,456 $ 76,640,138 $ 88,348,666 $ 93,230,923 $ 91,964,637 $ 92,475,443 
Restricted 1,430,814 1,603,408 1,613,783 1,624,071 1,424,273 
Unrestricted 7,625,437 7,810,120 6,825,161 6,102,592 7,735?85 11,117,654 10,476,618 13,037,825 14,439,040 ___ 1_4,895,114 

Total business·type 
activities net assets $ 63,667,720 $ 70,766,843 $ 79,124,241 $ 89,188,606 $ 100,428,692 $ 107,882,531 $ 108,027,748 $ 108,794,830 

Primary government 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt $ 174,266,711 $ 189,612,867 $ 196,299,137 $ 240,687,951 $ 255,610,382 $ 273,000,284 $ 305,122,802 $ 315,678,587 $ 327,769,048 $ 326,176,600 
Restricted 31,136,344 31,419,912 76,090,327 58,691,149 56,017,063 62,895,753 57,532,347 53,731,712 52,661,129 49,011,136 
Unrestricted 33,082,204 44,755,666 56,866,267 54,342.256 71,197,624 85,883,322 94,195,822 100,731,122 100,522,757 89,371,566 

Total primary government 
net assets $ 238,485,259 $ 265,788,445 $ 329,255,731 $ 353,721,356 $ 382,825,069 $ 421,779,359 $ 456,850,971 $ 470,141,421 $ 48Q,952,2JL $ 464,560,302 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Changes in Net Assets - Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

2002·03 2003·04 2004·05 2005·06 2006·07 2007·08 2008·09 2009·1 (l 2010·11 __ 201\.12 

Expenses 
Governmental Activities: (1) 

General Govemmcnt ( 1 ) $ 11,174,605 15,201,178 19,514,923 $ I (,,624 .. 2~4 $ 10,875,114 8,721,676 $ 1:':,038,430 !G,37G,723 $ li,454,522 10,489,720 
Elections & Rccording 1,910,279 2,086,105 2,039,217 1,973,350 1,899,<\08 1,872,126 
Community Justice & Safety 34,649,054 36,201,129 36,294,560 41,213,225 40,941,642 41,986,653 42,874,787 45,769,390 47,962,680 48,650,631 
Cllihlre & Recrc(ltion t12) 8,259,392 8,259~725 1O,812,797 12.482,626 JO.389,19S 6,105,707 7,S20,286 8,lOZ,856 g,274.799 8,257,201 
Plaj"'mmg~ Development & Nawl'al R(:~oun;es 5,409,458 5,53(\'279 5,190,\46 5,203,868 7,086,483 6,585,850 5,914,108 5,60S,jiS 5,144,634 9,618,094 
Health & Humnn Services 36,297,660 33,977,498 37,127,057 39,950,246 39,130,243 38,764,179 39,677,149 41,791,404 44,306,754 35,130,881 
T ransportalion 9,456,549 10,344,709 12,365,791 9,066,042 17,385,089 18,349,088 33,197,494 17,551,405 19,410,613 28,358,761 
Interest 011 long.tenn debl 2,951,593 3,025,560 2,829,220 2,354,310 2,242,805 2,005,796 1,773,395 1,572,803 1273,563 1,053,455 

Total guvernmental activities expenses 108,198,311 112,540,078 124,134,494 126,894,60 I 129,%0,850 124,605,062 145,334,866 138,743,246 139,787,173 143,490,869 

Business-type aclivHics: 
4,995,282 5,105,709 5,873,556 6,674,083 6,642,090 7,642,432 7,761,962 7,647,804 10,750,019 11,060,591 
1,583,118 1,813,308 1,832,263 2,304,625 2,395,651 2,449,919 2,297,637 2,336,390 2,226,551 2,309,698 

Recreation enterprise (3) 1,927,047 1,941,539 1,728,797 1,795,365 1,746,925 1,777,005 1,761,045 3,921,194 6,752,246 2,244,550 

Total business.type activities expenses 8,505,447 8,860,556 9,434,616 10,774,073 10,784,666 11,869,356 11,820,644 13,905,388 19,728,816 15,614,839 

Total primaly government expenses 116,703,758 121,400,634 133,569,110 137,668,674 140,745,516 $ 136,474,418 $ 157,155,510 $ 152,648,634 159,515,989 $ 159,105,708 

Program Revenues 
Governmental Activities: (11) 

Charges for services: (2) 
Community Justice & Safety 6,111,475 6,090,607 7,980,530 7,620,691 $ 4,870,672 5,618,781 $ 6,211,489 $ 6,313,071 $ 5,971,010 $ 5,615,258 

Development & Natural Resources 5,918,779 3,318,817 3,645,758 3,052,339 3,149,412 3,564,969 
10,442,299 1l,415,938 14,815,790 15,006,687 12,136,841 11,435,920 9,789,492 9,239,030 9,518,401 10,097,881 

Operating grants and contributions (4) 58,118,037 58,742,275 104,031,861 66,652,699 67,818,114 65,984,784 66,855,532 70,662,037 75,768,836 61,773,153 
Capital grants and contributions 1,757,507 3,279,815 1,078,788 2,248,551 283,860 348,440 19,752,982 680,975 2,682,142 82,250 

Totai govel1lmcntal activities 
program revenues 76,429,318 79,528,635 127,906,969 91,528,628 91,028,266 86,706,742 106,255,253 89,947,452 97,089,801 81,133,511 

Businesswtypc activities: 
Charges for services: (2) 

Airport services (5) 3,923,025 4,416,542 4,857,780 5,235,071 6,403,372 7,019,374 6,528,930 7,439,262 7,452,252 7,217,246 
Exposition Park (6) 1,362,848 1,337,131 1,321,345 1,651,805 1,854,141 2,060,821 1,867,897 1/;32,821 1,496,429 1,750,736 
Recreati(Jll coterpri:>c '}~2}44 762,557 720,345 579,200 6 ~ S, i 84 598,694 862,989 771,398 884,966 826,215 

OJ-'lCra!ing grants and contributions (7) :'691.127 1,410,149 2,!Oi,637 2,045,510 3,191,345 2,310,285 2,2.46,617 3,754,743 6,986,434 1,913,864 
Capital grants and contributions (8) 867,166 4,143,420 2,883,286 2,478,511 4,475,992 7,960,188 10,600,168 7,130,366 2,644,349 4,070,289 

Total business·type activities program revenues 8,626,510 12,069,799 11.884,393 11 990,097 16,543,034 !9,9 1!9,362 ........ 11'\': ££'>I 20 72R ';90 J 9,464,430 i5,77S.15() .......... VV.·A'I 

Total primary govenunent progniln f~venucs $ 85.0~5.828 $ 91..'i9R 41<1 ~ !30l ?9L362 $ ! 03,5 ! 81725 $ 1 IV"\' C:.." ",(\A 
''"'\-', "..!'~'V __ ~ _ }OG,G5o.104 S i 23.36 i .854 1 j(l,67(),(14? ! ! 6,554,231 $ 96,9!L86! 

88 



Jackson County, Oregon 
Changes in Net Assets = Last Ten Fiscal Years (Continued) 

(Accruai Basis uf ACCUiiiitiiig) 

Net (Expcnse)lRevenue 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total primary government net expense 

General Revenues and Other Changes m 
Net Assets 

Govemmental activities: 
Property taxes 
Gain on 
Unrestricted grants 
Unrestricted investment eamings 
Transfers (10) 

Total govcmmental activities 

Business-type activiues: 
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 
Unrestricted investment earnings 
Transfers (10) 

Total business-type activities 

Total primary government 

Change in Net Assets 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total primary government 

$ 

$ 

2002-0) 

33,968,819 
57,253 

14,598,412 
3,505,496 
(546,429l 

51 ,583,551 

139,951 
198,463 
546,429 

884,843 

52,468,394 

19,814,558 
1,005,906 

20,820,464 

$ 

$ 

2003-04 

(33,011,443) $ 

3,209,243 

2004-05 

3,772,475 
2~,777 

$ 6,222252 

35,998,863 
4,013,105 

14,77:1,593 
2,239,623 
(668,920) 

56,356,264 

(12,537) 
92,739 

668,920 

749,122 

57,105,386 

23,344,821 
3,958,365 

27,303,186 

$ 37,465,932 

14,965,650 
4,677,599 

\4,513,493) 

52,595,688 

135,853 
4,513A93 

4,649,346 

51245034 

56,368,163 
7,099,123 

63,467,286 

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 

$ (35,365,973) $ $ 
1,216,024 

$ 

2008-09 

(39,019,613) $ 
10,285,957 

2009-10 

(48,795,794) $ 
6,823,202 

$ (34149,949) $ (41972 592) 

$ 37,016,639 $ 38,388,121 $ 42,522,108 $ 41,611,903 $ 37,791,064 $ 
1,644 9,291 

15,309,859 15,556,196 15,523,928 15,147,500 12,819,817 
5,995,628 8,595,750 9,086,312 6,622,784 4,330,137 
(618,J71) 1609,460) (482,347) i471,o48l P08,613l 

57,705,599 61,939,898 66,650,001 62,911,1)9 54,632,405 

(4,171) 
291,804 359,332 1,006,251 483,081 322,024 
618,171 609,460 482,347 471,048 308,613 

909,975 964,621 610,637 

58615,574 62,904,519 55263,042 

22,339,626 23,007,314 28,751,681 23,831,526 5,836,611 
2,125,999 6,722,989 9,568,604 11,240.086 7,453,839 

24,465,625 29,730,303 38,320,285 35,071,612 $ 13,290,450 $ 

201 ()" I 1 

(42,697,372) $ 
(264,386) 

(42%1758) 

38,315,765 

1l,583,055 
3,569,681 
(104,833) 

53,363,668 

304,770 
104,831 

409,603 

53,773,271 

10,666,2% 
145,211 

2011-12 

(62,357,358) 
163,511 

37,181,804 

5,206,439 
3,1J6,930 
(327,529) 

45,197,644 

276,042 
327,529 

603,571 

45,801,215 

(17,159,714) 
767,082 

10,811,513 $ (16,392 632) 

(I lChanges were made to category groupings beginning with dle 2006107 date, which affects comparahiliry by category. Major changes include 
Community ,1usticc and Safery into one category; creatillg a new category called Elections & Records, which includes the Surveyors office: moving 

department activities from Safety to Ilusiness, Private and Special Development; combining 
Organizational Infrastructure to General Govenllncnt; moved White Ciry and Urban 

Renewal into PlaJlning, Development & Natural Resources; other changes, as necessary, to group departmental activities 
(I) The increase in 2004105 is the result of the purchase and implementation of new comprehensive enterprise software 
(2) Charges for senrices generally increase each year as a resuit of an annual recalculation and hoard approval of counry fees. Planning charges have decreased since 06107 due to the recession. 
(3) The increase in Recreation enterprise expenses in 10-11 is due to $4.3 million paid to a contractor for the removal of Gold Ray Dam. 
(4) 'nle significant increase in dlis account in 2004-05 is a result of a one-time intergm'enllllcntal revenue receipt of$30 ,94 7 ,000 for bridge repairireplacements. 

(5) The increases in these amounts each year reflect the increases in passenger mciliry charges, and landing fees due to increased activiry. 
(6) The inerease ill revellues for thc Exposition Park ill 2005·06 is a result of the opening of the lIew Amphitheater and the addition of headliner acts at the coullty mir. 
(7) The fluctuations in operating grants and contributions ror business-rype activities is a result OrtJle differences in the number of Airport Improvement Projeets in process, In 10·11 the mcrease is due to grant funds received for the removal of Gold Ray Dam, 
(8) The changes in this account are related to the number of Airport Improvement Projects ill process, These projects are funded by the Federal Aviation Administration. In 2001·02, there were two large projects in process. In 2003.04, there were 4 projects in 
process. In 2006-07 there were two large projects in process, In 2007-08, a major tenninal constmc!ion project was in process. 
(9) The large gain on the sale of assets in 2003-04 is the result of the sale of the South Interchange Property. 

(10) The large transfer in 2004-05 includes the transfer of proceeds from dIe sale of property of $1,168,260 for debt service on the Juvenile Service F aciliry bonds, and $1,700,000 to the Exposition Park [or conslnletion costs of the new Amphitheater. 
(II) The Counry changed their category groupings in 07/08. TI,is affects the comparability of information, 
([ 2) Expenses in 07108 for Culture and Recreation decreased as a result of the closure of all COUllry libraries in April 2007. TI'ey were re-opened in November 2007 at reduced service levels. 
(13) The increase in Airport expenses in 10-11 is due to increased depreciation expense oil new facilities. 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds - Last Fiscal Yeaus 

(Modified Accrua! Basis of Accounting) 

General Fund 

Nonspcndnblc 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 
Reserved 
Unreserved (3) 

Total general fund (7) 

All Other Governmental Funds 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 

Unassigned 
Reserved (l ), (4) 

Unreserved, reported in: 
Special revenue funds (5) 
Capital projects funds (2) 

Permanent fund, designated for library 

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 

$ 1,1ll,437 $ 2,179,354 $ 1,730,772 $ 1,026,142 $ 1,237,812 $ 1,106,432 $ 1,223,717 $ 1,174,342 

22,283,288 34,680,387 39,900,522 46,765,131 65,732,240 71,780,931 

23,394,725 34,796,417 36,411,159 40,926,664 48,002,943 60,510,318 66,955,957 72,955,273 

$ 8,250,180 $ 14,857,833 $ 39,074,879 $ 36,242,845 $ 15,976,970 $ 20,092,263 $ 19,351.773 $ 20,933,967 

i7,342,025 
37,992,574 

35,332 

14,726,219 
20,272,673 

35,332 

14,274,751 

31,427,454 
35,416 

13,645,360 

18,328,143 
35,546 

17,923,853 

28,165,911 
35,681 

23,758,320 

23,900,738 

35,774 

22,916,416 

19,045,171 
26,591 

22,381,050 

1l,746,65I 

(6) 

2010-11 2011-12 

$ 1,369,154 $ 1,119,904 

1,228,979 

23,557,412 
45,290,827 

71,446,372 

624,838 

13,490,187 
34,231,274 

49,466,203 

$ 1,646,618 $ 2,009,555 

48,627,246 45,809,154 

2,984,223 12,050,662 

Total all other governmentalfunds $ 63.620.111 $ 49,892,057 $ 68,251,894 $ 62,102,415 $ 55,061,668 $ 53,258,087 $ 59,869,371 

(I) The increa~e in the Other Governmental Funds Reserved fund balances in the 2004-05 fiscal year is a result of unspent receipts from the State of Oregon for bridge replacement This is also 
part ofthe rea~on for the large decrease in the 2006-07 fiscal year, In 2006-07 fewer funds were reserved for encumbrances because off ewer large projects in progress at 6/30107. 

increase in Unreserved fund balances in the Capital projects funds in 2002-03 is due to unspent and unencumbered bond proceeds. These were mostly spent in subsequent years. 

(3) The increase in Unreserved fund balance in the general fund in 2007-08 is due to the unexpected receipt of a one-year extension of expired Public Law 106-393 funds fi'om the Federal 
Govemment. The county had already reduced the budget significantly in order to operate without these funds, Rather than restore all services with the Qne-year extension, some gervices were 
restored, but most of the money went into the Rainy Day Fund which will bc used to provide reduced services over the next two years. The increases in subsequent years arc also from O&C 

replacement funds which were unspent in order to increase the Rainy Day Fund. 

The increase in Keservcu fund baiancc in the Other Governmental Funds in 2007-08 is due to Urban Renewal tax revenues restricted for debt service. 

The increase in revenue fLmds unreserved fund balance in 2007-08 is due to the PL i 06-393 funds of approximately $4 million which was put into the Roads 
Pund. 

The fUJld balance groupings for 2010·11 reflect the adoption of GASI3 statement No, 54. The change is being reported nro~nPccoti in these statements, 

The decrease in general fund balance is due to the expenditure of rainy-day funds on capital projects. 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Morlifieu Accrual Basis uf Aewiiiitiiig) 

2002-03 2003·04 2004·05 2005-06 2006-07 2007·08 200&·09 2009·10 2010·11 2011·12 
Revenues 

Intergovenunental (I) 73,556,742 $ 76,795,683 $ 119,034,094 $ 82,03&,533 $ 83,658,170 $ 81,659.151 $ 82,003,032 83.481,854 $ 87,351,891 $ 66,979,592 
Charges for services. 15,169,777 15,&91,936 20,983,466 20,763,713 19,998,113 17,509,29& 16,226,073 15,336,120 14,993,317 15,519,762 
Licenses and penn its 1,110,971 1,246,737 1,024,699 1,046,718 1,033,427 1,191,609 1,286,782 1,232.651 1,291,107 1,317,668 

Fines and forfeitures 323,444 379,483 575.330 827,152 1,172,761 1.498.984 1,870,373 1.850,713 2,074,748 2,068,586 
Taxes (8) 33,683,239 36,239,232 37,319,114 37,541,295 38,357,081 41,884,350 41,107,566 37,642,879 38,411,924 36,914,305 

Interest 2,419,089 1.363.287 3.159,884 4,721,515 6,301,004 6,261,249 4,920,753 3,417,562 2,660,603 1,977,664 
Miscellaneous 784,348 786,437 1,284,319 789,616 1,582,879 2,093,002 1,105,783 440,903 498,440 830,770 

Total revenues 127,047,610 132,702,795 183,380,906 147,728,542 152,103,435 152,097,643 148,520,362 143,402,682 147,282,030 --111,608,347 

Expenditures 

Gencral Govenm1cnt & organizational 
infrastructurc (2) 27,284,858 28,944,891 20,317,692 16,076,950 11,034,951 6,967,227 8,919,747 10,016,924 9,538,748 8,640,510 

Elections and records 1,929,865 1,896,864 1,945,535 1,820,555 1,802,691 1,764,747 

Community Justice and Safely 32,745,530 34,736,729 35,661,215 40,846,651 41,481,466 40,124,809 40,869,629 43,073,301 45,992,267 46,019,956 
Culture and Recreation (3) 8,098,437 8,294,859 9,222,775 10,779,396 10,422,520 6,157,808 5,948,025 5,868,009 5,987,270 5,993,897 
Planning, Development, 

and Natural Resources (9) 4,764,047 5,425,780 4,824,023 5,999,776 7,753,043 7,009,600 7,159,968 5,872,853 6,013,282 4,742,864 
Health and Human Services (4) 35,847,255 33,602,858 36,240,554 38,624,579 38,029,367 37,959,222 39,091,334 40,754,243 43,555,281 33,952,103 
Transpol1ation (7) 9,173,231 9,296,108 13,629,951 10,008,463 12,991,163 13,603,481 20,288,847 13,652,136 13,501,274 15,550,226 
Capital outlay (5) 13,636,044 11,150,499 17,244,689 27,044,983 17,883,654 11,122,156 16,276,665 13,366,116 16,279,851 17,976,004 
Debt Service 

Principal 12,250,000 4,409,000 17,449,000 5,785,346 17,959,000 4,868,000 15,943,078 5,019,112 4,895,587 3,073,485 
Interest 2,551,263 3.407.445 2,845,625 2,385,423 2.257,031 2,028,056 1,792,787 1,593,991 1,298.495 1,064.327 

Total expenditures 146,350,665 139,268,169 157,435,524 157,551,567 161.742.060 131,7:17,223 158,235,615 141,037,240 148,864.746 138,778,119 

Excess ofr.vcnues over (under) 
expenditures (19,303,055) (6,565.374) 25,945,382 (9,823,025) (9,638,625) 20,360.420 (9,715,253) 2.365,442 (1,582,716) (! 3, 169,772) 

Other Financing Sow' •• s (Uses) 

Issuance of Debt 26,282,266 13.000,000 12,730,000 13,250.000 11,977,616 11,065,465 
Payment to refimdillg escrow (12,550,613) (10,963,614) 
Transfers ill (10) 5,364,040 3,969,291 10,940,454 5,154,778 4,365,725 6.574,664 10,294,545 6,134,106 7,535,322 25,306,792 

Transfers out (10) (7,668,370) (7,266,648) ( 13,194,788) (7,643,707) (7,240,718) (8,688,400) (12,549,406) (8,760,679) (9,589,443) (27,842,705) 
Sale of capital assets (6) 7,663,962 

Total other financing sources (uses) 23,977,936 4,366,605 10,745,666 12,309,5421 10,375,007 \2,113,736l 9,722,755 12,626,573l 11,952,27°2 12535,9131 

Net change in fund balances $ 4,674,88 I $ (2,198,769) $ 36,691,048 (\2,132,567) $ 736,382 $ 18246,684 $ 7,502 $ (26 l,!3 I) $ (3,534,986) $ (15,705,685) 

Debt scrvice as a percentage of 
noneapital expenditures 13,3% 7,1% 15,3% 6,7% 14.5% 5.9% 14.7% 5.3% 4.8% 3.4% 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years (Continued) 

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Changes were made to the expenditure category groupings beginning with the 06/07 data which affects comparability by category. 
(l) The substantial increase in intergovernmental revenues in the 2004-05 fiscal year was a result of the receipt of one-time intergovernmental revenues of $38,947,000 for bridge 
replacement/repair. The increase in 2009-10 is due to increased state revenues received by the Health & Human Services department. 
(2) The decrease in general government expenditures in 2007-08 is a result of service reductions because of the expected expiration of Public Law 106-393 funds. 
(3) The decrease in culture and recreation expenditures for 2007-08 is due to the closure of all libraries in April 2007. They were fe-opened in November 2007, but at a reduced leveL 
(4) The decrease in health and human services expenditures in 2007-08 is related to the developmental disabiiity service costs described in (1) above. 
(5) The increase in capital outlay in 2004-05 is primarily due to the expenditure of the bridge replacement funds. 
(6) The sale of capital assets in the 2003-04 fiscal year reflects the sale of the Miles Field property in the South Interchange complex. 
(7) Transportation expenditures for 2008-09 includes a $7,000,000 refund to Oregon Department of Transportation for unused 2004 Bridge Replacement funds. 
(8) Decrease in 2009-10 taxes reflects the reduction in tax increment revenues for Urban Renewal Debt Service. 

The reduction in expenditures for Planning development, and natural resources in 2009-10 is largely due to the completion of White City Urban Renewal projects. 
The increase in transfers in/out in 2011-12 reflects the transfers from the general fund to the capital projects fund for the new sheriff facility and other major capital projects. 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property - Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Estimated 
Total Actual Assessed 

Total Taxable Direct Taxable Value as a 
Fiscal Manufactured Assessed Tax Value (Real Peicentage of 
Year Real Structures* Personal Utilities Value Rate Market Value2 Actual Value 

2002-03 $ 9,881,625,168 $ 351,225,180 $ 418,087,000 $ 473,254,500 $ 11,124,191,848 2.2995 $ 15,891,702,640 70.00% 
2003-04 10,451,730,560 359,476,558 416,572,270 449,676,073 1l,677,455,461 2.4130 17,047,380,235 68.50% 
2004-05 11,203,264,638 223,305,265 421,003,630 475,065,901 12,322,639,434 2.3990 20,018,503,911 61.56% 
2005-06 1l,920,685,431 225,477,380 429,784,700 439,977,164 13,015,924,675 2.2028 23,570,940,812 55.22% 
2006-07 12,688,178,244 223,532,830 452,600,340 464,470,800 13,828,782,214 2.3990 28,839,149,411 47.95% 
2007-08 13,533,495,808 199,722,920 484,838,850 469,797,062 14,687,854,640 2.1812 31,687,848,811 46.35% 
2008-09 14,189,871,988 200,962,572 500,593,700 500,516,590 15,391,944,850 2.2667 31,152,790,422 49.41% 
2009-10 14,718,486,217 180,528,841 463,066,780 534,131,960 15,896,213,798 2.3674 28,365,971,987 56.04% 
2010-11 15,045,119,929 161,634,037 459,829,860 569,935,590 16,236,519,416 2.3276 24,611,610,456 65.97% 
2011-12 15,238,596,648 170,152,629 439,403,410 586,330,010 16,434,482,697 2.2056 22,526,552,961 72.96% 

Source: County Assessor tax roll under Measure 50 

Assessed Value is shown net of tax-exempt property 

Note: The Assessed Value is not the Real Market Value but a generally lower Assessed Value for tax purposes. Currently Assessed Value is limited to a 3% maximum annual 

increase plus new growth before tax rates are applied because of a tax limitation measure ("Ballot Measure 50"). Measure 50, which affected property tax collections, was approved by 

the voters in May, 1997. 

* Effective 2004-05, real manufactured structures exempt from being title as mobile homes, are reported in the real column. 
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Jackson COll'Jty-G,n 

Ja(;kson COllJ., ... lty~Bonds 

Jackson County-Total 

Educatl,)n Service 

District 

Rogue Community 

College 

Vector Control 

Soli & \Vatt:r 

Rogue Valley 

Transit District 

Cities: 

Asbland 

Bul'wF.Hs 

Central Point 

Eagl,' Point 

Gold Hill 

Jachonville 

Me<iford 

Phoenix 

Rogue River 

Shady Cove 

Talellt 

Fire Dislricts: 

Applegate #9 

Cennal Point #3 

Evans Valley #6 

Medford #2 

Pro,pect 

Rogue River # .I 
Sha:ly Cove-Trail #4 
Talent #5 

Coistein RFPD 

Lake Creek RFPD 

S~hool Districts: 

Phoenix #4 
Ashland #5 

Central Point #6 
Eagle Point #9 

Rogw;! River #25 

App~egat<: #40 

Pro'pect #59 

Bune Falls #91 

Pinehurst #94 

Medfilrd 1/ 54 9C 

';Vhite City: 

Law Enforcement 

Lighting 

Urban Rmewal: 

County 

Medford 

Talent 

Jackson Coun1tY~1 Oregon 
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates ··]Last TIm Fiscal Years 

___________ (per $1,.000 of l~~~~ed ~Tahlle) 

2004-05 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2011-12 -----2005-06 

1.951 1.9425 1.9357 1.9372 1.9499 19455 1.9442 2.0099 20099 20099 

0.3225 _-1'.£11. __ 2d!12. _.....212ll. _._;:.;;;.;;..;~ _._0_.4_7_7_3 _~0.,,-44;.;;6;;;.2 _~;;;.;;..;.;;. __ -:,0.,,-44;.;;9.;;.1 _~0.~23;.;;5.;;.7 
2.4130 2.3834 2.3990 2.1812 

0.3410 

0.4%1 

0.0416 

0.1698 

5.3599 

7.2494 

4.4699 

3.3187 
:;.7397 

2.9804 

5.1707 

5.9475 

3.7588 

15231 
2.9372 

2.6787 
2.5320 

12905 

2.4630 

0.9902 
2.7747 

20181 

3.1976 

1.9455 

1.4740 

6.3245 

5.5266 

4.5369 
4.7807 

5.0549 

44584 

43628 
4.5749 

4.8235 

5.0784 

0.7188 

0.2880 

0.4876 

0.6736 

0.3418 

0.4973 

0.0417 

0.1709 

5.3399 

7.2494 

4.4699 

3.1920 

3.6039 

2.9077 

5.1801 

5.3663 

3.7372 

1.4925 

2.9170 

2.6787 

2.6772 

1.2905 

2.1810 

0.9902 

2.7700 

2.0181 

3.1976 

1.9455 

1.4740 

6.2346 

5.4899 

5.1996 
6.4319 

5.1048 

44927 
4.3628 

4.5749 

4.8235 

4.9855 

0.7304 

0.2551 

0.4575 
0.7164 

0.3421 

04978 

0.0417 

0.1711 

3.8768 

7.2494 

4.4699 

2.8949 

2.4983 

2.8119 

5.0809 

3.6463 

3.6906 

1.0558 

2.8521 

2.5287 

2.6940 

1.2905 

22%7 

0.9902 
2.2609 

2.0181 

3.1976 

1.9455 

1.4740 

6.1590 

5.4415 
5.0614 

6.3 762 

5.0926 
4.4285 

4.3628 

4.5749 

4.8235 

5.0060 

0.7206 

0.2509 

0.4835 

0.8767 

0.3423 

0.6231 

0.0417 

0.1712 

5.2491 

7.2494 

4.4699 

2.8283 

3.5035 

3.7821 

5.1018 

6.4963 

4.1658 

0.929 
2.79 

2.5287 

2.7071 

1.2905 

2.4884 

0.9902 
2.7509 

2.0181 
3.1976 

1.9455 

1.474 

5.9467 

5.3125 

5.0194 
5.9462 

5.0723 
4.3634 

4.3628 

4.5749 

4.8235 

4.8036 

0.8634 

0.2469 

0.4439 

1.077 

0.3411 

0.49~8 

0.0417 

0.1711 

5.2568 

7.2494 

4.4699 
;:.8949 

3.5397 

2.7482 

5.0809 

6.4963 

4.1906 

1.0558 

2.8521 

25287 

2.694 

1.2905 

2.2967 

0.9902 
2.7609 

2.0181 

3.1976 
1.9455 

1.474 

·5.159 

5.4425 

50614 
6.3762 

5.0926 
4.4285 
4.3628 

4.5749 
4.8235 

4.7836 

0.7206 

0.2509 

0.4835 
0.8767 

0.3411 

0.6159 

0.0416 

0.0484 

0.1707 

5.7225 

7.2494 

4.4700 

2.7509 

2.4174 

2.5720 

5.1904 

6.2890 

4.0900 

0.9488 

3.0007 

2.5287 

2.6736 

1.6505 

2.4920 

0.9902 

2.7018 

2.0181 

3.1976 

1.9455 

1.4740 

4.7739 

5.9395 

4.9875 

5.7646 

5.0307 

4.3035 
4.3628 

4.5749 
4.8235 

6.2427 

0.6018 

0.1400 

0.2726 

0.3938 

1.2556 

2.2667 

0.3409 

0.6089 

0.0415 

0.0484 

0.1709 

5.7086 

7.2494 

4.4700 

2.7328 

2.4637 

2.4497 

5.1880 

3.4226 

4.1477 

0.9283 

2.9534 

2.5287 

2.6686 

1.6505 

2.4938 
0.9902 

2.7116 

2.0181. 

3.1976 
1.9455 

1.4740 

4.7794 

6.0470 

4.9968 
5.6948 

4.9901 

4.2875 

4.3628 

4.5749 

4.8235 

6.5550 

0.5740 
0.1335 

0.0000 

0.4131 

1.2392 

2.3674 

0.3524 

0.6278 
0.0429 

0.0500 

0.1772 

5.8764 

7.2494 

4.4700 

2.7172 

2.4179 

2.4200 

51989 
34254 

4.1302 

0.9202 

2.9594 

2.5287 
3.1194 

1.6505 

2.4938 

0.9902 

2.2159 

2.0181 

3.1976 
1.9455 

1.4740 

4.8247 

6.1627 

5.5661 

6.3233 

50304 

4.2764 
4.3628 

4.5749 

4.3235 

6.2338 

2.0211 

0.4700 

0.0000 

0.6687 

33692 

13276 

0.3524 

0.6319 

0.0429 

0.0500 

1).ln2 

58936 

72494 

·t470D 
27168 

? 3744 

:? 3283 

5.2125 

3.4019 

,U425 
0.9145 

:'.9467 

2.5287 

3.1194 

!.2905 

::.4938 
0.9902 

2 . .2261 

2.'318:& 

:.1976 

1:1455 

1.4740 

4.7636 

6.160i: 
5.:;96,. 

6,3475 

5.029 

4.2919 

4.3618 
4.574') 

4,8235 
6.1945 

2.(1211 

0.4.700 

o.woo 
06618 

33534 

2.2056 

0.3524 

0.6193 

0.0429 

0.0500 

0.1772 

4.7068 

7.2494 

4.4700 

2.7123 

2.4169 

2.4447 

5.2953 

3.6463 

3.6423 

0.9044 

3.4346 

2.5287 
3.1194 

1.6505 

2.4938 

0.9902 

2.6849 

2.0181 

3.1976 

1.9455 

1.4740 

4.7383 

74172 
5.6745 

6.2443 

5.5023 

4.246 
. 4.3628 

4.5749 

4.8235 

6.1685 

2.0211 

0.4 700 

0.0000 

0.6511 

3.314 

Source: County Assessor's Annual Certified Levy 

*Bi1ling rates differ from pennanent rates due to timber severance tax offsets and adjustments resulting from urban renewal districts. 
Oregon's property tax system has limits on the levy rates, including fonnulas for rate compression when a rate maximum is reached .. 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Principal Property Tax Payers - Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

Taxpayer 

Pacificorp 
Rogue: Valley Manor 
Carestremn Health Inc 
Avista GJrp 
Harry & David Operations, Inc. 
Rogue VaIJey Mall LLC 
Chartt~r Communications 

Qwest OJrporation 
Biomass One LTD Partnership 
KRCMedford Center LLC 
Eastman Kodak Company 
Rogut~ Valley Partners LP 
Certanteed Corporation 
Boise C~scade Corp 
BOC Group Incorporated 

* 

* 
** 

* 

2011-12 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Value Rank 

$ 228,837,000 I 

81,441,780 2 
71,299,770 3 
70,662,800 4 
77,920,357 5 
54,455,890 6 
54,173,200 7 
52,557,300 8 
42,418,500 9 
33,496,440 10 

$ 767,263,037 

* Note Utility values are established by the State of Oregon 
** Note Name change from 2002-03 to 2011-12 

Percentage 
of Total 
Taxable Taxable 

Assessed Assessed 
Value Value 

1.39% * $ 170,984,200 
0.50% 
0.43% 

0.43% * 
0.47% 
0.33% 
0.33% 

0.32% * 
0.26% 
0.20% 

4.67% 

48,664,470 

40,469,700 
56,555,330 

95,274,030 

1,774,703 
41,439,550 
40,672,060 
39,352,220 
30,103,101 

$ 565,289,364 

Source: County Assessor property tax roll records for the 2011-12 and 2002-03 tax rolls. 

2002-03 
Percentage 
of Total 
Taxable 
Assessed 

Rank Value 

1 1.61% 

4 0.46% 

9 0.38% 
5 0.53% 

3 0.90% 

2 1.14% 

6 0.39% 
7 0.38% 

8 0.37% 
10 0.28% 

6.44% 
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Fiscal 
Year --_._--

2002-03 
2003-04 
2004-05 
2005-06 
2006-07 
2007-08 
2008-09 
2009-10 
2010-11 
2011-12 

· ..... _---------------------------- -------,----

Taxes Levi,ed 
for the 

Fiscal Year 

$ 34,490,534 
36,948,059 
38,295,115 
37,901,510 
39,911,487 
43,479,558 
32,952,505 
27,897,211 
34,137,662 
32,778,353 

Jacksolll COlllnty, Or~egon 
Property Tax Levies and Collections - Last T4i!n ~?iscal Years 

Collected within the 
Fiscal Year of the Lev~ Collections Total Colleclions to Date 

Percentage in Subsequent Percentage 
Amount ---.£fLevy_ Years Amount ofL~ 

$ 32,870,331 95.3% $ 1,608,379 $34,478,710 100.0% 
34,843,520 94.3% 2,086,573 36,930,09'3 100.0% 
36,204,074 94.5% 2,073,367 38,277,4'11 100.0% 
36,713,166 96.9% 1,163,423 37,876,589 99.9% 
38,542,832 96.6% 1,332,885 39,875,717 99.9% 
40,882,776 94.0% 2,520,816 43,,403,592 99.1:% 
31,092,477 94.4% 1,666,880 32,759,357 99.4% 
26,267,932 94.2% 1,213,373 27,,481,305 98.5% 
32,539,446 95.3% 892,154 33,431,600 97.9% 
30,965,893 94.5% 30,965,893 94.5% 

Source: County Tax Collector tax roll records relating to Jackson County 

96 



Jackson County, Oregon 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type - Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Governmental Activities Less: 
Percentage Business-Type Amounts 

General of Actual Special Urban Activities Restricted to 
Fiscal Obligation Property Assessment Renewal Revenue Repaying 
Year Bonds Value £.!.L Bonds Bonds Bonds Princi~al 

2002·03 $ 50,745,000 0.32% $ $ 12,584,000 $ $ (3,920,678) 
2003·04 48,055,000 0.28% 10,865,000 (9,796,869) 
2004·05 44,910,000 0.22% 9,561,000 (8,741,517) 
2005·06 41,370,000 0.18% 8,255,000 (13,129,438) 
2006·07 37,980,000 0.13% 6,936,000 (5,561,464) 
2007·08 34,445,000 0.11% 5,603,000 19,955,000 (13,190,084) 
2008·09 30,770,000 0.10% 1,027,538 4,285,000 19,955,000 (8,053,596) 
2009·10 26,925,000 0.09% 913,426 3,225,000 19,655,000 (8,226,755) 
2010·11 22,790,000 0.09% 867,839 2,485,000 19,335,000 (7,484,159) 
2011-12 20,625,000 0.09% 744,354 1,700,000 18,995,000 (6,727,689) 

Notes: Details regarding the county's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

The county administers an urban renewal agency. The agency has tax increment debt which is not an obligation of the county. 

See Schedule of Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property for property value data. 
See Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data. 

Total Percentage Per 
Primary of Personal Capita 

Government Income ~2~ --.0 
$ 59,408,322 1.19% 323 

49,123,131 0.94% 263 
45,729,483 0.83% 241 
36,495,562 0.63% 190 
39,354,536 0.65% 203 
46,812,916 0.71% 239 
47,983,942 0.70% 242 
42,491,671 0.61% 212 
37,993,680 0.55% 189 
35,336,665 0.51% 174 
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Jack'Son County, Or1egon 
_________ L .. ,e..:;;g;;...a_l. Deb1t Margin Information: Last TI::!.l..18'nscaD~:i ears 

ORS 287A.100(2) provides a dt:bt limit on general obligation bonds of 2% of the real market value of all taxable property 

within the County's boundarit:s. This became effective January 1,2008 superseding ORS 287.054. 

Rt:al Debt Less Bonded Legal 
Fiscal Market Limit Debt Debt at Debt 
Ye:ar Value Rate Limit June 30 ___ ~ar~! ___ ._J . .!L_ ------- ---------- --- --------

2002·03 $ 15,891,702,640 2.00% $ 317,834,053 $ 50,745,000 $ 267,089,053 15.97% 
2003-04 17,047,380,235 2.00% 340,947,605 48,055,000 292,892,605 14.09% 
2004-05 20,018,503,911 2.00% 400,370,078 44,910,000 355,460,0711 11.22% 
2005-06 23,570,940,812 2.00% 471,418,816 41,370,000 430,048,81 (i 8.78% 
2006-07 28,839,149,411 2.00% 576,782,988 37,980,000 538,802,988 6.58% 
2007-08 31,687,848,811 2.00% 633,756,976 34,445,000 599,311,976 5.44% 
2008-09 31,152.,790,4:22 2.00% 623,055,808 30,770,000 592,285,808 4.94% 
2009-10 28,365,971,987 2.00% 567,319,440 26,925,000 540,394,440 4.75% 
2010-11 24,611,.610,456 2.00% 492,232,2019 22,790,000 469,442,209 4.63% 
20ll-12 22,526,.552,96 I 2.00% 450,531,059 20,625,000 429,906,059 4.58% 

ORS 287 A.l 05(1) provides a debt limit on revenue bonds of 1 % of the real market value of all taxable propf:rty within the 
County's boundaries. This became (:ffective January 1,2008 supers,eding ORS 287.053. 

Real DI~bt Less Bonded Legal 
Fiscal Market Limit Debt Debt at Debt 
Year Value Rate Limit June 30 __ ~1argin ___ . _._D:L _ ------- ---- -------

200T .. 08 $ 31,687,848,811 1.00% $ 316,878,488 $ 19,955,000 $ 296,923,488 6.30% 
2008-()9 31,152,790,422 1.00% 311 ,527,904 19,955,000 29.1 ,572,904 6..41% 
2009-10 28,365,971,987 1.00% 283,659,720 19,655,000 264,004,720 6 .. 93% 
2010 .. 1.1 24,611,610,456 1.00% 246,116,105 19,335,000 226,781,105 7.86% 
2011 .. 12 22,526,552,961 1.00% 225,265,5313 18,995,000 206,310,530 8.43% 

(1) Total net debt applicable to the limit as a percentage of debt limit. 

Source: Current a.nd prior years financial statements, Jackson COUinty Assessor's office. See Schedule of' Assessed Value 

and Actuall Value of Taxable Property for value of property 
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Fiscal 
Year 

2002-03 
2003-04 
2004-05 
2005-06 
2006-07 
2007-08 
2008-09 
2009-10 
2010-11 
2011-12 

Passenger 
Facility 

Fund ReceiEts 

$ 

1,409,884 
1,005,098 
1,148,270 
1,221,832 
1,171,582 

Airport 
Hangar 
Rental 

$ 365,841 

Jackson County, Oregon 
Pledged Revenue Coverage - Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Revenue Bonds 

Debt Service 
PrinciEal Interest Coverage 

$ 290,000 $ 10,585 1.217097 

929,451 1.516900 
1,042,375 0.964238 

300,000 1,034,622 0.860371 
320,000 1,018,600 0.912769 
340,000 1,001,544 0.873309 

Note: D~tails regarding the government's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
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,-------------------------.------------------------.------------------------__ ., __ .,. _________ ., ______ • ____ 00 ___ _____ 

Fiscal (1) 
Year _2~~ation_ _._-------_. 

2002-03 1:&3,797 
2003-04 186,567 
2004-05 189,469 
2005-06 191,697 
2006-07 194,087 
2007-08 196,165 
2008-09 198,346 
2009-10 200,298 
2010··11 201,286 
2011 .. 12 203,454 

Data Sources: 

Jacksolll Cotlllldy, On!goll 
Demographic and Economic Statistics - Last T4:~!?iscal...:!{ears 

(1) 
Per 

(1) Capita (2) (3) 
Personal Personal School Unl~mployment 

Income Income Enrollment Rate .-----_.---

$4,994,073,000 $ 27,172 29,515 7.9% 
5,203,090,000 27,889 29,253 6.4% 
5,508,909,000 29,076 28,950 6.5% 
5,770,881,000 30,104 29,057 5.7% 
6,072,400,0100 31,287 29,1l4 5.7% 
6,619,201,000 33,743 28,901 6 . .3% 
6,824,926,000 34,409 28,367 11.0% 
6,911,440,000 34,506 27,967 12.3'J1,~ 

6,907,021,000 34,314 28:,451 12.2% 
6,951.,654,000 34,168 28,175 11.0% 

(1) Bureau of Economic Analysis - reflects most current data available at end of fiscal year. Historical data was revised in 

2009 to incorporate the comprehensive revision of the National Income and Product Accounts Comprehensive 
revisions. 

(2) ODE website - October 1 enrollments. 
(3) Oregon Labor Market Jnfonrtation System 
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Asante 
State of Ofl~gon 
Harry &: David Operations Corp. 
Federal Government 
Providence Medical Center 
Medford School District 
Jackson County 
Walmmt 
Amy"s Kitchen 
Pacific Retirement Services 

Source: 

(1) 
(2) 
(1) 
(2) 
(1) 
(4) 
(3) 
(4) 
(1) 
(1) 

Employees 

Jackson County, Oregon 
Principal Employers - Current Year 

2012 
Percentage 

of Total County 
Rank Emplo~ment 

3,676 4.91% 
2,338 2 3.12% 
2,000 3 2.67% 
1,692 4 2.26% 
1,288 5 1.72% 
1,157 6 1.55% 
1,028 7 1.37% 

930 8 1.24% 
680 9 0.91% 
650 10 0.87% 

15,439 20.62% 

(1) Southern Oregon Regional Economic Development, Inc. figures as from 2010 (estimates only). 
(2) Infonnation from Oregon Employment Department Covered employees statistics (2010) 
(3) Number of employees paid Pay Period Ended 06/17112. 
(4) Meclford Chamber website (MedfordChamber.com) 

Total employment figures were provided by Oregon Employment Department Covered employment statistics. 
Principal employers fi:om nine years ago was not available. 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Full-time Equivalent County Government Employees by Function/Program - Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(2) 
Function/Pr0l:,iram 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 
General Government 185.82 188.19 193.44 193.82 

96.73 87.18 87.50 87.96 
Sheriff 169.00 163.00 195.00 178.00 
Community Justice 139.06 142.83 152.01 ISI.OO 
Airport 15.96 34.75 35.75 37.75 
Health and Human Services 256.48 239.74 234.87 236.39 
Roads and Parks 195.51 195.51 140.27 139.30 
Developmcnt Scrvices 50.23 56.20 

1058.56 1051.20 1089.07 1080.42 

Source: Government Budget Office 

(I) The increase in Airport full-time equivalents reflects the addition of security personnel. 
(2) Development Services was previously combined with Roads and parks. 

(3) (4) (5) (6) 
2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 

202.34 200.27 200.64 192.14 195.89 
87.92 9,50 3.60 3.60 3.60 

179.00 170.50 17S.00 183.25 183.00 
140.00 134.00 139.00 141.00 138.00 
38.75 38.75 38.75 40.75 40.75 

230.92 205.63 197.95 203.90 207.75 
140.00 124.45 122.75 117.75 118.00 
55.65 56.80 44.00 30.50 29.S0 

1074.S8 939.90 921.69 912.89 916.49 

The loss of jobs in 07/08 is mostly due to the loss of Federal O&C Funds. The county contracted with a service to operate the libraries at a reduced service. 
The reduction in Development Services reflects layoff,> necessa.ry due to ll:!e reduction in construction activity. 

(7) 
2011-12 

190.21 
3.60 

183.00 
131.50 
40.75 

233.50 
i 13.00 
25.50 

921.06 

(S) The 2.0 FTE increase in Airport is due to the addition of two maintenance workers which will allow coverage 24 hours per dayl7 days per week in order to meet FAA mandates 
for inspections and wildlife management control. The 13.5 FTE decrease in Development Services is due to continued workload reductions as a result of the reduction in 
construction activity. Vacant Code Enforcement officer position was not filled; Inspectors were cross-trained in order to reduce staffing. 

(6) Increase in General Government FTE was due to addition of direct support positions in the Information Technology department. 
Increase in Health & Human Services was due to increases in state funding for mental health services. 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Operating Indicators by Function - Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Function/Proll:ram 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2011·12 

General Government 
Registered Voters 108,352 110,410 119,495 113,997 111,390 116,097 117,609 114,339 113,826 114,629 

Legal documents recorded 70,162 87,519 75,655 79,001 65,207 57,675 45,962 48,392 43,106 40,603 

Residential Building Permits Issued (I) 734 778 672 602 468 300 239 215 239 

Commercial Building Permits Issued (I) 49 63 60 57 40 21 23 23 27 

Library (2) 
Volumes in collection 551,725 581,265 614,806 695,620 611,292 603,223 611 ,488 645,317 612,232 640,271 

Items checked out, checked in, & reshelved 1,293,713 1,271,177 1,383,438 1,444,813 1,100,926 832,139 1,411,767 1,528,568 1,594,623 1,645,925 

Reference questions answered 214,838 221,091 220,039 220,233 175,058 107,622 142,649 150,670 143,648 141,271 

Children's programs 1,302 1,214 1,557 1,619 1,183 807 1,488 2,242 2,407 2,417 

Persons attending children's programs 28,340 30,450 36,261 36,024 23,092 20,244 37,279 46,923 46,581 44,979 

Adult programs 630 359 496 486 327 196 412 354 606 701 
Persons attending adult programs 15,546 10,966 10,860 12,831 9,540 3,916 10,045 9,119 9,204 9,471 

Items delivered to homebound 33,882 28,868 28,102 29,268 21,639 4,429 7,644 494 6668 7552 

Sessions booked on computer workstations (I) 108,000 241,014 (1) 137,957 99,198 180,936 179,061 175,682 161,877 

Public meetings held in library community meeting rooms 750 1,845 3,048 4,127 2,847 2,125 3,649 4,326 4,001 4,242 

Sheriff 
Traffic Citations Issued 3,057 4,669 4,907 7,288 6,465 9,542 9,200 10,689 9,820 14,322 

Incidents responded to 24,224 30,016 29,695 29,083 27,565 29,093 23,791 22,393 24,&56 26,335 

Community Justice 
Work Center Intakes 773 862 975 1,089 2,133 2,163 2,293 2,43& 2,874 3,253 
Work Crews 1,990 2,180 2,389 2,212 2,222 2,190 2,260 2,10& 2,012 1,793 

Juvenile Detention Admissions 887 923 1,033 1,347 1,203 1,194 904 &49 939 744 

Juvenile Detention Avg Daily Populations 22 21 21 33 32 29 94 31 28 24 
Juvenile Shelter & Youth Care Center Admissions 198 284 372 319 403 226 10& 125 134 95 
Juvenile Shelter & VCC Avg Dailv Populations Ii 13 12 12 28 !l 44 16 12 13 

Airport 
Arrivals & Departures (July) 42 54 56 64 69 62 4& 44 46 46 

Total passengers 476,444 506.435 563,179 594,265 624,173 646,410 574,109 618,484 636,932 620,005 

Total operations (take-offs and landings) 61,311 61,9&7 58,727 62,251 59,604 54,372 47,&23 46,513 45,268 41,296 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Operating Indicators by Function - Last Ten Fiscal Years (Continued) 

Function/Pr0l:jram 2002·03 2003·04 2004·05 2005·06 2006·07 2007·08 2008·09 2009·10 2011-12 

Heaith & Human Services 
Animal shelter-dogs and cats taken in 6,200 6,444 6,410 7,180 6,807 6,542 5,727 5,800 5,157 4,878 
Licensed dogs 21,330 21,579 22,000 22,500 22,300 20,120 21,000 20,355 20,560 20,870 

Mental Health clients served 3)56 3,089 3,289 3,480 3,553 3,821 4,526 'l <:'lA 4,576 A (V"" 
,.I,JJ"'T "1'~7/J 

Family planning patients served 3,426 5,563 5,247 4,733 640 831 5,005 8195 5025 (I) 
Veterans' Office interviews conducted 3,754 3,474 3,347 3,973 3.832 4,179 5,145 ')010 5862 6289 

Roads, Parks & Planning: 
Pavement Condition Index rating (goal is 80) 80 80 78 77 77 75 75 75 75 69 
RV Reservations 370 307 447 1080 1098 414 405 511 864 799 
Day use passes sold 32,624 26,689 30,883 30597 31881 26,553 28,658 27,183 27,431 32,748 
Seasonal passes sold 1,788 1,777 1,661 1661 1742 1,526 1,766 1,811 1,692 1,877 

Fairgrounds & Exposition Park: 

Attendance at Fair 152,000 210,000 149,770 152,000 147,789 152,360 149,000 146,300 86,000 90,596 
Attendance at Interim events 210,000 210,000 161,545 213,000 164,421 209,355 165,310 167,247 181,262 176,150 
Facility Use Days 701 750 925 1,113 1,144 1,219 1,321 1,075 728 639 

Source: Records kept by county departments unless otherwise noted. 

Program existed, but statistics not available. 
(2) All Jackson County Libraries were closed April 6,2007 due to the expiration of PL 106-393, which had provided Jackson County $23 million in Federal revenue. They were 

reopened in November 2007 and are being operated by a subcontractor. 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function - Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Function/Program 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 

Library 
Open Libraries (1) 15 15 15 15 0 15 15 15 15 15 

Sheriif 
Jail Beds Available 190 190 190 230 230 230 230 230 230 230 

Justice 
Youth Shelter Beds 15 15 15 15 15 16 15 15 15 15 
Juvenile Detention Beds 20 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 
Work Center Beds 62 72 156 156 156 156 156 158 169 169 

Airport 
Runway Length (feet) 8800 8800 8800 8800 8800 8800 8800 8800 8800 8800 

Health & Human Services 
Public Health Center sq ft 10985 20516 19070 19070 19070 19070 19070 19070 16833 16833 
Mental Health Center sq ft 13077 17212 17569 17569 17569 17569 17569 17569 21874 21874 

Roads, Parks & Planning 
Campsites in county campgrounds 604 605 605 605 605 605 605 610 610 621 

fleet vehicles 194 196 210 227 243 293 273 292 268 288 

Miles of roads: 
Surfaced 750 750 747 748 749 766 767 767 767 765 
Gravel 166 165 165 163 164 164 164 164 164 164 
Unimproved 37 39 40 75 75 75 75 75 

Total roads 953 954 952 988 1005 1006 1006 

Concrete, steel and timber bridges 329 329 324 324 351 345 345 343 343 343 

All Jackson County Libraries were closed April 6, 2007 due to the expiration of PL 106-393, which had provided Jackson County $23 million in Federal revenue. They were 

reopened in November 2007 and are being operated by a subcontractor. 

Note: No capital asset indicators are available for the general government function. 
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,ANNUAL DISCLOSURE INFORMATIONl 

In conformance with SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended (17 CFR Part 240, § 240.15c2-12) (the "Rule'), cmd the county's 
continuing disclosure celtificat6's for its bond issues, the following information is provided. 

Jackson County is required to filE! material events notices to nationally recognized municipal securities informa~ion repositories. 
Management believes there are 110 material events requiring filing as of the date of this report. 

FINANCIAL liN FORMATION 

Basis e-f Accounting and Awards 

Modified accn.al accounting is utilized for all governmental fund types and agency funds. All other funds ulitize trle accrual 
basis of accounting. The' County's accounting practices conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and with 
the standards of financial reporting developed by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and 
Canada ~tnd the Government Accounting Standards Board. The Government Finance Officf~rs I-\ssociatiop (GFOA) of the 
United States and Canada has awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial RElpClltin!~ to Jackson 
Count)' for the fiscal years ending 1983 through 2011. In addition, the GFOA has awarded Jackson County its Distinguished 
Budget Presentation Award for fiscal years ending 1984 through 20'11. 

Fiscal Yealr 

July 1 through June 30. 

Audits 

In accordance with the Oregon Municipal Audit Law (ORS 297.405 .. 297.555 and 297.990) an audit is conducted at the end of 
each Fiscal YElar by indepencier.t certified public accountants. This requirement has been complied with and the financial 
statements have received an "unqualified opinion" from the auditors. Such an opinion indicates there was noimitatiofll on the 
scope of the auditor's Elxamination and the financial statements were prepared in accord,mce with !~enera"y accepted 
accounting principles. 

The County's audit for Fiscal Year 2011-12 was performed by Moss-Adams LLP, 221 Stewart Avenue, Suite 301, Medford, OR 
97501. 

Generall Fund Financiallnforma.lion 

DISCLOSURE TABL.E 1 .- IF~/\le-Year General Fund Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 ---,- --------_. 
Revenues 
Intergov(~rnmer.tal revenue $30,024,153 $30,451,272 $27,387,752 $.26,884,783 $18,753,434 
Charges for services 10,573,020 9,332,153 8,917,256 8,496,7713 8,919,967 
Licenses a,nd p(~rmits 43,020 42,750 40,470 188,390 192,380 
Fines and Forfeitures 1,437,070 1,807,847 1,784,477 1,932,21 t) 1,937,502 
Taxes 27,418,941 28,535,'701 30,365,444 31,630,702 32,219,848 
Int,erest income 3,172,422 2,426,651 1,896,609 1,530,66'\ 1,034,952 
Miscellaneous 1,929,456 844,073 404,615 369,650 .• __ §::15,760 
Total revenues 74,598,082 73,440,447 70,796,623 71,033,17:~ ___ 63,~n,64~ 
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2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 
Expenditures 
Current 

General government $4,510,096 $4,776,138 $5,075,345 $9,011,822 5,636,439 
Elections & recording 1,380,948 1,402,968 1.257.784 1,277.592 1.220.067 
Community justice & safety 40.528,749 40,717,366 42,355,622 44,486,706 44,967,172 
Culture & recreation 3,754,211 5,413,633 5,436,403 5,609,020 5,694,798 
Planninn, development & natural 5,440,049 4,948,722 4,000,147 3,947,137 4,058,179 

resources 

Total expenditures 55,614,053 57,258,827 58,125,301 64,332,277 61,576,655 

Excess of revenues over 
(unde.") expenditures 18,984,029 16,181,620 12,671,322 6,700,895 2,016,988 

Other financing sources (uses) 
TransfE!rs in 224,534 700,865 359,145 503,269 1,408,989 
TransfE!rs (out) (6,701,188} {10,436,846} {7,031,151} {8,713,065} {25,406,146} 

Total ottler financing 
Sources (uses) {6,476,654} (9,735,981 } (6,672,O06} (8,209,796} {23,997,157} 

Excess of revenues and 
Other ~,ources over 
(under> expenditures 
and other uses 12,507,375 6,445,639 5,999,316 (1,508,901) (21,980,169) 

Fund Bal;~nce Beginning July 1 48,002,943 60,510,318 66,955,957 72,955,273 71,446,372 

Fund Balance Ending June 30 

SOUrCE!: .2007-08 through 2011-12 derived from audited annual financial statements. 

DISCLOSURE TABLE 2 -- Five-Year General Fund Consecutive Balance Sheets 

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 

Assets: and Other Debits 
Cash and Investments $60,845,826 $66,020,993 $69,522,884 $68,505,187 $46,545,624 

Receivables: 
Proper:y Taxes 1,700,980 2,112,749 2,317,006 2,506,326 2,523,350 

Investment Income 2,142,962 1,659,206 1,988,688 2,888,019 1,335,814 

Accounts 1,440.070 2,503,264 2,289,137 1,971,594 2,465,934 

Depos.its and prepaid items 76,711 266,277 216,902 247,300 20,997 

Due from other funds 1,296,533 1,726,533 3,071,549 2,340,034 3,746,523 

T otal as~;ets and other debits $67,485,082 $74,289,022 $79,406,166 $78,458,460 $56,638,243 

(Continues) 
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Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accru'3d payroll, with holdings and 

benefits 
Due to other funds 
Compensated absences 

Deferred revenue 
Retainages and other liabilities 

T otalliabilities 

Fund Balance: 

2007-08 

$868,113 
3,953,625 

403,257 

1,534,202 
215,567 

6,974,764 

2008-09 

$411,217 

4,457,593 

1337,622 

2009-10 

$550,111 

2,926,810 

733,496 

1,640,548 2,053,584 
'186,085 186,892 

,--------=--:-=c::-::-:-::--. 
7,333,065 6,450,893 

2010··11 

$807,6:33 
3,353,4:57 

699,:,:58 

~~011-1I2 

$693,323 
3,g65,605 

~!75,594 

1,967,:,1:~ 2,G43,210 
183,9-:27 194,308 

7,012,oi38 '--7:j72,040 

Nonspendable 

Restricted 
Assi~lned 

Unassi£lned 

550,165 1,418,653 1,358,650 1,369,1!54 1,119,904 
439,874 402,057 422,017 1,228,979 624,838 
116,393 2,299.436 2,269,476 23,557,4'12 13,490,187 

59,403,886 62,835,811 68,905,130 45,290,827 34,231,274 

Total fund balance 60,510,318 66,955,957 72,955,273 71,446,372 49,466,203 

Total liabilities and fund balance --:$--:-6=7 ,-:-48-:-5-, 0""'8:-::2---$=-=7"..,4-:,2--=-.8-=-9,-=-02::":2::----::-$=-79=-,4..,.,0=--=6-, 1:-::6-:-6-$78,458,4f>0 -~$56,638,243 

Source:- ~~007-08 through201'1-12 derived from audited annual financial statements. Fund balances for 2007-08 through 
2009-10 have been restated to comply with GASB Statement No. 54, which was implemented in 2010-11. 

Ac:crued Vacation 

County employees may accrue vacation time and receive reimbursement upon termination of employment As of June 30, 
2012, the total accrued vacation liability and related payroll expensHs in the General Fund and Other Funds was $4,4!l0,834; 
$2,104,194, or 47% of the accrued vacation liability is funded. 

Deposits and Investments 

ORS 2H4 authorizes the County to invest in Bonds of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies and i1strumentalities, 
bankers' acceptances guaranteed by an Oregon financial institution, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, State of 
Oregon Local Government Invl3stment Pool and various interest-bearing bonds of Oregon municipalitil:ls. The County's 
investment policy prohibitH the County from leveraging or borrowing funds to make investments. 

The County's Investment Policy specifies the County's investment objectives, required diversification, certain limitations and 
reportinl3 requirements. The County held the following cash depOSits and investments at June 30,2012. 

D/SCLOSURl: TABLE 3 -- Cash Deposits and Investments 

U.S. Govemment agency securities 
Corporate paper 
Local Government Investment Pool 
Repurchase agreements 
Deposits with Financial Institutions 
Total cash and investmen.ts 

Source: ,Iackson County Finance Department 

Market Value 
$ 59,014,814 

34,944,540 
3,392,815 
1,424,273 

48,967,495 
!p147,743,937 

COS1[ 

$ 56,501,H54 
36,909,.244 

3,342,531 
1,424,27::, 

49,441,207 
$14'T,743,~134 

Tolal Market Value Cash Deposits and Investments corresponds to Cash and Investments as report(~d in the 8tatement of net 
assets using the governmEmt-wide financiai reporting model. 
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108 
~---------------------------.---



DEBT IINI=OIRMATIONI 

D/SCLOtiUl~E TABLE 4 -- Debt Ratios1 

2012 estimated population 
2011-12 Real Market Value (RMV) 
Gross Direct Debe 
NE~t Direct Debe 

NE~t Overlapping Debt 
Net Direct Debt and Net Overlapping Debt 

Values 
203,454 

$22,526,552,961 
$20,625,000 
$20,625,000 

$357,816,682 
$378,441,682 

Per Capita Percent of RMV 

$110,721 
$101 .092% 
$101 .092% 

$1,758 1.59% 
$1,860 1.68% 

1. Outstanding and overlapping debt information are calculated as of June 30, 2012. The overlapping debt calculation was 
performed by the Municipal Debt Advisory Commission of the State of Oregon Treasurer's Office. The County also 
administers an urban renewal agency; the agency has outstanding tax increment debt which is not an obligation of the 
County. The county also administers a LID (Bancroft) bond. 

2. Gros~; Direct Debt includes all voter approved General Obligation bonds, Limited Tax bonds and any other bonds, 
Certificates of Participation or leases backed by the full faith and credit of the County. Debt whose term is less than one 
year is not included. 

3. Net 0 ired Debt is Gross Direct Debt less bonds or leases paid from non-tax sources. 

Source Jackson County, Oregon State Treasury 

Debt Liimiitations 

Limitatiolls j~pplicable to General Obligation Bonds 

Genera.l Obli!~ation Bonds (voter approved) 

ORS 2137/\.100(2) limits indebtedness for general obligation bonds by counties to two percent of the latest Real Market Value 
of the County, subject to voter authorization. 

2011-12 RMV 
Debt limitation (2.00 % of RMV) 
Applicable bonded debt 
Debt margin 
% of limit issued 

Limitaltions Applicable to Revenue Bonds 

$22,526,552,961 
450,531,059 

20,625,000 
429,906,059 

4.58% 

ORS 287,l1,.1 05(1) limits revenue bond indebtedness by counties to one percent of the latest Real Market Value of the County. 

2010-11 RMV 
Debt limitation (1.00 % of RMV) 
Applicable bonded debt 

Debt margin 
Percent of limit issued 

Debt Mallaglement 

The County has never defaulted on any debt or lease obligation. 

Debt Autholrization and Future Financing Plans 

The COUllty has no current plans to issue additional general obligation debt. 

$22,526,552,961 
225,265,530 

18,995,000 

206,270,530 
8.43% 
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D/SCI..OSUR'E TABLE 5 -- Outstanding Bonds 1 

GI~neral Oblig,ation Bonds (votE!d) 
Series 2006 LibralY Refunding Bonds 
Series :20'10 LibralY Refunding Bonds 

Total Voted GO Bonds 

CElrtificates of Participation (subject to annual appropriation) 
Total COPs 

FLIII Fcllitl1l & Credit Obligatio,ns or Limited Tax Bonds Paid 
from Tax Sources (NOT subjl~tC1: to annual appropriation) 
Total FF&C 

Leases, and Contracts 

Total Contracts 

Total Net Direct Debe 

Limited' Tax Bondls Paid from I~,on-Tax Sources 
Total Limited Tax Bonds 

Short Terrill Debt 

Maturity 
lDated Date Date Amount Isswl,d 

4/5/06 
12/29/10 

6/1/20 
6/1/20 

1:2,730,000 
10,300,000 

$23,030,ICIOOI 

$2~I,030,()OO 

$23,030,000 

Amount 
Outstanding: 

.As of 06/30/12 

10,415,000 
10,210,000 

~;20,625,OOCI 

o 

o 

$20,625,000 

o 

$20,625,000 

o 

1. The County also administel"s an urban renewal agency; the a£lency has outstanding tax increment debt whllch is not an 
obliigatlion of the County. The County also administers a LID (Bancroft) bond. 

2. Net Direct Debt is all Gross Direct Debt directly paid from tax sources. 
3. Gross Direct Debt includes all voter approved General Obligation bonds, Limited Tax bonds and anI' other obli~lations, 

Certificates. of Participation or leases backed by the full fSlith and credit of the County. Debt whose term is IE!sS than one 
year is not included. 

Source: Jackson County Finance Department 

The following table presents the outstanding debt service and the debt service on the Bonds. 

DISCLOSURE TABLE 6 - Pmperty Tax Supported De'bt SE!rvice Payment Obligations 

Fisc<11 5E ries 2002 Series 2005 Series 2010 Assessed Tax 

Year P{incipal Int€'rest Principal Interest Principal Interest Total Value Rate2 

2011-12 1,075,000 $ 43,ODO $ 1,065,000 446,965 25,000 387,100 3,042,065 16,178/7~;6,316 0.18:l5 
2012-13 1,110,000 404,365 1,140,000 386,600 3,040,965 16,340,S4~,,879 0.1865 
201:1-]4 1,165,000 359,965 1,175,000 352,(00 3,052,365 16,503,949,318 O,18~j~ 

2014-15 1,215,000 313,365 1,205,000 317,150 3,050,515 16,668,98,.,811 
201~.-16 1,270,000 264,765 1,240,000 281,000 3,055,765 
2016·17 1,320,000 217,775 1,285,000 231,400 3,054,175 
201i'-18 1,380,000 168,275 1,335,000 180,000 3,063,275 
201!:~19 1,445,000 116,525 1,385,000 126,600 3,073,125 
2019-20 1,510,000 60,400 1,445,000 64,275 3,079,675 
2020-21 

1,075,000 $ 43,,000 $ 11,480,000 2,352,400 10,235,000 2,326,525 27,511,925 
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1. 2011-12 principal and interest payments were made prior to June 30, 2012. 
2. For Fiscal Year 2011-12, the tax rate per $1,000 was based on data provided by the Jackson County Assessor's Office. 

The ~orojected tax rates for fiscal years 2012-13 through 2014-15 are estimates and have not been reviewed by the 
Asse~.sor's Office. The AV is the assessed valuation used to calculate the tax rate, not reflecting the growth in the urban 
renewal areas. The Total Assessed Value of all taxable property within Jackson County including urban renewal is 
$1Ei,434,482,697. 

Source: Jackson County 

Tax Inlformation 

Property tax administration is governed by the Oregon Constitution, the State's taxation laws, and regulations of the State 
Departrne1t Clf Revenue, and includes the process of assessment, equalization, levy and collection of taxes. A tax limitation 
measure ("Ballot Measure 50") that affected property tax collections was approved by the voters in May, 1997. The 
implementing legislation changed the property tax administration system substantially, including changes to levy rates, 
assessments and equalization. 

DISCLOSU,RE TABLE 7-- Tax Collection Record1 

Percent Percent 

Fiscal Assessed Percent Total Percent Tax Ratel Collected Collected 
Yealr Valuation2 Change Levy Change $10003 Yr. of Levy As of 6/30/12 

2002·0~i 11,124,191,848 4.9% 25,608,614 4.4% 2.4196 95.3 100.0 
2003·0Lf 11,677,455,461 5.1% 28,220,109 10.1% 2.5323 94.3 100.0 
2004·0b 12,322,639,434 5.7% 29,391,858 4.1% 2.4999 94.5 100.0 
2005·OEi 13,015,924,675 10.8% 28,522,256 -2.9% 2.1895 96.9 99.9 
2006·0i' 13,828,782,214 6.2% 30,029,328 5.2% 2.1698 96.6 99.9 
2007·0B 14,687,854,640 6.1% 31,856,689 6.1% 2.1689 94.0 99.8 
2008·0H 15,391,944,850 6.2% 34,600,952 8.6% 2.3433 96.2 99.4 
2009-1 () 15,896,213,798 3.3% 37,349,034 7.9% 2.3674 94.2 98.5 
2010-1'1 16,236,519,416 2.1% 37,537,969 .5% 2.3276 95.3 97.9 
2011-1:~ 16,434,482,697 -1.0% 35,947,963 -1.0% 2.2056 94.5 94.5 

1. TClblo 7 includes general operating and debt service taxes. Special district and urban renewal taxes are not included. 
2. The Assessed Value is not the Real Market Value but a generally lower Assessed Value for tax purposes. The Real 

Market Value for 2011-12 is $22,526,552,961. Currently the Assessed Value is limited to a ~I% maximum annual increase 
plus new growth before tax rates are applied because of Measure 50. See "Property Tax Limitation" herein. The AV is 
the clssessed valuation used to calculate the tax rate, not reflecting the growth in the urban renewal areas. The Total 
Assessed Value of all taxable property within Jackson County including urban renewal is $16,434,482,697. 

3. The Jackson County permanent rate per $1,000 assessed value is $2.0099. Differences since 1997-98 reflect offsets 
whic1 the Assessor's office factors into its calculations as well as debt service levies for general obligation bonds, which 
are outside of the permanent rate. 

SOUrCE!: .Jackson County Assessor's Office and prior year financial statements 
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DISCLOSURE TABLE ~r -- Pr.;ncipal Taxpayers in Jackson County 2011-12 

Taxpayer Account 

Pacificorp 
Rogue Valley Manor 
Care:stream Health Inc. 
Avista Corp DBA Avista Utilities 
Harry & David Operations Inc 
Rogue Valley MaU LLC 
Cha,ier Communications 
Owest Corporation 

Biomass One Ltd Partnership 
KRC Medford Center LLC 
Kogap Enterprises Inc 
Lithia Real Estate Inc 
Boise Cas~lde Wood Products LLC 
Wal··Mart Real Estate Business 
AT&T Inc 
Certainteed Corporation 
Table Rock Group LLC 
Asante 
Meriwether Southern Oregon 
Boise Building Solutions Manu 

Totals 

Type of Business 

Utility 
Retirement Homes 
Imaging Media 
Utility 
Retail/Agricultural/Mail Order 
Shopping Mall 
Cable/Communications 
Utility 

Recycling/Energy Prod. 
Property Management 
Property Management 
Property Management 
Wood Products 
Property Management 
Communications 
Manufacturing 
Food Processor 
Health Care 
Property Management 
Wood Products 

2011-12 
Taxes 

Imposed 

$2,567,332 
1,137,265 
1,030,591 

992,875 
857,173 
853,297 
834,748 
760,356 

647,308 
524,872 
511,025 
497,516 
420,269 
374,195 
363,401 
352,759 
351,071 
350,551 
337,916 
334,366 

$14,098,886 

20111·12 
AS!iessed 
V,,!uation 

$228,83'7,000 
81,441,780 
71,299,770 
70,662,800 
77,920,357 
54,455,890 
54,173,200 
52,557,300 

42,418,500 
33,496,440 
34,452,158 
31,750,880 
32,468,118 
24,050,510 
24,853,700 
24,405,940 
24,590,678 
22,61"3,260 
19,882,760 
23,005,657 

$1 ,02~1,396,698 

Percentcilge of 
Totall AS~iessed 

Valuat~on1 

1.39% 
O.~iO 

0.43 
0.43 
0.47 
0.33 
0.33 
0.32 

0.26 
0.20 
0.21 
0.19 
0.20 
0.15 
0.15 
0.15 
0.15 
0.14 
0.12 
0.14 

6.:2EWo 

1:""" The 20'11-12 Assessed Valuation (AV}, excluding the growth increment in urban renewal, is $16,434,4B2,mrr for .Jci,ckson 
County; the Real Market Valu:ation is $22,526,552,96'1. Thl3 AV is the assessed valuation used to calculate the tax rate. 

Source: JaGkson County Assessor's Office 

(Continues} 
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DISCLOSURE TABLE 9 - Airport Obligations and Debt Service Coverage 

Outstallding Obligations 

Dated Date Maturity Amount Amount Outstanding: 
Date Issued As of 06/30/12 

Airport !Revenue Bonds 

Serie~; 2.J07A 7/10107 12/1/37 $13,480,000 $13,480,000 

Series ~:00"7B 7/10/07 12/1/23 6,475,000 5,515,000 

Total Airport Revenue Bonds $19,955,000 $18,995,000 

Debt SHrvice 

Series 2007 A Series 2007B 
Fisc«! Principal Principal 
Yeru" Interest Maturities Total ---

2013 $ $ 707,700 $ 707,700 $ 355,000 $ 275,881 $ 630,881 
2014 707,700 707,700 375,000 257,016 632,016 
201.5 707,700 707,700 395,000 237,116 632,116 
201.6 707,700 707,700 415,000 216,181 631,181 
201.7 707,700 707,700 435,000 194.216 629,216 
2018 707,700 707,700 460,000 171,088 631,088 
20]9 707,700 707,700 485,000 146,666 631,666 
2020 707,700 707,700 510,000 120,950 630,950 
2021 707,700 707,700 540,000 93,813 633,813 
2022 707,700 707,700 560,000 65,384 625,384 
2023 707,700 707,700 595,000 35,534 630,534 
2024 235,000 701,531 936,531 390,000 10,078 400,078 
2025 660,000 678,038 1,338,038 
2026 695,000 642,469 1,337,469 
2027 730,000 605,063 1,335,063 
202:8 770,000 565,688 1,335,688 
202:9 810,000 524,213 1,334,213 
203,0 855,000 480,506 1,335,506 
2031 900,000 434,438 1,334,438 
2032 950,000 385,875 1,335,875 
2033 1,000,000 334,688 1,334,688 
2034 1,055,000 280,744 1,335,744 
2035 1,110,000 223,913 1,333,913 
2036 1,175,000 163,931 1,338,931 
2037 1,235,000 100,669 1,335,669 
2038 34,125 

$ 13,940,591 $ 1,823,923 

(Continues) 
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D.~bt Service Coveragle 

Funds Available for Debt Service: 

Airport operating revenues: 

Char!~es for services 

Other operating revenues 

Total airport operating revl~nues 

Airponl operating expenses, excluding depreciation 

Net airport operating re\ll~nues 

Airpon nonoperating revenues: 

Pass,enger facility charges 

Interest revenue, excluding $4,338 earned on debt service reserve 

and construction fund 

Airport funds availabli~ for debt service 

Debt serviice, Series 2007 A&B Bonds 

Demonstrated debt sl~rvice coverage ratio 

RequirE!d debt service coverage ratio 

Maximuill al1nual debt service, Series 2007 A&B Bonds 

Demonstratl~d debt slarvice coverage ratio 

IRequired debt service coverage ratio 

$ 7,145,941 

29,927 

7,175,868 

5,073,840 

2,102,028 

1,171,582 

255,695 

3,529,305 

$1,341,544 

2.63 

1.25 

$ 1,225,600 

2.88 

1.25 
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I)i~:closures in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133 



WWW.MOSSADAMS.COM 

REPORT OF nNDEPENDE:NT AUDITORS ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAl. R~~PORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINA.NCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDlTING Sl~NDARD.s 

The Board of County Commissioners 
Jackson County, Oregon 

We have audited the financial statements of Jackson County, Oregon (the County) as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated December 18, 2012. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally at:cepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroiller General of the United States. 

Intem.d Control Over Fimmcial Reporting 

Management of the Coun~v is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County's internal control 
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the PUrpDS{! Df expressing 
our opIniDn on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the County's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a wntrol does not allow 
management Dr employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned flmctions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
Df deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identity all deficiencies in internal control 
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material w.~alknesses, We 
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we conSider to be a 
material weaknesses, as defined previously, 

Compliance and OtllIer Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whethler the County's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compHance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or othc;r matters that 
are required to be reported under GovemmentAuditing Standards. 
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity, 
Board of County Commissioners, the Secretary of State, Divisions of Audits of the State of Oregon, federal 
awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyon e other than these specified parties. 

Eugene, Oregon 
December 18,2012 
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'NWW. MOSSADAMS.COM 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD 
HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND (]IN THE 

PASSENGER FACIUTY CHARGE PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPUANCE 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB C:IRCULAR A-133 

The Board of County Commissioners 
Jackson County, Oregon 

Coml[)liance 

We have audited the Jackson County, Oregon's (the County) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect: on each of the County's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The 
County's major federal programs are identified in thE! summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We have also audited Jackson County, Oregon's 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the Passenger Faci/i(y Charge Audit 
Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the Federal Aviation Administration (Guiide), for its passenger 
facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2012. Compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs and its passenger 
facility charge program is the responsibility of County's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the County's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United StatE!S of AmE~rica; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-·B3, Audiits of 
States, Local Governments,. and Non-Profit Organizations and the Guide. Those standards, OMB Circular 
A-133 and the Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program and the passenger facility charge program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County's compliance' with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered neoessaf1J in the 
circumstances. We belieVE! that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not 
provide a legal determination of the County's compliance with those requirements. 

In ou r opinion, the County complied, in all material reSpE!cts, with the compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs and its 
passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2012, 
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Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal 
programs and the passenger facility charge program. In planning and performing our audit, we 
considered the County's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct 
and mat,erial effect on a major federal program and the passenger facility program to determine the 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the Guide, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
complfance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
as defj ned above. 

The purpose of this report is solely to provide an opinion on compliance and internal control with the 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of the County's 
major federal programs and its passenger facility charge program and the results of that testing for the 
year ended June 30, 2012 and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal 
control over compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133 in considering the County's compliance and 
internal control with the requirements referred to above. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

Eugenl~, Oregon 
December 18, 2012 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and PassengeJr Ii'acility Charges 

For the fiscal year endfd June 30, 2012 

Accrued or Accrued or 
(Deferred) (Deferred) 

F"deral State Program Revenue at Revenue at 
Fed,,,al GrantorlPass - lbrough CFDA Pass·thru or Award July 1, Dishursements! June 30, 

__ . _____ ~!.!:2!!torlPr~~ _______ _ Number Number Amount --- -..;..;.;;;;=- -----_. --,2::.;0:.:1~1 __ ~!L_ ~S~~~_s __ ,_...;2:;;0;.,:1.=2 __ , 

!k'l'. Dep"rtment of AJ:J:.iJa!ltur~ 
Forest SClvice: 

Direct prognu:ns: 
Drug Enforcement·, forest Pa(ro! to.unknown 
S~cure PaYlnents for States and Counties 

Containing Federal Lands 
Tide ][ - County Projects 10,665 

Passed through Oregon Department of Education: 
National School Breakfast Program 10.553 
Natiolk'll Scnooll uneh Program 10.555 

Passed through Oregon Department of Administrative Services: 

Secure Payments for States and Counties 
Containing Fedentl Lands 10,665 

Title I - Secure Payments - Fed Forest Receipts 
Tide III - County Projects 

Schools and Roads· Grants to Counties 
Title 1 - Secure Payments 

Passed tbmugh (lregon Department of Human Services-Health Division: 
Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, 

Infants ,md Cbildren 

Passed drl"Ough Oregon Health Authority-
Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, 

Infants mnd Children 
\VIC - Grants to States 

Total U.S, Dep .. tmmt of Agriculture 

U.S. Departmel!!.!!!.s~ 
Direct pregrams:: 

Habi';at Con:it:rvation 
NOAA" Open Rivers Initiative (ORA) 
NOAA .. fisheries Habitat Conselvation Program 

TotallJ.S. Oepa,tment of Commerce 

U.S. Department of The Ill/erior 
Bureau of Land ManagemCJ.1t' 

Dire"t programs: 
Secure Rural Schools and Community SeH: 

Determination Act of2000 
Title I - Secure Payments 
Title II . Specia! Projects 
Title III County Projem 

Federal Entitlement Lands 
Drug E:lIbn;ement • Marijuana Eradication 
Recreat<orr Area Law Enforeemem Patrol 

Bureau of Reclamati on: 
Direct program!'.: 

'Naler Reclamation and Reuse Prt)grrun 
Water 2025 Challenge Grant 

10.557 

10,557 

10.578 

11,463 
11.463 

I 5 ,unknown 

15.226 
15.unknown 
15,unknown 

15,504 
15.507 

Pass,d through Oregon Department of Administrative Services: 
Distribution ,"fReceipts to State and Local 

NtA 

None 

.. 
None 

280559 

280559 
None 

'<fA 
NfA 

N!A 

NfA 
N!A 
N!A 

N!A 

Gov"mments,TaylorGrazing 15.227 NtA 

Passed through Oregon State Marine Board' 
iedera! Clean Vessel Act Program 15.616 None 

TobllOepartment ofTbe Interior 

$ 74,997 $ $ 74,997 $ 74,997 $ 

346,087 346,087 346,087 

21,964 1,602 20,011 21,964 3,555 
39,741 2,964 36,248 39,741 6,457 

1,470,871 1,470,871 1,470,871 
(1,087,896) t66,701 (621,195) 

490,291l t90,29O 

13,981 93,685 107,666 13,98! 

1,128,460 1,028,118 1,128.460 100,342 
__ ..1.!.:2ZL __________ I·!.!ll.L __ • __ .1lQ2L •. ___ 1_7.21L 

__ 3,127,179 (989,645) -22.;83,31~ __ .--.:~~~ .,~1§.~1. 

118,426 6,929 125,355 118,426 
___ 3_9~ ___ .,;3;;",,4,:;9;,:;2'- ____ 4~ __ • __ .11~, .. ___ _ 

158,362 10,421 ___ 1_68,783 _____ l2!2.£.. ., _____ , 

4,901,992 4,901,992 4901,992 
865,057 865,057 865,057 

1,328,303 (3,096,320) 1.328,303 (1,768,017) 
303.896 303,896 303,896 

8,240 8,240 8,240 
191,550 34,325 142,788 191,550 83,087 

91,300 6,022 97,322 91.300 
100,507 93,038 100,507 7,4W 

551 551 551 

____ 3,375 _ _ __ 12L _____ ...2d2.?. ,,----_ .. _., 
~!:.11L_ p,055,973l ~'8,012... ____ Z:.!~ • . ---i!.:!~2;:.!2. 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Passenger Facility Charges (Continued) 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

Accrued or Accrued or 
(Deferred) (Deferred) 

Federal State Program Revenue at Revenue al 
Fode,·.1 GrantorlPass - Through CFDA Pass-tbru or Award July I, Disbursements! June 30~ 

Granltor/ProS!]m Title Number Number Amount 2011 Receiets Ex~ellditures 2012 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Direct Programs: 

State Crimina. Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) 16.606 NIA $ 49,442 $ 49,442 $ 49,442 $ 
ARRA - Colkctioll I Accountability Grant 16.804 KIA 61,149 16,817 63,311 61,149 14,655 
Domestic Violence Grant 16.590 •• 

Community Justice 179,282 40,000 172,049 179,282 47,233 
District Attorney 22,837 5,090 21.289 22.837 6,638 

Passed through Oregoll Department of Justice: 
Grants to Encl)urage Arrest Policies: 

Victims ofCri..-ne Acts 16.575 58,775 13.856 56,242 58,775 16,389 
B~me Grant - Stat,,/Local Law 

Enforcem'!flt }!I.ssistance 16.580 None 126,487 126,487 126,487 
Stop Violence Against Women 16.588 None 67,780 14,547 65,274 67,780 17,053 
Edward B),rne Memorial Justice Assistance 

Grant Program: 16.738 None 
Byrne Grant - Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 124,489 124,489 124,489 

ARRA - EdwHd Byme Memorial Justice Assistance 16.803 None 

Grant - G,ants to States and Territories 374,504 273,346 374,504 I01.l58 

Passed through OF~ Commission on Children & Families: 
JAlBG - Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block 

Block Gr.3nt 16.523 05-614 20,318 4,000 19,238 20.318 5.080 

Passed through OF, State Police 
HlDTA-Highntensity Drug Traffic Area-Sheriff 16.595 IOPORP501 5.477 5,477 5,477 

Total U,S, De,aartment nf Justice 1,090,540 94,310 976,644 1.090,540 208,206 

U.S, Deparh",:nt "fTransportation 
Direct programs: 

Airport ImJrovement Program: 20.106 N/A 
AlP 3-41-0037-36 295,006 73.159 368,017 295,006 148 
AlP 3-41-0037-37 N/A 1,232,496 1,2[4,918 1,232,496 17,578 

Passed through Or<:gon State Sheriffs Association: 
Alcohol Traffi,; Safety and Drunk Driving 

Preventior, Incentive 20.601 None 24,731 21,242 24,731 3,489 
Occupant Prot,:etion 20.602 None 17,889 15,292 17,889 2,597 

Passed through On'gon State Department of Transportation: 
State and Com nunity Highway Safety 20.600 None 5,691 1,571 1,864 5,691 5,398 
Federal Aid Highway Program 20.205 None 104,754 12,330 111,075 104,754 6,009 
National Moto" Carrier Safety 20.218 None 4,777 4,777 4.777 

Total U.S. Department ofTranspnrtation 1,685,344 87,060 1,737,1&5 1.685.344 35,219 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Passed through Oregon Department ofliwnan Services-

Health DiVision: 
State Public Water System Supervision 

Program Grants 66,432 280555 42,008 42,008 42,008 

Drinking WateI·State Revolving Fund 66.468 280555 28,017 28,017 28,017 

Total U.S. Em'iron,mental Protection Agency 70,025 70,025 70,025 

U.S, Department (,fEducatinn 

Passed through Oregon Department of Hwnan Services: 
Drug Free Schools" Prevention AD70 84.186 15-001 55,000 55,000 55,000 

Total Department Education 55,000 ___ 55,000 55,000 
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Jad\Son COUlllty, Oregon 
Schedulle of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Passenger Fadlity Cbaq~es (Continued) 

For the fiscall year eIld(~d JUllie 30, 2012 

Accrued or Accrued or 
(Deferred) (Deferred) 

Federal State Program Revenue at Reve1lue at 

Federal GrantcrlPass -l1lTOugh eFDA Pass-tluu or Award July I, Di!;bur:Eeme.nts/ Jtme 30, 

,~Jnu'torIProg"am Title Number Number __ A_~_"_ 201 I ~~~_ --...1!£!'E.!!~ _----1.~ _ 
11.S. Department of Health and Human Servic.!§, 
Passed through Health Care Coalition of Southern Oregon 

HCCSO Healthy Start Initiative 93,926 None 132,268 $ $ 132.268 $ 132,268 

Passed through Oregon Department of Justice-
Child Support El1for<ement 93,563 None 399.064 102,043 401,116 400.204 101,131 

Passed through Oregon HeE,lth Sciences University .. 
Matel11al and Child Health Services Block Gra,,,t 93,994 None 16,822 16,822 16,822 

Passed through Oreg('n Office for Serviees to Children & Families-
Social Services Block Grant 93,667 None 218,528 9,022 227,550 218.528 
Fost<:r Care - Tid. IV-E 93.658 None 5,600 :5,600 5,600 

Promotion "fSafe and Stable Families 
Family f'resen'ation & Support 93.556 ~'one 50.258 50,253 5().258 

MediclIl AS5istanoe Program 93.778 None 40,091 28,739 40,091 II ,352 

Passed through Oreg"n Health Authority-
Pubhc Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 280618 111,866 111,866 111,866 

Environmental J'ublic Ilealth & Emergency Re~;]lonse 
Cooper,\tiv" Agreements 93,070 None 14,568 14,568 14,,568 

Affordable Care Act Personal Respor,sibility Education 
Cl'idate Grant 93092 None 45,562 45,562 45.562 

Proj€,,cl Grants and Co("pcrative Agreements fur 
Tuberculosis Conu'ol Progranls 93,116 15-02 1,320 1.320 1.320 

Family Planning Services - Title X 93.217 280558 117,635 10~,613 117,635 13,022 
Substance Abuse & MH Services- YC.utll Suicide 

Prevention 93.243 None 35,824 35,824 35,824 
Disease Control & Pre'lent-Investigate & Technical 

Assistam:.e: 
Tobacco Related Chronic Dj"ease 93.283 None 59,942 49.920 59,942 10,022 

Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (AiDS) Activity: 
H I V Prevention 93.940 None 39,194 39,194 39.194 

Community M"nral H,,,,ltb Services Block Grant: 93,958 112001 
Non-Residential Adult (MHS20) 82,385 82,385 82,385 
Community Treatment (MED22) 26,231 26,231 26,231 

Substance Abuse Prev.'ntion & Treatment Block Graut: 93,959 135001 
Resident DillS AD62 40.278 40,278 40,278 
Continuum of Cam (66) 460,556 460,556 460,556 
Substance Aouse Residential AD67 24$,891 245,891 245,891 
Prevention AD70 77,606 77,606 77,606 

Maternal and C:,;Jd Health Services Block Gmlt: 93,994 180514 
MothemCam 14,382 12,784 14.382 1,5"8 
'Maternal and Child Health 39,123 34,776 39.123 4,347 
Child & Adolescent Health 16,767 14,904 16,767 1,863 
Family Planlling 15,044 11,283 15,044 3,7/;1 

Passed through Oregoll De9arttnent of Human S.rvices -
Heald, Division: 

Family PlalUling Services Title X 93.217 280558 2.232 8,987 11,219 2.232 
\)iseas", Control & Prevent-Investigate & 

Tedlni,e,.t Assistance: 
Tobacco Related Chronic Disease 93.283 None 178 10,043 10,221 178 

Public Health Enwrgency Prepan,dness 93.069 280618 19,464 75,404 15,795 19,464 19,O"} 
i>iaternal and Child Health Servi,:e.s Block Grant 93.994 180514 11,086 3,762 14.848 11.086 
Acquimd Immunodeficiency Syndrome (AIDS) 

ACiivity: 93.940 2805461 
H1V Prevention Program 280646 4,721 4,721 4,721 

Project Grants and Cooperative Agreemeors for 
Tu')erculosis Control Programs 93,116 15-02 164 164 164 

ARRA - Immunization, Centers for Dise .. e 

Ccntrol Coop"rative Agreements 93.712 None 555 555 555 
htnnuniz,atlon Grants: 

hnmunizations 93.268 280540 725 20,438 ___ 21,163 __ ._~_.231.. 

Total Departm.,nt H.'alth & Human Services 2,345.930 229,699 ----1:!.!~ _._~.d:S!!2.2._ . 166_]'!L 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Passenger Facility Charges (Continued) 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 

Accrued or Accrued or 
(Deferred) (DcfcITcd) 

Federal State Program Revenue at Revenue at 

F"deral Grantor/Pass - Through CFDA Pass-thru or Award July I, Disbursements! June 30, 
Grantor/Pr0llram Title Number Number Amount 2011 ~~ Ex~enditllrcs 2012 

U.S. Social Sec:urin:.,Administration 
Social Security Inc entive on Incarcerated Individuals 96,unknown None $ 2,000 $ 1,000 $ 3,000 $ 2,000 $ 

Total U.S. Social :,ecurity Administration 2,000 1,000 ___ 3,000 2.000 

U.S. Executi,'" Ollice <of the President 
Passed through OF, Department of Justice: 

High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas 95001 None 31.564 7,074 38,638 31,564 

Total U.S. Ex,,"utive Office of the President 31,564 7,074 ___ 38,638 31.564 

U.S. Departm"nt "fHomeland Securitv 
Transportation Security Administration Reimbursement 97,unknown N/A 149,039 149,039 149,039 
Emergency Food 8: Sh"'ter 97,024 None 7,603 7,603 7,603 

Passed through On:gon Military Department - Office of 
Emergency Management: 

Ernerg'~ncJ Management Perfonnance Grants 97,042 None 119,110 94,636 119,110 24,474 
State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) 97,073 None 72,713 11,531 38,836 100,018 72,713 
Citizen Ccrps PrOb'Tam 97,053 None 694 694 694 

Passed through the Oregon Department of Forestry: 
Fire Managem~nt Assistance Grant 97,046 None 12,496 12,496 12,496 

Passed through the Oregon State Marine Board: 
Boating Safety F imUlcial Assistance 97.012 None 139,805 139,808 ___ 139,808 139.805 139,805 

Total Depnr""ent of Homeland Security 501,460 151,339 ___ 4_'!1!£.. 528,765 236,992 

TOTAL EXPE:NDUURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 16,862,175 $ (3,464,715 l $ 15,899,316 $ 17,847,611 $ !1,516,42Ol 

Passenger Facility ,2harges' None N/A !992,889l __ /_,_171,582 1,341,928 !822.543 l 

TOTAL EXPE.ND ITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
AND PASSENGElR FACILITY CHARGES $ 16,862,175 $ !4,457,604l $ 17,070,898 $ 19,189,539 $ !2.338,963l 

Amount used in de","ennining major programs under 
OMB Circular A-I 33 guidelines $ 17,847,611 

MAJOR PROGRAM @3%ofTotal Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 535,428 

. Passenger Facility Charges are not f"deral revenues, but must be used in accordance with AIP-3-41-0037, 
•• State agencies did not provide pass-through grantor numbers 
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Jackson County, Oregon 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Passenger FaciIDty Charges 

For the fiscal year ended JUlile 30, 2012 

1. l)urpose of the Scht~dule: 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures offederal awards and passenger facility charges (the Schedule) is 

a supplementary schedule to Jackson County, Oregon's (the County) financial statements and is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the activities {If the 
County, it h: not intended to and does not present either the financial position, changes in fund balances., or the 
current fund.s' revenues, expenditures and other changes of the County. 

2. Signifkanlt Accounting Policies: 

Reporting Entity: The reporting entity is fully described in Note I to the County's financial statements. The 
Schedule includes all federal financial assistance proglt'ams administered by the County for the year ended June 
30,2012. 

Basis of Presentation: The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with OMB Circular A-I33, 

Audits of States , Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 

Federal Fillancial Assistance: Pursuant to OMB Circular A-133, federal financial assistance is defined as 

assistarH~e provided by a federal agency, either directly or indirectly, in the form of grarlts, contracts, 
cooperative agreements, loans, loan guarantees, property, interest subsidies, insurance or direct aJPpropriations. 
Accordingly, nonmonetary federal assistance, including federal surplus property, is included in federal 
financial assistance and, therefore, is reported on the Schedule, if applicable. Federal financial assistance does 
not include direct ft~deral cash assistance to individuals. Solicited contracts betwt:en the state and federal 

govemment for which the federal government procures tangible goods or services are not considered to be 
federal financial assistance. 

Major Programs: OMB Circular A-133 establishes a dollar limit and risk base criteria for selecting major 
fi!deral programs. Using this criteria, the County has six Type A programs, all of which were st~lectt~d for 
testing as major programs, and no Type B programs. 

Basils, of A,!counting:: The expenditures in the Schedule are recognized as incurred based on the accrual basis 
of accounting and the cost accounting principles contained ill OMB Circular A-87, Cost Pril1clJJZes for State 

and Local Governments. Under those cost principle8, certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are 
limited as to reimbursement. 

Matching Costs: The Schedule does not include matching expenditures. 
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JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOil THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness( es) identified? __ yes_X_no 

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

__ yes _X_none reported 

__ yes_X_no 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

• Mclterial weakness( es) identified? __ yes _X_ no 

• Si~:nificant deficiency(ies) identified? __ yes _X_none reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major 
Programs: Unqualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? __ yes _X_ no 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Number(s) 

10.557 

10.665 
IS.Unknown 
20.106 
93.959 

16.738 
16.803 

16.804 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants and 
Children (WIC) 
Schools and Roads, Grants to States 
Distribution of Receipts to State & Local Governments 
Airport Improvement Program 
Substance Abuse Prevention & Treatment Block Grant 

lAG Cluster 
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 
Recovery Act - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance 
Grants (JAG) Program / Grants to States and Territories 

Recovery Act - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance 
Grants (JAG) Program / Grants to Units of Local Government 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and 
type B programs: $535,428 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 
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JAf:KSON COUNTY, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND (!UESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Section II-Financial Staltemenlt IPindings 

None reported. 

Section IlI-I~ederal Award 

None reported. 

--_._,---,----

Costs 
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Independent Auditor's Comments 

Oregon Administrative Rules 162-010-0000 through 162-010-0320 incorporate the Minimum Standards for 
Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations prescribed by the Secretary of State in cooperation with the Oregon 
State Board of Accountancy. Such standards enumerate the financial statements, schedules, comments and 
disclosures required in audit reports. The required financial statements and schedules are set forth in preceding 
sectiom: of this report. Required comments and disclosures related to the audit of such statements and schedules 
are forth following. 



lNWW. MO~;SADAMS.COM 

RlEPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ON COMPLIANCE AND 
ON lINTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCOlRDANCI~ WITH OREGON MINIMUM AUDIT STANDARDS 

Board of Commissioners 
Jackson County, Oregon 

We have audited the basic financial statements of Jackson County, Oregon (the County) as of and for the 
year ende4 June 30,2012 and have issued our report thereon dated December 18, 2012. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generailly accepted in the United States of America and 
the provisions of the Minimum Standards for Aud.its of Oregon Municipal Corporations;. pr,escribed by 
the Secretary of State. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the basi<: financial statements are free of material misst:ltement. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County's basic financial statemenLc; are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of ilts compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, grants, including provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon 
Administrative Rules OAR 162-10-000 to 162-10-330, as set forth below, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts: 

41' The use of approved depositories to secure the deposit of public funds . 
.. The requirements relating to debt. 
41> The requirements relating to the preparation, adoption and execution of the annual budgets for 

fiscal years 2011 and 2012 . 
.. The requirements relating to insurance and fidelity bond coverage. 
c, The appropriate laws, rules and regulations pertaining to programs funded wholly or partially by 

other governmental agencies . 
.. The requirements pertaining to the use of revenue from taxes on motor vehicle use fuel funds. 
c. The statutory requirements pertaining to the investment of public funds . 
.. The requirements pertaining to the awarding of public contracts and the construction of public 

improvements. 

However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit 
and, aCfordlingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our test disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon 
Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the Secretary of State. 
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Intemal, Control Over Financial Reporting 

In jplanning and performing our audit, we considered the County's internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
County's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effect:tveness of the County's internal control over financial reporting. 

A dej.fciency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timl~ly basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We 
did not ildentify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be 
material weaknesses, as defined above. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the County in a separate letter dated 
Decembe'r 18,2012. 

This report is intended solely for the information of the County Commissioners, management, others 
within the entity, federal and state awarding agencies, and pass-through entities, is not intended to be, 
and sh ould not be used by anyone other than those specified parties. 

For Moss Adams LLP 
Eugene, Oregon 
December 18, 2012 
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